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25

Page,

Merritt Henry A. 39 Federal ..ovveeveaans 1052
Merritt & Co. 133 Washington .........ve-. 11
Messervey A. H. jr.16 Derby sq ..........1102
Metropolitan Life Ins. Co. 223%1333:: vees 1025
Michaud Pierre, 73 Harbor........ 1090
Michelson Jacob, 86 Harbor. 091

Millea L. E. 154 Washin%_on. 4
Milton B. 8. 8. & Co. 61 North
Mitchell J. F. of Danvers.,.....

Linel:an J. C. & Co. of Peabody... . 857 | Mitchell W, P. of Marblehead........ ..--771
Little Thomas F. T Walnut.............. 1086 | Monson Maine Slate Co. 27 Front........ 1083
Littlefield L. M. of Danvers.............. 691 | Moody Lewis B. 131 Washington ..... ...-1108
Tloyd G. H. of BoSEOD. . «euvuvuuraennn opp.T0L | Moore Alice Mrs. of Beverly......ieoeese- 609
Lloyd Joseph M. of Peabody.............. 510 | Moore Hew W. of Peabody....coonnuens- 51
Locke Bros. 76 North........ovveeenn. pp.£24 | Moore H. W. of Beverly... .oovvenreencas 602
Locke M. P. & Son, 65 North.............. 12 | Morgan H. H. of Beverly .............. .. M3
Lombard & Brown, of Beverly............ 610 | Moriarty James, of Peabody........... codygy
Long William A, of Topsfield. .......... 891 | Moriarty M. 66 Lafayette ......ccoo0ivenns 1051
Lord Daniel B. 15 Forrester... .... ..... 1061 | Morse E. Henry, 16 Endicott....... «v.us 1nos
Lord Daniel B, of Peabody........ .. ... 860 | Moulton Edward P. 34 Norman ... «.... lqps
Lord Eben 8. of Danvers........cooveuvan 696 | Moulton George B. of Danvers.......o. .. 700
Lord Francis, 191 Federal................ 1109 | Moulton Heug P. 114 Washington ...... 1094
Lord Mansel C. of Danvers .......coceuun 698 | Moulton Jay H. 159 Washington ......... Toas
Lord & Fuller, of Boston................ 1039 | Moynahan & Colby, of Danvers..... R 699
Lord & Neal, 58 North... ...........v.. 1059 | Mudgett & Co. 212} Essex..... 2 Cemmwsvee 008
Lore & Russell, of Danversport.......... 698 | Mulligan B. J. 11Greenpl . ...... . 50-1
Loring John, 14 Prospect........ ceseuss 505 | Munroe & Arnold, of Peabody .......eexe- 861
Tougee Joseph L. 259 Essex, top-lines 20 Murney John M. of Beverly......... ceenem0q

to 88, and page 1052 | Murphy Cornelius of Beverly .. ......... 603
Low Daniel, 231 Essex....... ... leaf opp.152 | Murphy Francis, 155 Derby............ 0o
Lummus A. of Peabody............c...n 862 | Murphy F. P. & Co. 16 and 18 Putnam ...xpg
Lynn and Boston Railroad Co. of Lynn. .1033 | Murray & Carroll, 155 Boston............ 1102
Macdonald J. 'C. 202} Essex, front co;rggé Mutual Fire Ins. Co. in Salem, 126 Washing.-

T e e I SR et L R e e R D

MackJ,J. & T. F. 84 Federal.......... 1065 | Nason Fred A. of Hamilton ... o <

MeCarthy Chas. W. of Peabody ..
McComisky & Galloupe, of Beverly.

McCormac & Howard............ «» -861
MecCusker P. J. 194 Essex.. 1036
McDonald J. H. of Beverly..... . ..613
McDonald William, of Peabody.......... 863
McDonough & Hartnett, 3 High........ 1102
MeGee, Geary & Co. 6 Crombie...... vee.1049
MeGlew Thomas, 20 Front ....ovcveens .o 1106
MeGowan & Dolan, of Beverly........ .. 510
McKean T. W. of Beverly............. . 619
McKeever Joseph, 23 Brown ............ 1074
MoLanughlin Bros. 39 Charter. ........... 505
McNeiigMargnret A. Mrs. 149 Essex...... 1084
McRae L. K. of Beverly ...ccvvvevnninnnas 620
McShane James, 58 Bridge............... 1101
McTernen Charles, of Danvers. ........... 693
Maguire & Herrick, of Beverly............ 603
Manning P. F. 10 Derbv 8q.....coeex «evu 1105
Manning R. C & Co. 189 Derby. ...back cover
Mansfield Benjamin, 212 Bridge...........986
Marblehead Nat'l Bank.........coveennnsn. 768

Marhlehead Savings Bank . ...
Marsghall W, W, of Beverly

feiense 870
National Exchange Bank, 109 Washi. ‘
National Grand Bank. of Marblaheaﬁgfo_??gé;
Naumkeag National Bank, 227 Essex .. 1019

Naumkeag Plating Co.48 Mill.. . .~ 1073
Naumkeag Steam Cotton Co. Salap. ... 1031
Naumkeag Street Railway Co. 233 sgex.1032
Naumkeag Trade Protection Asqne. 3 Central
........................... wssseass 1108
Neal & Newhall, Salem and B,
Nelson James 8. 43 Bridge ... ‘.’Y?.r ly i :]mﬂg
Newcomb D. B. jr. 24 Derbys [T IO 1135
Newcomb & Gauss, 1 City Hall ave, onp. TT8

New England Building and Mfe. Co. 70 Flint

New England Socket Co. of
New England Trust Co. of Blg:t:;r.l?. .
gta\lw‘::n:}{kﬁl\élorrls&,z 182 Essex

ewha enry & Co. of Danv =
Newha'l M. A. & Co. 13 Wst:;h?;sgton .
Newton 8. T. G. jr. of Marblehead. ..
Njchols Andrew, of Danvers
N!cho'ls Stephen F. 24 Boston ....... ....
Nichols Thomas B. 178 Essex. .. .. . front cover
North Packing and Provision Co. of Bos-

:‘};a hag & Monlton, ofi Be;’;?y};l. Ay ?_}g % o1 R SR . 1110
artin Benjamin F. 2nd, of Marblehead.. . orth Salem Drug Store, 17
Martin James T. 252 EsseX .....c.c...... 1081 | Northend Willia,n% D,OQH‘:J iﬁ?sanxorth ::: 10'1'2
Martin John 8. & C~. of Marblehead .....769 | Norton George. 25 Brown. .. ... . ... .. . 1008
Martfin William F. 63 to 67 Flint..... . 1104 | Norton George R. of Peabody.............858
Maspn C. V. & Co. rear 52 Lafayette. .503 | Norton Thomas H. jr. 17 Central,. . .....1108
Mason I. W. jr. of Marblehead. . 776 | Nugent Bros. Salem and Peabody ... ...0T8
Meacom George E. of Peabody .. -:862 | Ober I. & E. H. of Beverly Farms. . R18
Meady Charles W. 72 Lafayette....... .. 1075 | Ober Prince, of Beverly . . e b o8
Merﬁant.i]e National Bank, 11 Central. ..1016 | Ober 8. F. & Son, of Beveﬂ'{r .............. ]
Merchants National Bank, 234 Essex..... 1017 | Ober T. P. & Son, of Beverlv: SR 14
Merrill A. H. of Peahody ......ocoivneunn. 863 | O'Brien & Kiely, of Marblehead .......... 5
Merrill Edward W. 314} Essex .. .. -1105 [ O’Connell Timothy, 209 Fssex. .......... 1048
Merrll Eugene H. 26 Fronf......... --983 | Odell Charles H. 78 Washington . .. ...... 260
Merrlll J. H. & Son, 77 Lafayette........1080 | Odell & Perkins 165 Fssex .. ..o 092
Merrill & Mackintire, 220 Essex ......... 995 | O’Hare Thomas, 157 Derby. .. ..........1061
STAINING OF WOODWORK E

'A SPECIALTY, BY . N. BASS ETT, ‘oosy



PARLOR, DINING and CHAMBER LOU GEE S Next door to
FURBNITURE, at 259 Essex St., SALEM ‘Barton Sq.
26 INDEX TO ADVERTISEMENTS.
Page. : Page
O’Keeffe James F. 16 Washington sq....1079 | Putnam C. O. of Hamilton....c.. «.iuuee. 872
O’Leary & Foley, 595 Derby .......o.0vus 1077 | Putnam Nathan T, of Danvers............ 697
O'Reg&n J. Co. 243} KISSEX vrvrrnreenrenen 1135 | Putnam & Po%g of Beverly . erenesseB15
Osborn & Co. 126 E888X v ..cvvenarannsnns 996 | Quill Dennis 118 Washmgton woves e 1036
Osborne William 8. of Peabody ........... 862 | Quint N, M. of Peabody -..cvvivinrnsnanss 864
Osgood A. D. of Peabody .......cccvvn.... 511 | Raby Eustache, 23 Brown. ..........ecuus 1074
Osgood Joseph B. F. 237 EsseX.......-... 1036 | Radford & Goldsmlth 163 Washmgton 1106
Packard W. C. Furniture and Carpet Co. | Ramsdell A, S of Marblehead . ..... ....770
281 ERBOX;; isiviniinnssindiseis foot-lines | Ramsdell B. H. & Co. 20 Front......... .110(}
Page Warren & Co. 7 DOAZE Cb. v vvvvennnss 503 | Randall Charles A. 13 Derby sq -........ 1075
Palfray & Walton, 195 Essex....c.ovvue. 1096 | Ray & Murray, of Peabody.. .....ceu.ne. 864
Falmer Wm. H. H. 247 Essex . .....0euv.. 982 | Raymond John M. 81 Washington ...... 1035
Pare N. J. E. & Co. 79 Harbor........... 1052 Read s Legal and Collection Agency, of Bos—
Parker Harry J. of Marblehead ........... I8 | MOI it ieiaiinis sansvan eusmriea i 110
Parsons Jose%h M. 2263 ESSEX «ouvvorannss 1066 Reddmg, Baird & Co. of Boston ......... 1116
Patten Paul B. 78 Lafayette.......ccu0.us 1072 | Reinewald Ralph L. 187 E880X «cvvnnnvnn 1003
Pawley George, of Peabody................ 859 | Reith & Co. 204 KsSeX...vveen cvnvvnnne .us 19
yson W. S, of Beverly.... .. ..610 | Remmonds Wm, RR. of Beverly ........... 616
Peabody Elisha B. of Danvers .. ..698 | Reynolds James B. of Marblehead L1738
Peabody George M. of Danvers. .697 | Reynolds John F. 45 Irving ....... 504
Peabody Press Co. of Peabody.. .855 | Rice Herbert D, 191 Essex .... ....... ..978
Peabody Reporter Co. of Paa.botl}r .856 | Richardson Charles W. 71 Washington.. 1037
Peabody William H. 124 Iﬂ.fa.yatta .11 | Riddle George H. of Beverly -
Peach Harry R. 210 EsSeX......0evn suens 1001 | Riley Philip J. 286 Essex ... «vs cvevees
Peach John F. & Co. of Marblehead....... 770  Robbins Henry G. of Pesabody ....... vo0. 858
‘Peach Philip H. 210 BE8sex....co0evevsenss 1001 | Roberts & Davis, 284 ESSeX. ...eeeeeeinesss 982
Pearl Theophilus, 95 St. Peter............. 505 | Robertson R. & J. of Beverly ............ 606
Pearson William P. 37 Lafayette..... .. 1045 | Robson Robert H. rear 39 Boston...........88
Pease John T.50ber........c00 vo svaases 506 | Roche John, 84} Derby .. . .... ...... 1101
Peckham J. E. & Co. of Boston........... 512 | Rockport Granite Co. of Boston............ 13
Pendar Samuel D. 15 Washington........ 1065 | Rodgers Nellie J. of Marblehead.......... 67
Penhall John P. 73 North ... «.ccvuvnnns 1103 | Rodie George M. of Peabody....cevevannen 509
People’s Oil Co. 1 Harrison ave........ opp. 40 | Rogers M. Miss, 253 ESSeX .......ccenveuns 982
Pepper George W. of Peabody ........cc... 866 | Rogers William H. 16 Mill ............. 1062
Perking C. P. & Co. of Danvers.....coveuu. 689 | Rood & Co. 4 Broadway.. ........... PR
rerkins Enoch A. 81 Lafayette ......... 1047 | Roome J. A. of Peabody ........ . ..vc0un 863
Perley Edward L. 1 Cy lall ave ...... 1043 | Ropes Bros. 49 Central. ....c.ovveencnenans 336
Perley Sidney, 114 Washington .......... 036 | Ropes J. E. & Co. of Danvers ...... s 696
Perry Geo. 8. & Co. of Boston............ 1138 | Rounds M. F. of Danvers ........coveure- 695
Perry & White, 2564 Kssex ............: 1037 | Rowell Benjamin & Son, 64 Sewall ...... 1093
Peterson Joseph N. 237 ESsex............ 1067 | Rushford K. L. 99 Washington............ 1%54
- Pettingell & Barry, of Danvers............ 695 | Russell Albert B. 216 EsseX.....coevvunss 1139
Phelps Charles, 84 Federal .............. 1094 | Russell & Verry 199 Washington..........1084
Philinte Leon G. of Beverly .........o000. 604 | Ryan Garrett, 182 Bridge .... ... ....vns 1055
Phillips John W, of Beverly ...... SR 624 | Safford Daniel B, 252 kssex. .......oeuee. 1033
Phippen C. H. 53 Boston ...........ee.- 108 | Sager Armie & Co. 258 Bridge ........... 1055
Pickering Wm, jr. & Co. 17 Paa'lmd,y .. 1057 | 8t. Clair Harry M. of Beverly ............ 60T
Pickett Coal Co.of Beverly.... .....cvues 612 | St. Pierre Francois T. 2 Congress......... 1089
Pike Elmer B. 213 Es86X.......00neunes .1088 | Salem Art School, 81 Washington ........
Pike James N. 161 Waﬂhington .......... 1002 | Salem Carpet L«leanmg Co. 215 Wash'n.. 1076
Pineaunlt Ernest, 42 Perkins ... .1091 | Salem Chemical and Supply Co. 2 Walter
Pinnock Thomas G. T Dod e L1058 opp. 40
‘Pitman E. A. of Marblehead. 767 | Salem Commercial School, 126 Wash'n..
Pitman Joseph F. 76 North. . .509 1103
Pitman & Brown, 165 Derby .1059 | Salem Electric Lighting Co. 114 Wash'n.1029
Place Amos F. of Beverly .... . e e 611 | Salem Five Cent Savings Bank, 212 Essex1022
Plummer James S. 61} Bridge......... ++.1105 | Salem Foundry and Mach blmp, 178 Darhy 3
Poor Joseph A. of Peabody................ 511 | Salem Gas Light Co. 161 Essex .......... 1030
PoorJ. B. of Topsfield.....coovuevrnnnnnns 891 | Salem Hardware Co. 215 Essex .......
Pope Bros. of Danyersport .. .......eoun. 692 | Salem Iron Foundry, 178 Derby ............
Porter E. H, of Peabody............ .. ...863 | Salem Kindling Wood Co. 339 Bridge.
Porter F. & Son, 5 Central ............. 40 | Salem National Bank, 114 Washington
Porter John W. 252 Essex ........ ..... 1037 back cover and 1020
Porter J. F. of Danvers ........... ...... 698 | Salem Sa.vmgs Bank, 125 Washington. .1021
FPorter J. O. of Marblehead ........back cover | Salem Shoe Store, 250 Essex. ..... top lin2s
Porter Samuel of Beverly........o.ovuvunen Salem Streets
Porter 8. H. & Co. 121 Essex........c.eun.. 990 | Salem Storage Warehouse Co. 295 Bridge 1027
Powers John, T Highland ave ... ........ 505 | Salem Waste Co. 2 Walter... ...... .opp. 40
Pratt Lewis 1. 84 Boston ......ccouuvuens 1000 | Salem & Beverly Coal Co. Beverly .. L 09T
Price Bros. 13 High .....cov0vivviniinnen. 1105 | Salem & So. Danvers Oil Co. 43 Mason oup 40
Price B. H. & J. 226 HS80X viovevsannranies 2 | Samson Mary M. L. of Peabody ..........: 1863
Provo E.4and6 Sewall...... ..covuuvnn 1051 | Sanborn Nathan P. of Malblehaa,d ..... i 770
Palsifer, Jordau & Co. of Boston......... 1110 | Sargent Frank H. 19 Crombie .1
Purbeck Williain A. & Son, 258 Hssex..... 12 | Saunders Robert J.6 Barr.... ......... L
Putnam Charles A, 251 EsseX........... Savory & Co. 156 Washington

E. N. BASSETT House and Sign Painter,

1 BENTLEY
STREET.




UP_{OLSTERY WORK (IN ALL ITS BRANCHES
DONE AT 259 & 261 ESSEX ST., SALEM.

) L LOUGEES

INDEX TO ADVERTISEMENTS.

Page.

S&wyer Elhndﬁe C. of Beverly ........... 600
Sawyer Wm of Peabody... .....ovt.. 1007
Sawyer & Keddie of Beverly ............. 612
Scott John 8. of Danvers .............vut. 700
Seott Robert, rear 13 Front  .......... 1093
Sears Frank L. of Peabody................ 857
Segee & Scott, of Danvers .........ovvvens 700
Sewall Charles, 71 Washington ......... 1036
Shaw X. H. & Son, 283 Essex. .. ...... 991
8hay Thomas E. 117 Bridge ........... 1053

Shea Thomas & Co Pope’s ct.

Shepard 8, D. & Co. 173 Essex ... ..12
Shepard Wm. H. of Marblehend .. 1011
Sh plee & Scott, 59 Washington...... £oot-

X lines Salem Inhbrs.
Sheridan & Duignan, 59 Mason .......... 1104
Sherry M:ichael, of Peabody .............. 511
Sherry Thomas, of Peabody ......... .... 511
Shortell M. & Spn, 10 Dodge. ............ 503
Bibleg George, 46 Central..... Sl e 1042
8i . & Sons, rear 28 Beaver........... 505
Simon M, A. 140 BSSeX ...vvver cvunnrnnn 1080
Simonds Charles, of Peabody....... s 861
Singer Mfg. Co. 138} XEssex + . 1070

- Skinuer Richard, 10 Front................ 1055
Smart W, K. of Danvers .........o.oov on 698
Smart & Spencer, 84 Lafayette ..... opp. 513
Smith Alonzo H. 12 Pond «...vuvuinrnnnenns 9
Smith Frank E. 148 Essex ........... -0 1085
Smith Franklin, of Beverly.......... .... 620
Smith Fred of DAnvers ............ ..o 693
Smith Hoave M. 13 Dodge. . caseenal T
Smith Joseph F. 42 N orthend ......ooees 1.107
Smith, Leavitt & Cole, 81 Washington...., 144
Bmith Mary B. of Beverly ............... 615
Smith Wildon B. of Beverly.............. 6oL
Smith William M. 6 Harbor...., ......... 1094
Smith Winchester, 125 Derby.... ....... 1057
Smlt-h & Dixon, of Beverly............... 623

So. Danvers Nat'l Bank of Peabody
Southwick E. A. & Co. of Danvers.

Taylor Theodore, of Beverly ............. 622
Taylor Wiltiam F. 77 North. ....
Thayer E. 8. & Co. 165 Derby...

Thayer Oliver 2d, 165 Derby ... ..... ... 1071
I'momas Josiah B of Peabody. ...o0v0vun

Thorner Philip A. of Marble ead. ... W T8
Thornton John H. 8 Washington sq...... 992
Thyng W. H. H. & Son, 13 Brown ..... 1047
Tierney E. A. 209 ESSEX...00viueissnenss 1088
Tierney P. F.25: Essex. .1028
Tiney F. E. of Danvers...... i ...691

’l‘ompklns T. B. of Marblehead.

Tower, Giddings & Co. of Boston. 11
Tracy Henry J. 69 Harbor e L1000
Trask C. B. of Beverly.......cooovvveninn 620
Trask James E. 208 Bridge...........opp.625
Trask J. Arthur, of Peabody.........ccunv 855

Trask T. 8. of Danvers...........coevvinns 696-
Trask Wm. T. jr. of Danvers......

Trask & Putnam, of l’enbody
Treadwell Bros. & Clark, 9 to 13 Franklm.al)s

Trefry W. D. T. of Marblehead. ..........
Tucker Philip B. of Marblehead.......... 771
Tudbury J. T. 410 EsSeX..... cievven vnan 1053
Tufts B. F.of Danvers.. .......su.s cen 691
Tufts James E. 5 Warren ct..... AEee 1106
Union Pacific Tea Co. 219 Essex...... ..992
Upton Edmund T. 30 Endicott ....... 1107
Upton Jesse F. & Co. 80 Boston .... eesld
Usher Edward M. of Marblehead. . D116
Vauchn Machine Co. 17 Ward.. ........ 501
Very Nathaniel O, 113 Derby........... 1041
Vogell George W. 212 aud 214 Bridge ..1069
Voyer Frauk X. 83 Harbor......... ..1089
Wadleigh & Morse, 81 North............ 1072,
Waits (:eorge A. of Danvers ..... . .. .697
Waitt Wm. F. & Co. 264 Essex... .. 1000
Wallace E. L. of Beverly. = . 607
Wallace & Symonds, of Beverl. y, BTN 1k
Wallis Mary E. Mrs. of Beverly.... - 609
Walter H. A. of Beverly.......... .610
Ward & Smith, 217 Essex. . L1002

Wardwell Henry, 71 Washingto

Southworth Bros, 20 Osgood ......,.. ... 1107 | Wardwell John 8. 61 Summer.......o.v. 1106
Spaulding W. & G. K. of Peabody .... ... 862 | Warren Five Cents Saving Bank, Of Pea~
Spence George A. 3105 Essex ............ 106 DOAY . oo vvnnnne sassanmarsnsssssn . .B53
Spencer A, H. of Boston ................. 1110 | Warren George F. 8 Pleasant 3
Spofford Krank M. of Danvers ........... 696 | Warren National Bank, of Peahody ...... 853
Stacey T. Frauk of Marblehead ........... 767 | Warren & Jordan, of Peabody. ... - ? 864
Standard Oil Co. of New York....,......1070 | W ashington John S 95 Lafayette........
Standard Thermometer Co. of Peabody ...849 | Waters Andrew S. 7 Franklin... ........
Standley & Larcow, of Beverly....,....... 618 | Watson Lawrence, of Beverly..
Staniford D, P mn NOBN o e 1046 | Webb Arthur N. 4 Central . ...
Stanwood W. H. 27 Central.... ......... 1046 | Webb Benjamin, 54 Essex.....
Stap.es Frank U. of Dauversport. ......... 692 | Webber I. r of Beverly..........
Steele B. J. & Son, of Marblehead ....... T67 | Webber W. G. & Co. 240 Essex, top lines
Stevens A. M. & Co. of Beverly ... ...... G614 theatre plﬂ-na
Stevens George 0. 55 Bridge ............ 1107 | Weleh James, 15 Thorndike.............. 1066
Stevens Samuel A, 141 Essex ........ ... 1107 | Wendell F. A. & North............back cover
Stickney George C. of Beverly............ 603 | West Charles F. of Danvers ........oeeee-
Stickney G. A. D. 119 Kssex.'...... -ve. 1038 | Weymouth J. E. & Son, 80 Lafayette..... 502
Stickney Walter J. 135 Essex.............. 983 | Wheeler V. Frank, 55 Charter. .v...e.n.. 1065
Stimpson Thomas M. 256} Essex ......... 1035 | Wheeler & Perkins, 13 Sewall. ........... 990
Stone, F'. E, Mrs. 1 Sewall................ 1104 W’heeler & Wilson Sewing Machines, 276 Es-
StonelJohn W. of Beverly ............ ... [ I O 1082
Stopford William, of Beverly . Wlnd{lan A. H. of Peabody............... 866
Sullivan James H. 25 Front. ... ... ..., Whipple H. P. & Co. of Peabody.........861
Sumner J. ¥. of Marblehead .............. ‘| Whipple 8. & Son, 115 Derby............. 996-
Swan|George, of Beverly............. i14 | Whipple & Monsfield, 112 North.......... 10
SwanW. A. & Co. 239 Kssex . Whitecomb & Carter, of Beverly.......... 615
Sweeney Kdward J. 80 North .. White Frank W. 12 Prescott..... .. 1059
S)’mouda, Lemuel W. 53 Derby. .. Whitman George N. of Beverly . ..613
ymo:uds 5. B Co. of Beverly ........ ... G20 | Whitteinore James W. 240 Bridg 1069
Tymondh 8. 8. & Co. 1 Franklin . ........ 10[.'! Whitten & Pollard, 295 Essex .. 999
Ibot Joseph of Peabody :..ovverviininnnn Whittlesey F. D. & Co. 416 Lafa.yett v.. 1105
E. N BASSETT sells_Paints, Bils and Glass, * BENELEY




RELIABLE GOODS AT LOUG EE S 259 and 261 ESSEX /T.

LOWEST PRICES AT ALEM.

28 INDEX TO ADVERTISEMENTS,

Page. . Page.
Wightman &Brigham, of Beverly ....... 612 | Winn Frank M. 145 Washington ........ 1057
Wilcox George, 31 Boston................ 1000 | Winn 8. B. & Son, 191 Washington...... 1050
Wilder Mfg. o 219to 220 Washington. .502 | Wood John jr. of Beverly............... 1137
Williams Augustus, of Beverly.......... 606 | Wood J. Frank, 167 Washington........ 1132
Williams Stephen C. 20 Derby sq....... 1098 | Woodbury Chas. H. Co. of Beverly ...... 603
Williams Theron R. 40 Highland ave....1045 | Woodbury George P. 42 Howard........ 1061
Wilmarth-Howard & Co, of Boston. opp 701 | Woodbury I. M, of Topsfield.............. 891
Wilson Alfred, of Peabody................ 858 | Woodbury John L. of Hamilton..... .... 879
Wilson Joseph A, of Beverly............ 100‘.] Woodbury T. I. of Beverly........ ...... 611
Wilson Mary B. Miss, 262 Essex. . Woodman Bros. & Ross, of Danversport 692
Wingate James R. & "Co. of Peabody 855 Wright Frank V. 114 Washington....... 1033

" STEEL STAMPS /Z7/fezs BRASSSTAMPS:

=FOR= Sl = FOR%

BOOTA SHOE BOTIONS |\ L GIONGTACHGS weTOPS

| STEN CECIPRG . BOOT & SHOE CASES
| 31 SOUTH ST. SMARK BOSTON,MASS.

Albert E. EHughes,

— MANUFACTURER OF —

Show Cases and Counters

WAREROOMS, 309 WASHINGTON STREET,
Directly opposite the Old South Church, - - E BOSTON, MASS.

=¥ Orders for Glass bi:‘ Express will receive immediate attention. (Cases
to be let for Exhibitions, Fairs, etc. |

G. GREENLEAF & C0.,—WIRE WORKEERS,
And Manufaeturers of Wire Cioths, Foundry Riddles,

Iron Railings, Window Guards, Window, Coal and Sand Screens, Patent Barrel Coal Sieves,
Sparker Cloths, Flour Siev es, 1\10r=qmtn and Poultry Nettings, Sky-light Screens,
All kinds of Wire Work made to order.

5 HAYMAREKET SQUARE, (Near Charlestown Street,) BOSTON.




J. L LOUGE

FURNITURE DEALER. A Fine STOCK at
LOW PRICES. 259 Essex St.,, SALEM.

INDEX TO ADVERTISERS IN BOSTON, ETC.

American House. Page
Keeler & Pocock, 50 to 64 Hanover, Bos-
L1 S opp. 700

ue Glnss.
& CO. 83 Franklin,
R e b [

Anti
REDDIN G BAIR
Boston. . ;

vlls.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 a.nd 33 Purchase. 1112, 1113

Architects.
Lord & Fuller, 19 Exchangs pl. Boston. ..1039

REDDING, BA‘[RD& 00 83 Franklin,
. Boston....... . . Filie s wEs R RS "1116
Artificial kyes,
Lloyd Geoxge H. 357 Wn.shingﬁon, Bos-
.......... pernenesnsacesenessOPDs TOL
Artllu’ Stained Glass.
REDDING BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
' Bosto . 1116
s and Sailmalkers’ Su'pp!.lal.
Mn.rble, 357 Commercial, Bos-

Awni
Imprall
ton...
Babbitt Metnl.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112,1113
Bankers (In t Securities).
Towgr, Giddings & L.o 105 Devonshire,

OBLON.. o400 snseancnsnss P B &
Belt Manufacturers,

Brass Stamps for Gilding.
Davis & Waitt, 31 South, Boston.......... 28

Bridge and Wharf Bulilders.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112-1113
Brokers Investment Securities.

Tower, Giddings & Co 105 Devonshire,
Boston
Builders’' Hardware.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112-1113
Bullding Stone.
Rockport Granite Co. 27 Kilby, Boston ....
Cafe.
Hotel Eastern Oausaway cor. Canal, Bos-
ton. searsnssnsenesallll
c:ml« an(l Cu—d‘buaﬂl
Pulsifer, Jordan & Co. 183 to 193 Con-
gress, Boston........ . PR |

13-

110
Goldsmith W. F. &: Go. 2'?3 Union, Lynn 38.
Castings.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase...1112-1113

Cathedral Glass,
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,

Boston. ..ovuesrsgne ve .......1116
heck Prnlentorl
DlmondH C & Co. 22 Milk, Boston ..... 97

urch and Ornamental Windows.

Adams, Thomas B. Mfg. Co. 4 Hawley ....30 REDDING BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
Belting. BOBRON: s 3'assawnissins bmns s s sone wis 1116-
Emerson, George W. & Co. 533 Washing- Churches (mghun
0N, TIN5 i siissepevesinin vibs 512 | Godfrey Electric Construction Go 92
Bill Collectors. Franklin, Boston...... ........., .. 1115
Wllmm'th-Howard & 00 146 Franklin, Cleansers,

Boston.. S opp. T01

Boston Bolt Co 31 aud 33 Pumhase 1112-1113
ksmiths' Tongs.
Boston Bo'lt Oo 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112-1113
Blacksmiths' Tools
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Pumhase 1112-1113
Block Tin Pipe Manufacturer.
Boston Lead Mfg. Co. 162 (.rongress, Bos-
ton

Boat Builders’ Hattl.war
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112-1113
Bolts, Nuts, etc
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112-1113
Bonds and Stocks (agents).
New England Trust Co. 85 Devonshire,

BOBIOD. o vssnanssnssnass s A A e
Beokbinding.

Burlen Robert, 50 Arch, Boston..,....... 1115
Book Lettering and Stamping,
Burlen Robert, 50 Arch, Boston.......... 1115
Book Marbling and Edge Gilding,
Burlen Robert, 50 Arch, Boston........ 1115

'Bool. and Shoe Machinery.
Emerson Geo. W. & Co. 533 Wash1ugton,512

Boot and Shoe Shanks.
Peckham, J. E. & Co. 42 Lincoln, Boston 512
Box Manufacturer.

Dennison Mfg. Co: (paper), 26 Franklin,
B R e e —— 1114

Lewando’s French Dyeing and Cleansin
Establishment, 17 Temple pl. Bosgong 40

Coal and Sand Ser
Gmglm G. & Go 5 Haymari??&q Bos-
n Taneres i

Collem.n
Read’s Legal and Coilection Agency, 20
Devonshire, Boston.................. 1110

2 Wilmarth-Howard & Co. 146 Franklin,

BOBIOD. o0vnavmiion wmainsssi ssisi .opp. 701
Colonial Glass,
REDDING BAIRD & CO.83 Franklm,

olored Glass,
REDDING BAIRD&:CO SsFrsmkIm
Boston........oivviiiiiiiiinnnn 1116
Contractors.
Godfrey Electric Construct n
Franklin, Boston. . - w

Counters and Show Case:

Hughes, Albert E. 309 \’V:a,z;hmgt,onli Bos-
. 1 “. ................

REDBDGTaNG BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,

Decorators,

Lamprell & Marhle 357 Commerclal Bos-
L T LT T T 774

bifferential Hoists .

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113

Fine Decoralive Painting, E. N. BASSETT,

1 BENTLEY
STREET.
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THE NEW ENCLAND TRUST COMY,
85 DEVONSHIRE & 16 WATER STS., BOSTON.
Capital, $1,000,000. General Trust Fund, $1,000,000. Deposits, $14,0 0o

Is authorized to receive and hold money or property in trust or on deposit from Courts of Law
or Eqmty. Executors, Administrators, Assignees, Guardians, Trustees, Corporations and Individnals
t'will also act as Transfer Agent for Railroad and other Stock Corporations, and as Agent

for 'she purpose of issuing. registering or countersigning Bonds and Certificates of Stock.
Deposits may be made at any time, and interest will be allowed on l:lain balances of Five

Hundred Dollars and upwards.
It offers to the public the advantages of a Capital of One Million Dolln.rs. and a Guarantee

Fund of One Million additional. specially invested by requirements of its charter, and a perpe.t.ual
snccession. ZF-special attention 18 given to accounts with Ladies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS-WM. ENDICOTT, Jr., President, Chas. H. Dalton, Vlce-‘[’rast
Charles F. Choate, Vice-Prest., J. Lewis Stackpole. Vice-Prest., Amos. W. Stetson. Charles T. cm;-

James J. Storrow, Jacol Edwards, Edmund Dmﬁhr John F. Anderson, Alexander Cochrane
haﬁmme] Thayer, Frederick L. Ames, T. Jefferson Coolidee, Franklin Haven Jr., Robert Codman,
Henry C. Weston, Georga Dexter, Ronrer Wolcott, D. R. Whitney, Actuary. N. H. Henchman Sec-

BOSTON & PORTSTIONTH STEAISHP 0.

STEAMBOAT WHARYT, BEVERLY,
SNOW’S ARCH WHARF, 430 ATLANTIC AVE. BOSTON.
DAILY LINE BETWEEN ,

Beverly and Boston.

Freight Forwarded to all points at Lowest Rates.

Boston, Beverly and Salem Express will call for and deliver goods in Bos-
ton, Beverly and Salem.

ORDER BY TELEPHONE.

Steamer makes one round trip during the winter months and two round
trips during the summer months.

For time tables see newspapers.

We furnish prompt and reliable service.

A
.

W. E. PEARSON, General Managder.
W. A. McCRILLIS, Gen’l Adent.

T. B. ADAMS MFG CO.,

Manufacturers and Tanners of

Oak & Worsted Apron Leather.

Manufacturers of OAK BELTING AND
WORSTED APRONS.

Store and Office, 4 Hawley St., Boston.
Factory, Bass River Street, Beverly.



J. L. LOUGEE, FUSNERING: 250 R56% st SaLent.

INDEX TO BOSTON ADVERTISERS, ETC.

Dinners (Private). Page.

American House, 50 to 64 Hanover; Bos-
1 S opp. 700
Conomoe bottaga hssex, Masd, coociannnss 1083
tic Stained

'R.EDDING BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin
B 1116

Drill Rods.

Boston Bolt Co 31 and 33 Purchase 1112, 1113
Drilling Machines.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Drills.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Drop Forgings.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Dyexs (Silk Cotton, and Woolen).
Lewando’s French Dying and Cleansing
Establishment, 17 Temple pl. Boston. .
Eeelesiasticnl Stained Glass.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,.
BN, .. sencrames pemsmaisame: sakiede 1116
Electric Annuucintors
Godfrey Electric Construetion Co. 92
Franklin, Boston.. .avevevreiueins
Electric Bells.
‘Godfrey Electric Construction Co.
Franklin, Boston...v.veviveiene voes 1115
¥ lectric Gas Lighting.
Godfrey Electric Construction Co. 92

.40

L1115

Franklin, Boston.......ccovvrvrannns 1115

Enamel Glass.

REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,

BORBOR v v s s s S e 111
Engineers.
Godfrey Electric Construction Co. 92
Franklin, Boston............oeuvivns 1115
Envelapes.
Pulsifer, Jordan & Co. 183 to 193 Congress,
Bostoll.. . vovviineeinns teessaveenes 1110
EXpress.

American Express Co, 43 Franklin, Boston 16
Boston, Beverly and Salem, 4:0 A.t!antlc
R e e et 30
Eye Glasses.
Lloyd, George H. 357 Washington, Bos-
BB v simmn v win s s Jad e ass opp. 701
Eyes (Artificial'.
Lloyd, George H. 357 Washington, Bos-
L R R S P e opp. 701
Faectories fitted up.
Emerson, George W. & Co. 533 Washing-
ton, Ly‘nu ............................. 512
Field Glasses.
Lluyd George H. 857 Washington, Bos-
....................... opp. 701
gure Windows.
REDDING, BAI_RD& CO. 83 Franklin,
Bostor: o aaiiiniingi Sinaisas

1116

31
Galvanized Iron Pipe. Page
Braman, Dow & Co.3t0 6 Havmarket sq
Boston.....cooveiiernrscnanannas sesdl
Gas Pipe Mannmcture“.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
Bosbon.iviiiisars iasvsasne s e e 11
Glass Bullions (English).
0. 88

REDDING, BAIRD & C Franklin,
Bosbol s svs s v SR e +..1116
Glass Bulls' Eyes.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
BOBYON . v v s wrrmre s ew s

Glass Cutters and Engravers.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO 83 Franklin,
) - 1116
Glass Dealers.

REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin 6
111

1ass PDecorators,
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
Bust.on .............................. 1116
lass Ground and Cut.
REDDING BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
5 1116
!nss Jewels.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
Boston 11
x Glass (Porcelain).
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
BOSON. et vevruiiiiiitiiine i naanaan 1116
Glass Show Cases.
Hughes, Albert E. 309 Washington, Bos-

O0h: o s s S A i Ay s e e a e
Glass Signs
REDDING, BAIRD & CO 83 Franklin,
BOBEOUL, o oiiivs voisaiai o wbinine sioin s airm b5 400 1116

Glass Stainers.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
Bostom. ..o - 1116

Glass (Window). Tmporters and Dealers.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
1116

Giranite Works, )
Rockport Granite Co. 27 Kilby, Boston..... 13
Ground Glass,
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Frank]in,
Boaton .l SANGTT 1116
Hams snd Bacon.
North Packing and Provision Co. 33 No.

Market, Boston......... «v o0 cauas 1110
Hand Stamps, Self-inking.
Dimond H. C. & Co. 22 Milk, Boston, ..... a7

Handle Msnnfacturers.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase..1112,1113
aﬂlware Denlers.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase..1112, 1113
Hardware Manufacturers.
Boston Bolt (‘o 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112 1113

Files. Hardware.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 anli 33 Purchase.1112, 1113 | Boston Bolt CO -'.;IT and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
#gs. Herhb:
Lamprell & Marble, .55? (.rommercml Bos- Johnson A. C. Essex, '],ﬁa;s. ............. 1135
ton_ ............ i‘ .G.l ................ 74 Hiﬁgegi‘“ )
Flac N8, Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase..1112, 1113
REDDING BATRD & CO. 83 Franklin, " (Live and Dressed).
BOStom. .. .oeviiiii 1116 | North Packing and Provision Co. 33 No.
Foundry Riddles. Market, Boston.............. R b 1]
Greenlraf G. & Co. 5 Haymarket sq........ 28 ' Hotels.
Freight Carrlers. American House, 50 to 64 Hanover, Boston
Boston % Portsmouth Steamship Co. 430 | ™ "7 U L opp. 700
Atldntic l;tve ifxtm; ‘ .]; o 'f) ........... 30 | Conomo Cottage, Essex, Mass.... . .... 1083
| Lihgid (-] choo.
Perry, Geo. 8. & Co.. 73 Fulton, Boston. .1138 Hotet E‘."?tf‘fr.". c“sewaym mal . %111
Satlsf:wt Work Guaranteed.

E. N. BASSETT, PAINTER,

LEY STREET. ;: '}



32 BOSTON ADVERTISING DEPARTMENT.

Boston Lead Manufacturing Co.,

Si=—& OFFICHE, £~

COR. CONGRESS AND FRANEKLIN STREETS,
162 Congress Street, and 180 and 182 Franklin Street,

BOSTON, MASS.
SAMUEL LITTLE, President. WT1. J. BRIDE, Treasurer..

———MANUFACTURERS OF—

BOSTOIN STAR BRAND

PURE WHITE LEAD,

RED LEAD AND LITHARGE,

LEAD PIPE & SHEET LEAD,

PATENT TIN-LINED PIPE. PURE BLOCK TIN PIPE.
COPPER AND IRON PUMPS, SOLDER, ETC.

PG LEAD. PIG TIN.

Our Pure White Lead, both dry and ground in oil, we warrant to
be strictly pure, and guarantee that for Fineness, Body and Durability,
it is not surpassed by any Lead in the market.
We warrant our Red Lead and Lithargf; to be strictly pure and of
the finest quality.

Gold Medal Awarded by the Mass. Charitable Mechanic Asso'n.




P LOR, DINING and CHAMBER
FI%II:NITIJ'RE, at 259 Essex St., SALEM

Next to Barton
Sq. Chureh.

LOUGEE'S

INDEX TO BOSTON

Ilyparboll%v Le}?'?{c % t!’aga.

H. 357 Washington, Boston

Llo).? Georg\a ................ i .opp. 701

Incandescent Wireing.

Godfrey Electric Construction Co. 92

Franklin, Boston..... .c.ivencaenans 1115
Injectors.

Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.

BOREOI: ., 55w v e o e noaiara s na o aw 11

Inspectors [Boiler].
Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and In-
surance Co. 35 Pemberton sq. Boston.1115
Insarance Agents.
Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and In-
surance Co. 35 Pemberton sq. Boston.1115
Insurance Companies.
Citizens’ Mutnal Ins. Co. 8 Exchange pl.
BOBUOM. covevvesorssrsrarsnsssnssronss 1111
Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and In-
surance Co. 35 Pemberton sq. Boston.1115
Mass. Mut. Fire Ins. Co. 28 State, Boston.609
Investment Secavities.
Tower, Giddings & Co. 105 -Devonshire,
BOBLOM . . oues sisrscsasnosatrasnssnssss 1

Iron Building and BEridge Mannfrs
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase .1112, 1113
Iron Castings
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Pu.rchase 1112, 1113
Iron Columns.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase 1112, 1113
Iron Forgings.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112,
Irom Founders.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113

Iron Pipe.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq. i
B

1113

Iron Work.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Iron and Steel.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase..1112, 1113
Jack Screws.

Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112,

.‘la.panene Napkins.

Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston..1114

Jaweliers’ Boxes and Findings.

Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston..

1113

114

Labels.
Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston..1114
Ladder Manufactunrers—Iron.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Lard,
North Packing and Provision Co. 33 No.
Market, Boston....... R RS 1110
Law and Collections.
Wilmarth-Howard & Co. 146 Franklin,
f Boston ...... Coinenhe e aivee e ey opp. 701
(]g’a.t.ent )
emberton squa!e,
............................ 1
Lend Pipe.
Bostnn Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-

Lawyers
Clarke & Raymond 32
Beston

Chadwick Lead Works, 176 High, Boston.. 16
Lend Works.
Boston Lead MfgWCo 162 Congress, Boston 32
+ Chadwick Lead Works, 176 High, Boston.. 16
Leaded Glass.

REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,

BOROTL . sovs anrssvsnssssant sonssine
Leather Belting.
Adams Thomas B. Mfg. Co. 4 i{aw!ey

ADVERTISERS, ETC. 33

Leather Machinery. Page
Emerson, Geo, W. & Co. 533 Washington,
Lynn 512
Legnl and Collection Ageney.
Read’s Legal and Collection Agency, 20
Devonshire, Boston... .. 1110

Litharge.
Chadwick Lead Works, 176 High, Boston. 16
Machine Blacksmiths.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Machine Screws.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112, 1113
Machine Twist.
Brown L. D. & Son, 29 Lincoln, Boston. .
Machinery—Shoe.
Emerson George W. & Co. 533 Washmgh
bom, LiFIM . vuve suvisaisansnnsnssnan 512
Machintsts,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113
Machinists’ Sapplies,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112, 1118
. Malleable Iron.

502

1 | Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112, 11138

Manufocturers’ Suppliss
Boston Bolt Co, 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112, 1113

Manufacturing Companfes,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112, 1113
Marine Glasses.
Lloyd George H. 357 Washington, Boston
................................. opp. T01.
Marine Hardware.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113

Memorinl Windows,
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
BOBLOT . ian sranianuiinsisntanasvivng 1
Metal Stamps.
Dimond H. C. & Co. 22 Milk, Boston. .. ... 99T
Mill Supplies.
Adams Thomas B. Mfg. Co. 4 Hawley..... 30
Boston Bolt Co, 31 and 33 Purchase. 1112 1113
Money Ordera.
American Express Co. 43 Franklin, Bos-
- P e e Siadtesas 16
nl.
Johnson Abbott C of Easex .............. 1135

Nettings—Wosquito and Pnultry‘

Greenleaf G. & Co. 90 Union Boston...... 28
Numbering Machines,
Dimond, H. C. & Co. 22 Milk, Boston. ...997

Nuts and Bolts.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase.1112, 1113

01l Denlers.

Standard Oil Co. of New YorK........... 1070
pal Glass.
REDDING, BAIB.D & CO. 83 Franklfn
Boston.

Opalescent Glass.

REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
09

Boston .....c.ivien T LT T 1116
pera Glasses,

i Lloyd George H 357 Washington, Boston

................................ +.e..0pp. TO1
Opthalmiec Surgeons’ Orders.
Lloyd George H. 357 Washington, Boston

.................................. opp. T01
Optician.
Lloyd George H. 357 Washington, Boston
.......... sesiistasese sasesesssssOPP. TO1

Ornamental Glaes,

REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
Boston

1 BENTLEY
STREET.

E. IN. BASSETT, Hou;é and Sign Painter,



BARGAINSIN PARLOR and CHAMBER
SETS, at 259 & 261 Essex St., SALEM.

J. L. LOUGEE'S.

34 INDEX TO BOSTON

Paint Manufacturers. Page.
Boston Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-
BOML wouaineos A e R R R R 32
Pamphlet Blndlug.
Burlen Robert, 50 Arch, Boston .......
Paper Box Manufacturers.
Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston..1114
Paper ‘M‘a.nufa.cttuern.
Pulsifer, Ji o:dan & Co. 183 to 193 Congress,
Boston 1110

1115

Paper Ruler.
Burlen Robert, 50 Arch, Boston.......... 1115
Paper, Twine and Shanks.
Peckham J. E. & Co. 42 Lincoln, Boston. .512
Paper Warehouse,

Pulsifer, Jordan & Co. 183 to 193 Congress,

PoBEOIL i isvviianavminissiesdnins s 1110
Passenger Steamship.

Boston & Portsmouth Steamship Co. 430
Atlantic ave. Boston...........cuu.n.

Patent, Copyright and Trade Mark
w.

Clarke & Raymond, 32 Pemberton square,

BOBbON v nasanvsiassvaponises waspos 1109
Patent Solicitors and Experts.

Clarke & Raymond, 32 Pemberton square, o0

BoBtOn. c.cove sssav-nsrnnsnnnnsnaness
Gregory Geo. W. 34 School Boston...... 1109
Spencer A. H. 28 State, Boston.......... 1110

Paving Blocks.

Rockport Granite Co, 27 Kilby, Boston... 13
Pepsin (Manufrs.)
North Packing and Provision Co. 33 No.
Markes; BoBtOD. .vvesivissnsvansiis 1110
Pig Lead and Tin.
Boston Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-
7+ R T 32
Pipe Lead and Tin.
Chadwick Lead Works, 176 High, Boston. 16

Plumbers' Materials.
BoltcmLeadeg Co. 162 Congress, Bos-

Porcelain Glass.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklm,
BoBtON. covunnnrvisnnsrananisisnannan, 1116
Pork Packer,
North Packing and Provision Co. 33 No,
Market, Boston.........cooevne wuenn 1110
Practical Optician.
Lloyd George H. 357 Washington, Bos-
L R ERETET PR opp 701
Prescription Optician,
Lloyd George H. 357 Washington, Bos-
1 opp. 701
Private mnners—Spwiialty
American House, 50 to 64 Hanover, Bos-
e e A R e R opp. 700
Provisions—Salt.

North Packing and Pronsmn Co. 33 No.
) Market,
Provisions—Wholesale,

North Packing and Provision Co. 33 No.
Market, BOStON....cv. cevuvvrrnannn. 1110
Public Halls—Electric Lighting.
Godfrey Electric Construction Co. 92
Franklin, Boston................ ovne 1115

ADVERTISERS, ETC.

Pumps—Copper and Iron. Page.
Bost:g: Lead Mig. Co. 162 Congress, Bos- %

Puanching.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Railroad Securitles,
Tower, Giddings & Co. 105 Devonslnre.
BORbOHS 3 Sen s T o e 11
Railroad Spikes.
Boston Bolt Co 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Railroad Supplies,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
IRed Lead and Litharge.
Boston Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-
- RS R rl B e 32
Rent Collectors.

0 | Wilmarth-Howard & Co. 146 Franklin,

Bogton: ... i iirrseiivernsasess opp.
Rivets,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Roofing Siate..
Monson Maine Slate Co. 113 I)tavomshire,1

BOBUON. 0.y s 0ine e nionivimssressry sumasos
Rooms.
Hotel Eastern, Oausawa_y cor. Canal, Bos-
BOTL (x5 B T8 11

Rnbber Stamps.

Dimond H. C. & Co. 22 Milk, Boston..... 997
Rustless Iron Wnl.er Pipe.

Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.

BOBOOR vevisisivisnnnnnnsonsovonsnessus 11
Sage.
Johnson Abbott C. of Essex......c.evuuus 1135
Sailmakers.

Lamprell & Marble, 357 Commercial, Bos-

BOD ciie 40 chay eenisnnsirasnanane 774
School Furniture.
Perry Geo. 8. & Co. 73 Fulton, Boston....1138

Screens and Sieves,

32 | Greenleaf G. & Co. 5 Haymarket sq. Bos-

BOTL «n o o 0w mow B i b i NN (- Ta
Screws.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112 1113
Seal Presses.

Dimond H., C. & Co. 22 Milk, Boston.... 997
Sealing Wax. »
Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston...1114
Seitees.
Perry Geo. 8. & Co. 73 Fulton, Boston...1138
Sewing Silk.
Brown L. D. & Son, 29 Lincoln, Boston.. 502
Shafting, Hangers and Pulleys.
Emerson Geo, W. & Co. 533 Washingtor,
L¥ON, v vovn mmsannmnis wnwssussmen ssuds 512

Shanks—Shoe.

Peckham J. E. & Co. 42 Lincoln, Boston 512
Sheet Lead.

Bosmn Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-

Chn.dwmk Lead Works, 176 High, Bostcm
Ship Spikes.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 111‘* 1113
Shipping Tags.
Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston..1114

32
16

E. N. BASSET

PAINTER AND PAPER HANGER,

1 BENTLEY STREET.



J. L. LOUGE

FURNITURE DEALER.
LOW PRICES, 259 ESSEX ST., SALEM.

A FINE STOCK at

INDEX TO BOSTON ADVERTISERS, ETC. 35
Shoe Machinery Page. Stone Quarries.
Rockport Granite Co. 27 Kilby, Bosbon 18

Emerson George W. & Co. 533 Washing-
tom, Lynm...... cciovcinransnsneinnns 512
Shoe Shanks.
Peckham J. E. & Co. 42 Lincoln, Boston. 512
Shoe Silk.
Brown L. D. & Son, 29 Lincoln, Boston.. §
Show Cases and Connters.
Hughes Albert . 309 Washington, Bos-

11 S~ I S-Sl 28
Show Cases to let for Fairs, ete.
Hughes Albert E. 309 Washington, Bos-
R e S S R R ST 28
Siate Works.
Monson Maine Slate Co. 113 Devonshire,
BOBEOIE - wincginmmisiiaiie i mibaa s e 1063

Solder.
Chadwick Lead Works, 176 High, Boston.
Solicitors of Patents.
Clarke & Raymond, 32 Pembeiton sq.
BOBEGEL o s i iiim v m n s aia s 1109

16

Gregory Geo. W. 34 School, Boston....... 1109

Spencer A. H. 28 State, Boston.......... 1110
Spectacles.

Lloyd George H. 357 Washington, Boston.

................................. opp. 701
pike Manufacturers.
Boston Bolc Go 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Spring Cotters.
Bostcm Bult Co. .31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
pring Manufa.turers.
Boston Bu]t Co. dl and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Stai ed and Cut Glass.
REDDING BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
BOBEON . o viis v wwsunsvnsmass yammsivens s 1116
ﬁtumps—ﬂelf Inking.
. & Co. 22 Milk, Boston.

Dimond H. . 997
Stamps—Shoe Lining.
Dimond H. C &Lo 22 Milk, Boston.... 997
Stamps and Stencll‘i—shoe.
Davis & Waitt, 31 South, Boston........ 30

Steam l‘ltmers
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
Boston.....ciovvens .. 11
Steam, Gas and Water Pipe.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
Boston.
Steam Heating Apparatns.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
BOBEON,: 2o s i i b e
Steam Jncket Kettles.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
BOBHOH: svs s aaeinsssnn, vavissirmiewiss
Steam FPumps.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to t Haymarket sq.
BOSTON. v usenenesenansnensasaeanns
Steam Hadintors.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket #q.
BOSOIL. 1. 14 venesenenennsinnennns ven
Steam and Water Gauges.
Bra‘nan, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
AVORLOMEy » iv i aininmn s wain s alele s amia e
L Steamship Company.
Boston & Portsmouth Steamship Co. 430
‘Atlantic ave. Boston......coveveuenss 30
Steel Castings.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Steel Letter Cniting

Dav 3 & Waitt, 31 S8outh, Boston.. 30
Steel Shanks.
Peckham J, . & Co. 42 Li ncoln, Boston.. 512

Steel Stamps for Boot and Shoe Bottoms.
Davis & Waitt, 31 South, Boston.......

Stencil Plates for Bool: and Shoe Oases
Davis & Waitt, 31 South, Boston..

Stone Tools and Hamm
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Pnrcha.se, 1112 1118
Stove Bolts.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1118
Streel Railway.
Lynn & Boston Railroad Co. Currier 'bldg

Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Esrank]in. Boston...1114
Taps.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 43 Purchase, 1112,1113
Tents.
Lamprell & Marble, 8357 Commercial, Bos-
e e e | T 74
Thentre Lighting.
Godfrey Electric Construction Co.
Franklin, Bostol. ....vuvserienncnnas 1115
Tin Lined Lead FPipe.

Boston Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-
ton

- Tin Pip
Chadwick Lead Works, 176 High, Boston.
Tissue Paper.
Dennison Mfg. Co. 26 Franklin, Boston..1114
Transfer Agents, Stock.
New England Trust % 85 Devonshire,
b3 T e N e P R P P
Trimo Wrenches
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Trust Company
New Engla.nd Trust Co. 85 Devonshn'e, )
Boston. . 30

16

. Twist Drills,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
pholsterers.
Goldsmith W. F &. Co. 278 Union, Lynn. 38
Valves, —Steam Waler, and Gas.
Braman, Dow & Co. 3 to 6 Haymarket sq.
BOBEI. ooy wwsinaes el s
Venetian Glass.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
BOBEOR. ccvsuvevsrscsnasnssrsnesssnsnn 1116

Vises.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Washers.
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
White Lead.
Boutun Lead Mfg. Co. 162 Congress, Bos-
C‘badwwk Lead Works, 176 High, Boston. 13
Window Gless.
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 83 Franklin,
1116

BOBOD. o« cvevevnn sias sun sessans
Window Guards.
Green]eaf Gr & Co. b Haymarket sq Bos-
ton ... . sennn

W’ludow Shm‘lea.
Goldsmith W. F. & Co. 273 Union Lynn 38
Windows,— Church and
REDDING, BAIRD & CO. 8.5 Frankhn.
Boston... .. R e b 3 |
era Glotlu
Greenleaf G. & Co. 5 Haymarket sq. Bos-
BODL Jiuive avavsransannens savsnannnas
Wire ‘Denlerl
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113
Wire Workers.
Greenleaf G. & Co. 5 Haymarket sq. Bos-
1|+ R e A
Worsted Aprons

30 | Adams Thomas B. Mfg. Co. 4 Hawley... 30
Wrenches,
Boston Bolt Co. 31 and 33 Purchase, 1112,1113

STAININ G OF WOODWORK
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J. L. LOUGEE'S

REMOVALS, ADDITIONS, ETC.

Removals, Additions, etc., too late for insertion in the
General Directory.

These changes will be of much benefit if wrilten in their proper places in the body of

the book.
SALEM.

Allen George L. broker, 252 Essex, room
1, b. 208 do.

Atwill Isaac, died Oct. 22, 1802

Balcomb Edwin B. removed office to Neal
and Newhall Bldg. [21 do.

Barbin Francois C. grocer, 19 Palmer, h.

Barnett TI’agtggk jr. 150 Derby, died Nov.

1
L]

Barrett John P. removed »to 14 Woodside

Bessom Edward F. shoe cutter, h, 6 Curtis

Bickford John H, removed office to Neal

and Newhall Bldg.

Breed Percy S. last maker,'h. 28 Hancock

Brennan Bartholomew F. 12 Sylvan, re-
moved to 23 Mason

Thomas F. rear 30 Prospect, died Oct,

29, 1892

Brown Geo. A. removed to 6 Fairfield

Carroll Henry A. morocco dresser, b. 11
Japonica

Chandler James P. died Nov, 3, 1892

Chapman Harriet P. widow of William H.
died Deec. 13, 1892

Christopher Benjamin 8. attendant at
Salem almshouse

Clark Charles A. clerk, 232 Essex, h. 43
Hathorne [Blaney

Conroy John J. 26 Turner, removed to 4

Cressey Arthur H. currier, b. 53 Wash-
ington ; |1892

Cronan Patrick J. 27 Silver, died Nov. 26

Cunning 8Geo:'ga, 65 Mason, died Dec. 6,
1802

Cushman George L. removed to Medford
Deasy Dennis, laborer, h. 31 Daniels
Dennis Charles S. magnetic physician, 81
Washington, room 5, h. at Bev-
erly
Dodge L. F. Mrs. removed from 1 Central
to 20 Prescott
Doolen James P. died Dec. 6, 1802
Fanning Samuel, died Dec. 17, 1892
Fitzgerald Mary, widow of William, died
Dec. 13. 1892
OWLER & WHELTON (Fred H. Fow-
ler and David G. Whelton) gro-
eries and provisions, 13 North.
See page 992
Friend Lucy E. widow, died Nov. 9, 1892
Harrington Caroline E. widow of Samuel
B. died Nov. 25, 1892
ARRIS HERMAN., dry goods, cloth-
ing, ete. 51 Harbor, h. 1 Salem.
See page 1088 1892
Hayes Maurice, 10 Osgood, died Deec. 8,
Hearley James, removed to 37 Prospect
Hennessey Eugene, 30 Myrtle, died Dec.
, 1892 [1892
Hodgkins Lucy M. Miss, died Nov. 25,

OSMAN JOSEPH P. grocer, 18 Boston,

b. 11 Pingree. See page 984
Hutchings Charles W. 23 Buffum,. died
Nov. 24, 1892 [Federal

Hutchinson M. F. Mrs. removed to 114
AMES ALGERNON, caterer, con-
fectioter and dining rooms, 256

gEgs‘fex, rooms 16 Lynde. Sce page
Kimball James S. shoe laster, b. 86 La-
fayette |1892

Lakeman Lucinda Miss, died Nov. 17,
McCarthy Danicl J. 2 Harrison ave. died
Nov. 22, 1802 [Beverly
McConnell Jacob, 8 Downing, removed to
McNally James, h. 81 Highland ave.
MeNiff Patrick, shoe manufacturer, 58
Lafayette. h, 17 Vale
Maguire Patrick J. removed to 21 Northey.
Moulton Jay H. removed Salem office to
5 Norman; Boston office to 106
State [1892
Mulcahy Daniel. 22 Varney, died Dec. 9,
Nutter, Harrie Y. removed to Hartford
Fatterson William H. removed to 87

North
Pedrick Horace N. starter, N. S. R. Co. h.
27 Boardman

BEVERLY.
Anderson Horatio A. removed to New-
buryport b 19 Bow

Bell Erpest F. (L. G. Straw & Co. Salem),
Beverly Citizen sold to Charles A. King
Brown Henry W. died Oct. 25. 1802
Claflin Bros. (John H. & Edward)., ma-
chinists, 54 Railroad ave. |Wash.
Cohoon Edward S. removed to Seattle,
Colby Charles, removed to 46 Cabot
Geo. A. removed to Lynn
Creesy & Obear dissolved; Jos. W. Obear
. continues
Davis & Morgan, removed to Lynn
Day & Kimball (Louis W. Day and Hiram
Kimball, jr.), plumbers, 91 Park
Dodge H. Elvin, removed to Dorchester
Endicott Robert R. Jr. died Sept. 7, 1892
Estes Edward E. groceries and provisions,
_ Smith bik. Cabot
Fisher Lillie F. Miss, died Sept 23, 1802
Flint M. Osgood, removed to Salem
Foster Bros. removed to Park cor.
Pleasant
Grady John F, tailor, Lunt Blk.
Green Henry L. apothecary, 128 Calit
Gwinn William H. died Oct. 21, 1802
Haskell Albert, removed to Manchester
Alvina, widow of John O. died Oect.
22, 1892
Haskell Ulysses G. removed to 66 Cabot

Grainingby £, N; BASSETT and Glazing,

1 BENTLEY
STREET,



RELIABLE GOODS AT

LOUGEE'S,

259 and 261 ESSEX

LOWEST PRICES AT ST., SALEM.

REMOVALS, ADDITIONS, ETC. 37
Hatch Abigail Miss, died Sept. 14, 1802 Chaplin Sally, widow of William B. died
Hathaway Ephraim, died Sept. 5, 1802 Oct. 8, 1892

Hinkley J. H. & Co. dissolved; S. T.
Thacher Jr. continues
Kenney James, fish market, Cabot cor.
Judson [Lathrop
Killam Lizzie, Miss, kindergarten, 53
Lally Thomas J, removed to Salem
Lamson Charles A removed to 4 High-
land ave.
Lefavour Naney, widow of John, died
Oct. 8, 1892
& Lamson (F. G, Levavour and Charles
A. Lamson), wholesale hardware,
141 Cabot [1892
Livingston Eliza L. Mrs. died Sept. 25,
Macauley Arthur D. died Sept. 1, 1892
Newhall Walter R. h. 8 Cole
O'Leary Henry P. boot and shoe dealer,
90 Cabot
Ordway O. O. Rev. h. 183 Bridge
Parker W. Thornton, physician, 59 Loth-
rop, h. do.
Porter Francis E. died Oct. 6, 1892
Nellie . Miss, died Dec. 12, 1802
Potter Jesse S. railway postal clerk, h. at
) Foster’s Corner, No. B.
Preston Mary H. widow of Nehemiah,
- died Nov. 12, 1892
Roberts Stephen W. died Sept. 19, 1892
Robertson John R. died Nov. 27, 1802
Rogers Eben, h. 21 Chase
Russell, William. died Nov. 24, 1892
Sheldon Etta, Miss, kindergarten, Endi-
cott bldg.
Smith Hannah P. widow of Eben, died
Nov. 15, 1892
Smith Mary E. widow of Warren A. died
Sept. 10, 1892 |ton
Stickney S. L. druggist, Cabot cor. Knowl-
Stone Charles A. removed to 73 Hale
Stone John W. removed to E. Lothrop
Taylor Horace B. (Portland, Me.), s, .
56 Lothrop
Thissell George H. & Co. removed to
Park cor. Pleasant
Turnor Harry L. removed to Troy, N. Y.
Walker Herbert F. removed to Lynn
Wallis Betsey, widow of Calvin, died Dec.
22, 1892
Kilham & Bray dissolved; J. A. Wallis
& Co. continue
Webber Louis D. removed to 22 Bartlett
Wells Etta, widow of Charles B. b. 252
Rantoul
Whidden Frances Mrs. h. 21 Broadway
Whipple Alonzo L. removed to Colon st.

. DANVERS.

Arnstrong William, removed to Peabody
Baychelder Priscilla H. widow of D. H.
I died Nov, 11, 1892
Bennett Amos, clerk at J. O. Perry's
Bernard B. & Co. dissolved; Bernard,
Friedman & Co. continue

Black Salome Miss, died Sept. 24, 1892
Bradstreet Herbert B. removed to Chester

ave.
Cahill John J. died Nov. 4, 1892

Colbert Thomas, died Sept. 4, 1892

Dodge Almira, widow of Benjamin C.
died Dec. 4, 1892 [

Fowle Lydia, widow Samuel; died Nov.

French Fred U. & Co. shoe jobbers, Red
Men’'s blk. T.

Frost Alfred A. removed to Cheever st.

George J. N. jr. shoemaker, h. Conant st.

Gifford James E. died Dec. 4, 1892

Hoar John, died Sept. 29, 1802

Hoffman Walter G. removed to High st.

Jones George H. died Nov. 17, 1892

Kennedy Elizabeth H. widow of James,
died Dec. 21, 1802

Lacroix Joseph, died Sept. 29, 1802

Macauley John J. butter and egg pedler,
Water, D, Port

Moores John H. removed to Berry st.

Pitman Charles W. removed to Peabody

Pray Regﬁ}: B. given up busiress in Perley

Putnam Augustus, died Oct. 6, 1892

Regan J. H. & Co. dissolved; James H,
Regan continues

Richards Osgood, died Oct. 17, 1892

Robinson Isabel A. Mrs. removed to
Providence, R. 1.

Ross Joseph B. died Oct 30, 1802

Somes Edgar R. removed to Chelsea _

Southwick Horace A. removed business
to Peabody

Townsend F. H. fish market, Cottage ave.

Verry Caroline H. Miss, died Sept. 17, 1892

Ware Samuel H. removed to Centre opp.
Hobart

Weston George R. removed to Salem

Whitehouse Joseph G. died Sept. 14, 1892

Wholley Daniel C. removed to Salem

Willard ]l;! orine School changed to Willard

al

MARBLEHEAD.

Bailey James S. resigned as lighthouse
keeper and succeeded by Mr. Holt
of Boston

Barry Elizabeth, widow of David H. died
Nov. 24, 1892

Blaney Nathaniel R. boot and shoe dealer,
Washington cor. Mason

Broughton Frank M. and Edgar A. Mar-
shall, printers, Washington cor.
State |lington

Clark Nathaniel R. provisions, 34 Wash-

Coats Geo. E. at Milford, N. H.

Collyer Frank, died Nov. 16, 1892

Davis William H. died Deec. 17. 1802

Dixie Eliza, widow, died Dec. 10, 1892

Doliber Polly, widow of Thomas, died
Nov. 4, 1802

Foster Charles O. (s. r.), died Nov. 7, 1802

Gallagher Maria L. widow of John, died
Oct. 14, 1892

Goss Martha A. widow of James G. died

. Sept. 18, 1892

Graves George P. gents’
Rechabite blk.

Hamelin Louis J. jr. died Oct. 23, 1892

furnishings,

IF YOUR HOUSE
OR EOOMS NEED

PAINTING call on E, N, BASSETT.
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Homan John, died Nov. 25, 1802

Hooper Josaph B. 2nd, and William, shoe
mfrs. Front st, Lcoln st.

Knight Benjamin F. H. removed to Lin-

George, died Dec. 9, 1802 I1, 1892

O’'Brien Ellen, widow of John, died Oct.

Peach Hannah A. widow of Thomas J.
died Oect. 11, 1892

Salkins Richard E. died Dec. 18, 1892

Sarah A. Mrs. died Dec. 1802

Shaw L. M. Mrs. button hole stitching,
Stacy st.

Shepard Warren S. died Nov, 17, 1892 [st.

Smith Benjamin P. removed to Mechanics

Stacey Benjamin F. groceries and pro-
visions, Hooper st.

Stevens William, died Oct. 22, 1802

Trefry Sarah, widow of Samuel 3. died
Oct. 22, 1892

Wardwell Edwin R. removed to Salem

Wheelock Adelia Miss, boarding house
and restaurant, near Town Hall

PEABODY.

Ballard Charles, removed to Salem
Butler Margaret Mrs., removed to 2 Mt.
Vernon

Collins Jeremiah, died Nov. 26, 1892
John, died Dec. 16, 1892

Dalton William, died Oct, 22, 1892

Donohue Michael, removed to Ipswich

Forrest Irving M. removed to 9 Holten

Frothingham C. B. Dr. removed to 40 Main

Griffio Michael, died Sept. 27, 1892

REMOVALS, ADDITIONS, ETC.

Holman George, died Oct. 8, 1892

Howard Ezra M, (McCormac & Howard),
40 Lowell, h. at Danvers

Jacobs George H. removed residence to
Barton sq. Salem

King Eben U. died Nov. 15, 1892

Lord Samuel D. b. 5 Andover

McCormac Wilfred H. (McCormae & How-
ard), 40 Lowell, b. 54 do.

¢CORMAC & HOWARD,

and sign painters, 40 Lowell.
page 861.

Meade James P. groceries and provisions,
356 Midway, h. do. Main

Murray Margaret J. Mws, dressmaker, 76

Osborn Rachel L. Miss, died Oct. 24, 1892

Osgood William H. removad to Marlboro

Peabody Reporter sold to Wm. W. Wood

Poor George H. Leather Co. 9 Webster

Richards Nahum R. wholesale produce,
Caller st. Shea continues

Shea & Cassidy dissolved; Jeremiah F.

Smiley Asa B. disposed of Caller st. stable
to J. II. Smith and B. C. Smiley

Swanton Diana. died Oct. 16, 1892

Wallace H. O. pastor Baptlst chureh, h.
Cottage [145 Lowell

Walton & Ferrin, morocco dressers, rear

". JARREN JAMES A. house and sign

painter, 3 Fountain, h. 15 Goldth-
wait pl.  See page 864

Warren & Jordan dissolved

Wilson Clark, died Oct. 25, 1892 Ogort.er

Wood William W. editor of Peab ¥ Re-

carriage
See

PRESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES.

George Washington, 1789 to 1797.

John Adams, 1797 to 1801.

Thomas Jefferson, 1801 to 1809,

James Madison, 1809 to 1817.

James Monroe, 1817 to 1825,

John Quiney Adams, 1825 to 1829.

Andrew Jackson, 1829 to 1837.

Martin Van Buren, 1837 to 1841.

William Henry Harrison. (Died April 4,

1841.) Suceeeded by

John Tyler, April 4, 1841 to 1845,

James Knox Polk, 1845 to 1849,

Zachary Taylor, 1849. (Died July 9, 1850.)
Succeeded by

Millard Fillmore, to 1853.

Franklin Pierce, 1853 to 1857.

James Buchanan, 1857 to 1861. .

Abraham Lincoln, 1861, (Died April 13,
1865.) Succeeded by

Andrew Johnson, April 15, 1865 to 1869,

Ulysses S. Grant, 1869 to 1877.

Rutherford B. Hayes, 1877 to 1881.

James A. Garfield. (Died Sept. 19, 1881.)
Succeeded by

Chester A. Arthar, 1881 to 1885.

Grover Cleveland, 1885 to 1889.

Benjamin Harrison, 1889 to 1893.

W. F. GOLDSMITH & CO.,

—z—— DEALERS IN.—~gv—

CARPETINGS, DRAPERIES, UPHOLSTERY GUOL

WINDOW SHADES, Etc.

273 UNION STREET and 16 BUFFUM STREET,

LYNN,

MASS.

E. N. BASSET

PAINTER AND PAPER HANGER,

1 BENTLEY STREET.
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BUILDINGS, HALLS. ETC.

Acadamy Hall, 157 Essex
Almshouse, Salem Neck
Armory “Lizht Infantry " 12 Washington gq.
Armory *“Salem Cadets,” 136 Essex
Asiatic Building, 125 Washington
Bertram Home for Aged Men, 70 Derby
Bowker Place, 150 Essex
Browae's Block, 224 Essex .
Cate’s Block, 69 to 73 Washington
Cate’s Hall, 71 Washington
City Hall, Washington near Essex
City Orphan Asylum, 215 Lafayette
City Scales, 169 Bridge
County Court Houses, Federal e. Washington
County Jail, foot of 8t. Peter
Creamer’'s Block, and Hall, Essex
Custom House, Derby p. Derby Wharf
District Court, 193 Washington
Downing’s Block, 175 Essex
East India Marine Hall, 161 Essex
Exi'lgg‘:;gtt Buildings, 240 MKssex and 94 Wash-
n
Essex Institute, 132 Essex
Fraunklin Place, 10 and 12 Washington square
Garduer Building, 208 to 212 Essex
Grand Army Hall, 17 St. Peter
Hale’s Building, 228 Essex
Hamilton Hall, 7 Cambridge
Hawthorne Building, Washington ¢. Dodge
Holyoke Building, 114 Washington
Home for Aged Women, 114 Del't;g
uilding

Lynde Block, 145 Essex

Market House. Derby square

Manstield Building, 201 mssex

Masonic Hal., 81 Washington

Maynes Block, 202} Essex

Mechanic Hall, 285 Essex

Museum. 161 Kssex

Neal & Newhall Block, Essex cor. Washington

Newcomb Building, 3 to 7 Central

Normal School, Broad eor. Summer

Northey Building, 106 Washington

Odd Fellows’ Halls, 81 and 125 Washington

Odell Block, 62 to 66 Washington

0.U. A. M. Hall. 1756 Essex

Peabody Academy of Science, 161 Essex

Peabody Building, 126 Washington

Perley Block, 252 Essex

Pheenix Building, and Hall, 41 Lafayette

Plummer Farm sSchool, Winter Island

Plummer Hall, 134 Essex

Police Station. 11 Front

Post Office. 1 8 Washington

Price Building, 237 Essex

Public Library, 370 Essex

Salem Athensum, 134 Essex

Salem Fraternity R.oms, 175 Essex

Salem Hospital, 31 Charter

seaman’s Orphan and Children’s Home, 7 Car-
penter

Studio The, 2 Chestnut

Temperance Hall, 47 Warren

Howard Hail, in Mechame Hall Town Hall, Derby square

Kinsman Block, 81 Washington West Block, 185 Essex

Lawrence Place, Front cor. Washington Working Women’s Bureau, 12 Elm

Liberty Hall, 62 North Young Men’s Christian Ass'n  Room~
Lyceum Hall, 35 Church ! Central 3

Adamanta Mfg. Co., Salem Neck
Almshouse, near Almshouse
Brown’s, 50 North

Central, 117 Derb

Clark’s, 20 Peabody

Collins Bros., 72 North

Derby, 109 Derby, opp. Custom House
Fairtield's, 183 Derby and 60 Central
Hami.ton & Balcomb’s, 17T Derby
Jones's, 173 Derby

Lane’s, 57 Union

Langmaid’s, 197 and 207 Derby

Manning’s, 169, 135, 187, 191, 193 Derby
Peabody’s, 165 Derby

rennsylvania Pier, Derby, opp. Webb-
Phillips, 33 Derby

Pickering’s. 17 Peabody and 63 Union
Putnam’s, 155 Derhy

Ropes’s, 125 and 183 Derby .
Salem Gas Co.'s, near Essex Bridge
Seccomb 0il Company’s, foot Harbor
Union, Union near the bridge
Very’s, 113 Derby

thpp]a’s, 115 Derby

: VILLAGES, HILLS, ETC.

Carltonville, part of Ward 8ix near Oak and | Lookout Hill, Highland Ave.
Flint sts,

nt 8
Ga.sr.l}e?h HIi{ll, at june, of Ocean Ave. and B. &

Fort Lee, left of Fort Ave. near Willows
Fort Pickering, Winter Island

Gallows or Witch Hill. west of Boston street
Juniper Point, Salem Neck, near Willows
Kernwood, North Salem, at end of Sargent st.
Ledge Hill, Grove st. opp. Cemetery

Legg's Hill, off Loring Ave.

Mason Hiil, off Mason st.at Myrtle

Nauvoo, portion of Ward 3, near Mill Pond

Neck, at eastern end of »alem

North Salem, ail of Ward 6

South Salem, all of Ward 5

Unionville, portion of North Salem, at Grove,
Philiips and Irving sts.

Willows, eastern end of Balem Neck

Winter Island, south of Salem Neck

STAINING OF WOODWORK
A SPECIALTY, BY

E. N. BASSETT,

1 BENTLEY
STREET.
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SPECIALTIES : EMPORIUM
Open Kettle 1czlen- OF
dered Leaf Lard. DELIG“MES,

Electric Sausages.

And Fine Porcine ||
Productions from
Creamery Fed-
Spring Pigs.

Cooked Ham
|| Tongue and Corned
Beef of our own

Preparation.

—
—_—

C——— ESTABLISHED 1829. “%¢r—c—x"

LARGEST IN AMERICA!

FANCY DYEING,
'RENCH ¢ CLEANSING,

resses Dyed or Cleansed Whole, Men’s Clothing Dyed or Cleansed Whole,

.feathers, Gloves, Curtains, Draperies, Laces and all
Materials Cleansed or Dyed.
BLANKETS CLEANSED TO LOOK LIKE NEW FOR $1.00 PER PAIR.

LEWANDO’S "si sasushmenr.
17 TEMPLE PLACE, BOSTON.:

BRANCH OFFICES:
New York Ciry—731 Sixth Ave, below 42d St. 1119 Ninth Ave., cor. 73d St. 276 Celumbus
Avenue. 435 1-2 Lexivgton Avenue. cor. 44th.

Providence, R. I., 271 Westminster 8t. Newport, R, [., 327 T'hames 8t. Boston, {(Highlands) .
2206 Washington 8t. Boston, (Sonth) 393 Broadway. Cambridge, Mass., 412 Harvard St.
Lynn, Mass., 3 Market St. 1350 A Beacon St., Brockline. Watertown, Msss., Galen 8¢,




Visit J. L. LOUGEE'S **

RNITURE ROOM%

259 and 261

ESSEX ST., SALEM.

Historical and Interesting Events of Salem and
Adjoining Towns.

SALEM.
1626 TO 1890.

{Copyright, 1892, by Henry M. Meek. All rights reserved against publication by any other person.)

1626.

Salem, then called Naumkeag, first set-
tled by Roger Conant, John Woodbury,
John Balch, Peter Palfrey, and others.

1628.

Sept. 6. Arrival of Capt. John Endicott

with a company of about one hundred.

1629.

It was the rule of every inhabitant of the
plantation to cease from labor at 3
o’clock Saturday afternoon, and make
preparation for the Sabbath.

Darby Fort erected at Naugus Head.

April 30. Captain Endicott appeinted
Governor of the Plaqft?tion.

June 29. Arrival of Rev. Francis Hig-
ginson, Rev. Samuel Skelton and a com-
pany of about three hundred and eighty.

August 6. A church is established, the
first organized Congregational Church
in the country.

1630.
June 12. Acrrival of Gov. John Winthrop
with the charter.
August. Lady Arbella Jobnson, a daugh-
ter of the Earl of Lincoln, died here.
A:Sgnst 6. Rev. Mr. Higginson died, aged

1631.
Roger Williams came to Salem from Bos-

ton.
Aunguost. Indian alarm.
1634.

The congregation having worshipped from
1629 in an unfinished building of one
story, agreed with Mr. Norton to build
a suitable meeting house, not to cost
more than £100.

August 2. Rev. Mr. Skelton died.

Qet. 20. Six Salem people in a canoe up-
set near Kettle Island and five drowned.

12th,month, “Its agreed that the townes
neck of land shalbe preserved to feed
the cattle on the Lords dayes and there-
fore particular men shall not feed theire
goates there at other tymes, but bring
them to the (hill?) that grasse may
grow against the Lords dayes.”

1 1635.
The township of Salem at this time in-
cluded Salem, Beverly, Danvers, Man-

chester, Marblehead, Middleton, Pea-’

body, and a part of Topsfield, Wenham,
and Lynn.
Oct: 6. Arrival of Hugh Peters.
1636.

First meeting house erected.

June. Assembling of the first Quarterly
Court.

July 9. Visit of Sir Henry Vane, the new

governor of the Colon{.
Dec. 26. Ferry toBGeger y from the Neck.
1637

June 1. Severe eart.hq-uake.
Sept. 25. Ferry to Naugus Head from
Turner’s lane; sll)é?édoned about 1785.

Glass works were erected off Boston st.
previous to this year; probably the first
in New England.lsag

First record of tanning business. Phile-
mon Dickerson is granted
make tan-pits and to dress goat-skin.
and hides.”

21st of 11th mo. “Granted to Roger Co-
nant, the son of Roger Conant, be
the first borne child in Salem the som
20 acres.”

1641.

First free school in Salem.
1643.
May10. Wenham set off and incorporated.

1644,
25th of 1st mo. ‘It is ordered that every
inhabitant in the towne shall procure a
ladder for his house, before the xxmijth
day of the 4th moneth next upon the
aine or penaltie of five shillings for de-
ect heerof.”
7th of 5th mo. *‘‘Ordered that twoe be
appointed every Lord’'s day to walk -
forth in time of God’s worship, to take
notice of such as either lye about the
meeting-howse, without attending to
the word or ordinances, or that lye at
home or in the fields, without giving
good account thereof, and to take the
names of such persoms, and present
them to the magistrate whereby they
may be aacording‘lié)moaadsd against.”

1

Way laid out to Winter Island.
May 14. Manchester set off and incor-
porated.

E. 'N. BASSETT,

PAINTER AND PAPER HANGER,

1 BENTLEY STREET.
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1648-9.

March 12. “Its ordered that Marble
Head, with the allowance of the gen’all
Court, shall be a towne, and the bounds
to be the utmost extent of that land
which was Mr. Humphries’ farme and
sould to Marble Head, and soe all the
neck to the sea, reserving the disposing
of the ferry and appoynting of the ferry
man to Salem.”” ‘T'he town contained
44 families.

1650.
Sept. 22. Brethren at Bass Riyer, Bever-
ly, have liberty to obtain a minister.
Oct. 38. Topsfield set off and incorpor-
ated.

1652.
A captain was fined for sailing on the
Sabbath.
1655.

May 17. Winter Island appropriated for
use of the fort; called “Kort William”
in 1699.

May 17. Burial place laid out at the hill
above Francis Law’s house. Broad st.

ground.
1657.

The Quakers began to arrive, and in 1658
the first law of penalty of death upon
them was enacted, and in 1661 eighteen
of them were publicly punished in
Salem.

8th of 4th mo. “Itis ordered that if any
inhabitant within this Jurisdicion of

Salem shall at any time after the date

" :aof receive or take in any fforayner

«pon any pretence whatever without

approbation of the selectmen shall pay

for everie weekes continuance twentie
shillings per weelég.;
1

June 29. Court pum‘sf:ad people for at-
tending Quaker naaet,ing.
1659

Dec. 23. Rev. Edward Norris died.
1660

Baker's and Misery Islands granted to
Salem by Legislature.

Aug. 29. Rev. John Higginson ordained
minister of the Fil;éi Church.

1664,
Mill Bridge, over South River, built about
this time.

1665.
March 15. Jobhn lligéi_iuott died.
1.

July 4. Dismissal of Brethren from First
l(épurch to found a church at Bass
iver.

1668.

Beverly, originally called “Cape Ann
Side’ and *"Bass River,” set off and in-
corporated.

1670.

Second meeting house erected on same
spot as first.
1672.

March 22, Permission for ministry at
Salem Village.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

1674.
June 5. CaptainW?égebr Price died aged 61.

Sept. 18, Capt. Taomas Lathrop of Bev-
erly and seventy men were killed by the
Indians, at Bloody Brook (now Deer-
field.

Dec. 1. Capt. Joseph Gardner and six
others killed at the Narragansett swamp-

fight.
1677.
First Court house built.
1680

Nov. 14. A blazing star appeared and
continued until Feb. 10th, causing great
alarm.

1681.

June 28. William Hawthorne died lately,
aged 73, having been in the town since
1636. .

1683.

Feb. 7. Ordered that Marblehead, Bever-
ly, Gloucester, Ipswich, Rowley, New-
bury and Salisbury, belong to the Salem
port of entry.

A prison built near corner of Federal and
St. Peter streets; 20 feet square and 13-
feet stud.

Ten pérsons had liberty to erect wharves
at Winter lsland.l .

685.

Jan, 6. Capt. George Curwen died, aged
74, who came in 1638; and in 1688, Jan.
20, Hon. William Browne, aged 81, who
arrived in 1635; these were the most.
noted persons in }léseatown.

Clergymen first authorized to solemnize
marriages; authority continued by Act
of 1692,

Oct. 11. Deed of Salem given by the In-
dians for £40. Original deed now hangs.
on the walls of Cigggﬂa}.l.

1

Nov. 10. Persons dismissed to constitute
a Church at Salem Village, now Dan-
vers, where they had preaching years
before.

1692,

This year is memorable for the prevalence
of the witcheraft delusion, twenty per-
sons being tried and executed; though
designated ‘‘Salem Witcheratt,’”” it had
pervaded other places previously to its
appearance herel.

02-3.
June Naval cffice established here
for Salem and Marblehead.
1

695.
May 8. Two men killed and 18 wounded
by careless overcha;_‘gmg of a great gun.
1

March 27. Gov. Simcn. Bradstreet died.
His house occupied the site next west
of Plummer Hall; taken down in 1750.

6

1698. :
Feb. 28. Bartholomew Gedney died, aged

.
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June 27. Salem (Marblehead a member),
adjudged to be a lawful port.

June 28. Several dwellings were burnt
on the spot now partly covered by the
HEssex House, called the great fire till
that of 1774; damages, £5000.

1700.

Sept. 22. Miss Emma Leach, aged 52,
and onlg 25 inches in height, visited Sa-
lem, and excited 1"]71(;‘.110]] curiosity.

Ca;t"riages began to be used about this

ime.
Hag 2. Remarkable hailstorm, lasting
three d :

ays.

1706.

Sept. 2. First Quarterly meeeting  of
Friends held in this place. .

1708,

Dec. 7. Benjamin Brown died, aged 60;
made liberal bequests to schools in Sa-
lem and to Harvard College.

D%t;. 9. Rev. John Higginson died, aged

1712,

First Grammar School, anciently called a
writing school, established; Nathaniel
Higginson, teacher.

1713,

April 19. Ann, relict of Gov. Bradstreet,
died, aged T9.

April 24, Benjamin Gerrish, collector of
the Port, died, aged 60.

June 256. Persons dismissed to form a
Church in the middle precinet, now
Peabody.

Nov. 16. the Common ‘‘shall be forever
a training field for the use of Salem.””

1714,
May 13. Friends consider the building of
a meeting house.

1716.

Feb, 14. Hon. Wm. Browne died in his
T8th year, leaving legacies to Harvard
College and the Salem Grammar schools,

Oct. 15. Governor Samuel Shute of N.
H., entertained.

1718.

Third building of First Church Society
erected.

Second court house built.

Jan. 7. Gen. Israel Patnam born,

May. East church, at corner of Essex
and Hardy sts., opened for worship.

July 9. Jonathan Corwin died, aged 73.

Dec. 25. Persons dismissed to form the
East Church.

1719,
Almshouse built at corner of Broad and
Summer streefs. Pulled down in 1807.
Dec. 11. Brilliant aurora, causing great
alarm.
1720.

Tea began to be used.
. 1728,

Tide flowed back in some places, several
miles, forcing people, in some instances,
to take refuge in trees.
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1725. \
Oct. 17. Maj. Stephen Sewall died, aged,68.
1727

Oct. 20. Severest ear!-'.hqua.‘ke known in
New England upl_t‘o this time.
28

June 30, Middleton incorporated.
Oct. 31, General Court assembled at Sa-
lem, by order of 5‘70?. Buarnett.
30.

Small-pox at Marbleh;aa.d, all intercourse
prohibited; guardgsplaoed.
1733,

First St. Peter’s churg)ﬁ erected.

1740.
Mch. 17. Philip English died, aged 89.
Sept. 20. Rev. Geo. Whitefield preached
on the Common to about six thousand
people.
Oct. Rivers trozen over.
1742,
Aug. 16. Grant of General Court for the
erection of breastworks and a platform
for 16 guns, accepted by town. (Fort

Lee.)
1744,
A fire club was formed.
Bridge built over North River at North -
st., 860 feet Iong.“

Jan. 28. Benjamin Ly"nda, Chief Justice
of the Supreme Court, died, aged 80.
July 17. Timothy P;%kering born.
i b

749.
Mech. 20. Richard Derby and others pur-
chase the first fire engine.
1751.
A second fire engine purchased by Benja-
min Lynde and oi];g;s.

Jan. 25. Danvers setvoff and incorporated.

1755.
Nov. 18, Great earthquake. Lisbon de-
stroyed.

1758,

Sept. 20. Town divided into four wards.
1760.

March 31, Social L'inrary established.
1761

Jan., 30. Act passed to prevent damage
by fire by prohibiting sailmakers and
riggers from carrying on business ex- .
cept where licensus.

Mch, 12. Severe a?_r{thquake.

66

Salem Marine Society instituted.

Stage route astabli%l';gél to Boston.

The town sent to London for asfire engine.

Mch. 18. Repeal of Stamp Act joyfully
commemorated.

July 14. Timothy Orne died, aged 50.

Nov. 19. A sloop driven ashore on Cat
Island, and 7 par;ggss drowned.

Town voted to petition General Court for
an act to raise money by lottery for
paving Main St. Hall

April. First Printing Press, by Samuel
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Aug. 2. First issue of “‘ Bssex Gazette.”
Sept. 7. One Row, for giving information
that a vessel was about to elude the
payment of duties, was carried o the
Common, tarred and feathered, set upon
a cart, with the word ‘‘Informer” in
large letters on his breast and back, and
carried through Main st., preceded by
a crowd. ) i
1770. _
New alms and work-house placed on the
Common.
1771,

Apr, 25, Act incorporating Marine So-
ciety passed, i
1772,

Jan. 16. Bryan Sheehan hung on the
Neck; 12,000 persons at execution,
ug. 23, New meeting house, corner
North and Lynde Sts., for North Church
Society, first opened.
1773, :
Jan, 26. Aect regulating the work-house
passed.

Mech. 26. Nathaniel Bowditch born.
June 17. Custom House yacht upset;
three men and seven women drowned.
Alég. 20. Benjamin Pickman died, aged

1774.

Last Provincial assembly and first Pro-
vincial Congress convened at Salem.
First delegates to Continental Congress

~ chosen. :

26. Hospital on Cat Island erected
.ur inoculating with small-pox, burned
by a mob.

Aung. 12. A Halifax regiment land and
are quartered on the Neck. Sept. 10th
they march through the town and pro-
ceed to Boston.

Aug. 24, Five shops and a warehouse
below the town house on Essex street
burned ; loss £300.

Oct. 4, A Beverly privateer run aground,
being chased by the man-of-war * Nau-
tilus.”” People of Salem and Beverly
cannonaded the pursuer for two or three
hours fromi the shore, when she cut
cables and made off.

Oet. 6. The Great Fire; Rev. Dr. Whit-
aker’s church, Custom House, eight
dwellings, fourteen stores, shops, etc.,
burned.

Nov. Hospital for inoculating with
small-pox erected in great pasture.

1775.

Feb, 26. Col. Leslie with 300 British sol-
diers land at Marblehead and march to
Salem for the purpose of seizing can-
non, causing a serious rencontre at
North bridge.

Apr. 19. Battle of Lexington. Benjamin
Pierce of Salem killed., Col. Pickering
with 300 soldiers marched rapidly
towards Lexington, but arrived too late
for action.

Sept. 14. A detachment of troops com-

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

manded by Benedict Arnold, sent from
Cambridge by Gen. Washington, stop
for dinner at Salem, on their way to at-
tempt the capturiaqgé Quebec.

First Tabernacle church erected at corner
of Washington and Federal sts.

Barracks prepared at Juniper Point (Fort
Juniper.) .

Aug. 15. Rev. Thomas Barnard, of the
First Church, died.

Oct. 2. A privateer chased into Salem.

Feb. 17. John Pickering, celebrated
philologist, born.
June 14. Congress adopted the flag of
the United States. '
1780,
May 19. Dark Day.
Oct. 6. Privateer ‘‘Stark’ chased into
Salem by two British frigates.
1781

81.
Dec. Richard Derby, Jr., died in his 46th
year,

1783,
Apr. 3. News of peace received with
great joy. During the Revolution

Salem sent out 158 privateers, mann
by several thousand sailors, and mount-
ing more than 2000 guns. Salem armed
vessels captured -5424 prizes.

784,

June 15. The bark * Light Horse,” Capt.
Buffington, cleared for 8t. Petershurg;
first American vessel to trade there.
Last arrival at Salem from St. Peters-
burg—ship ‘‘ Eeclipse,”’ Johnson, master
—in September, 1843.

Oct. 20. Lafayette _Fisited Salem.

1

85.

Nov. 28, Cleared Ship * Grand Turk,”
Capt. Ebenezer West, by Elias Hasket
Derby; first voyage from New England
to India and China.

1786,

New town and county house completed.
It stood in middle of Washington street
near Tabernacle church, with front
towards Essex street. Cost $7,145.

July 10. Stephen Abbott, the first com-
mander of the Cadets, and other officers
are commissioned, First parade of
this company in uniform April 19, 1787,

Oct. 14, First issue of the present Salem
Gazette under title of Salem Mercury.

Dec. 21. Isaac Coombs, an Indian, hung
on the Neck, for killing his wife in the
great pastures. i

817.

May 22. Ship ‘* Grand Turk” returned
from Canton; the first vessel of New
England that performed such a voyage.

May 23. First parade of Salem Artillery,
under Zadock Buffington.

1788.

Sept. 24, Beverly bridge opened for
travel as a toll bridge. gIt rested on 93
piers, was 32 feet wide, 1484 feet long;
cost $16,000; tolls removed in 1868.
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1789,

Feb. Elias Hasket Derby sent the ship
“Astrea,” a direct voyage to Canton for
the first time.

Oct, 29. Washington visited Salem,

Dec. 156. First cireulating library opened

by John Dabney.
1791,

May 3. A brig launched sideways from

Derby wharf.

92,
July 2. Essex Bank, first in Salem, com-
menced business,
1794,
Stage line to Marblehead.
Fort William ceded to United States.
Powder house built in great pastures.
Dec. 25. Ship “Betsey’’ launched; ther-
mometer 80° at noon; men and boys in-
dulged in swimming.

1795.

Nov. 3. Sch. “Rajah,” Capt. Jonathan
Carnes, cleared for India; sailed for Su-
matra, first vessel, by Jonathan Peele.

796

Stage line to Gloucester.

Jan, 7. Ship “Margaret’’ of DBoston
wrecked on eastern Gooseberry; four
lives lost.

Jan. 11. Brig “John” lost on Great Mis-

ery.
Jan., 14, Henry Blackburn, an English-
man, hanged for murder, at the Neck.
Apr. 19. The Salem ship *“‘America’”
rought to New York an elephant from
Bengal; first seen in America; sold for
$10,000.

May 4. W. H. Prescott, the historian,

born.
1797.

Mch. 9. Salem and Danvers Aqueduct
Corporation incorporated.

May. Ship ‘*Astrea,” Henry Prince, mas-
ter, entered from Manilla to Elias Has-
ket Derby; first entry at Salem from
Manilla.

1798.

Aqueduct reservoir built on Gallows hill;
10 ft. deep and about 24 ft. square.

Jan. 8. The two lighthouses on Baker's
Island first lighted.

Apr. 26. Capt. Joseph Ropes in the ship
‘‘Recovery’’ for Mocha; first American
vessel to display the stars and stripes
in that part of the world.

. 1799,
Sept. 8. Elias Hasket Derby died.
Sept. 30. Lauunched at Winter Island the
rigate Essex, built by the merchants of
Salem for the U. S. Government; cost

$ X

Oct. (;East India Marine Society organ-
ized.

Nov. 1. Fort William called Fort Picker-
ing by order of Secretary of War. -

D%o2. 6. Judge Andrew Oliver died, aged

Dec. 30. Memorial exercises and proces-

sion on the death of Gen. George Wash-
ington which occurred on the 14th.
1800.

May 12. First issue of Salem Register.

June 20, Gen. Alexander Hamilton at
Salem.

Dec. 24. No frost in ground; farmers
plough their land.

1800-1.

$5600 contributed for poor of Marblehead

infected with small pox.

1801,
Howard street burial ground first nsed.
802

1802.

The Common levelled, fenced, and trees
(mostly poplars) set out and ocalled
““Washington Square;”’ expeunse $25,000,
contains 84 acres,

Feb. 21. Three Salem ships wrecked on
Cape Cod.

May 10. Ship Minerva, owned by Clifford
Crowninshield and Nathaniel West, had
lately returned from China, the first
Salem vessel that had circumnavigated
the globe.

1803.

Feb. 26. Salem Turnpike incorporated;
from Salem to Charles River Bridge; 12
miles and 256 poles in length. 1200
shares at $200 each.

Mar. 8. Salem Bank incorporated, now
Salem National,

Sept. 22, Salem Turnpike opened for
travel. The turnpike to Chelsea Bridge
cost $182,063 a.ndlgha bridge $35,469.

04

July 4, Nathaniel H%\;vthome born,

1805.

Bridge over South River at Lafayette st.
built at expense of E. H. Derby and
others; accepted by town in 1810 and
rebuilt in 1821,

The pillory, stocks and whipping post
cease to be used as a means of punish-
ment.

Jan, 1. New South Meeting House dedi-
cated, at corner of Chestnut and Cam-
bridge sts,; cost with land $23,819.78.
Steeple 166 feet high.

July 4. Salem Light Infantry first para-
ded under Capt. John Saunders.

Sept. 8. Mr. Fisher’s twine factory back
of County st. burned.

Oct. 25. Burglary at jewelry store of
Jabez Baldwin; 10336 $3,000.

1

Registry of Deeds building built at corner
of Broad and Summer streets; cost
$4000. The office was removed to the
Court House in Oct. 1842,

Jan. 1, First Baptist church on Federal
st. dedicated.

van. 16. Three large dwellings on Car-
penter st. burned.

June 16. Total eclipse of the sun.

1807.

Orne st. cemetery first used.

July 4. Salem Mechanic Light Infantry
first paraded under Perley Putnam.
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1808,
May 15. Jacob Crowinshield, M. C. died,

aged 38.
Sept. 27. Essex Hussars, a new military
company, made their first appearance.
1809

Universalist meeting-house on Rust St.

erected.

1810,

Stage line to Haverhill.

Hamilton Hall built about this time.

Marhgl& 12. Salem Athenzum incorpor-
ated.

May 20, TLoss of ship ‘“Margaret of Sa-
lem’ and 28 lives.

June 1. Bark “Active,”” Capt. Wm. P.
Richardson, sailed from Salem on the
first trading voyage from Salem fo the
Feejee Islands. oy

$0771.50 confributed for sufferers by fire
at Newburyport. [burned.

June 21. Foye & Tuttle's rope walk

June 26. Merchants’ Bank incop. ‘‘Na-
tional,”” Jan 9, 18365.

1812,

Feb. 6. Consecration of Messrs. Judson,
Newhall, Nott, Hall and Rice as Mis-
sionaries to India, in the Tabernacle
church.

Feb. 19. Sailing of the Missionaries in
the brig Caravan, Augustine Heard,
commander.

June 19, War declared against Great
Britain. Salem sent out 40 privateers,
mounting 189 cannon, and manned by
2142 men.

1813,
Jail built at foot of St. Peter street at
cost of $80,000
June 1. Engagement between ¢Chesa-

peake”’ and ‘““‘Shannon” in Massachu-
setts Bay ; seen from Salem,
Au%. 23. Impressive funeral ceremonies
of Capt. James Lawrence and Lieut.
Augustus Ludlow, killed on the Chesa-
peake.”

1814,
$2141 contributed for sufferers by fire at
Portsmouth.
July 28. Benjamin Goodhue, U. S. Sena-
tor, died. .
Sept. 25. Great alarm at omne o'clock A.
. M. at false report that the English were
landing on the Neck. Guns fired and
bells rung.
Oct. 1. Rev., Thomas Barnard, of the
. North church, died, aged 66. [80.
Dec. 14. Rev. Dan}gllg:[opkins died, aged

Feb. 13. News of peace.

Feb. 22. Celebration of close of war,

June 17. George Crowninshield dier,

aged 81.

Autiv;. 1. Violenthail storm. 130,000 pares

of glass broken in Salem.

Sept. 23. Severe storm; it bore salt water
for 40 miles into the country seairing
the leaves of all trees within its teuch.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

Building on Castle Hill blown down

Oct. 14. William Orne died, aged 64.

Dec. 20. Hinman & Stodder's crocke
store, next east of Essex House, burned;
loss $8000.

1816.

Double light on Baker’s Island changed
to single one.

Aug. 22, - Greal fire cor. Liberty and Wa-
ter sts., sixteen buildings destroyed.

Oct. 21. ‘“Cleopatra’s Barge’ launched,

- rigged and decorated. Immense con-
course of people. .

Nov. 16. New Almshouse at Neck ready
for occupancy ; 200 feet long.

Nov, 26. Market in town hall first opened.

Dec. 13. Act passed regulating the mar-
ket, market-carts, &c.

1817.

Aqueduct corporation purchased land on
Sewall st. on which a reservoir of 22,000
gals. capacity was afterwards erected.

$9000 contributed fer Massachusetts Hos-

pital.

Substantial rail fenee built around the
common.

July 4. Steamboat ‘“Massachusetts’ the
first seen in this port, excited great
curiosity.

July 4, Simon Forrester died, aged 69.

July 8, President Monroe visited Salem,
and was received in the new Town Hall,
the first public nse of this building.
The hall cost $12,000.

Oct. 1. Salem Charitable Mechanic Asgo-
ciation organized.

1818,

Small-pox hospital in great pasture de-
stroyed.

Present Custom House buill by order of
Congress.

Jan. 29. Salem Savings Bank incorporated.

Feb. 16. Essex Agricultural society or-
ganized. Col. Timothy Pickering, first
president.

Dec. 2. A schooner and a sloop lost on
Baker’s Island. iih

1
April 19. Latin school house in Broad
t. opened; cost $10,000.
April 19. Commercial Bank incop. First
ational, June, 1864.
Nov. 2. Dark Day.

1820.
Feb, 15. Salem Dispensary formed.
Oct. 18, New light house on Baker's
Island lighted. .
821.
Roman Catholic church erected at corner
of Mall and Bridge Sts.
Jan. Wild cat killed in Front St.
A;?rild21. Essex Historical Society organ-
ized.
May 10. Stephen M. Clark, of Newbury-
port, aged 17, hung on Winter Island
for setting fire to a stable in that -city.

Nov. Brig “Thetis,” Charles Fobes, mas-
ter, arrived from Madagascar to N. L.
Rogers & Bros.
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1823,

Jan, 8. First issue of Salem Observer.

Jan. 81, Exchange Bank incorporated.
National, Feb. 18, 1865.

July 4. Celebration of the day. Citizens
of North Salem erected a flag staff at
North Bridge. with the American eagle
and bust of Washington on the fop.
The staff was inscribed *“Col. Leslie’s
Retreat. Feb. 26, 1775.”" Thres boys
killed and thirty persons wounded by
explosion of fireworks on Salem Com-
mon.

Sept. 27. First experiment of hauling up
a vessel on the marine railway, erected
in So. Salem.

1824,

Barton square church erected.

Feb. 7. Salem Lead Manufacturing Com-
pany incorporated.

“Feb. c? Salem Marine Railway incorpor-
ated.

Teb. 11. Methodist chapel in Sewall st.
dedicated.
June 12. Asiatic Bank incorporated.

National, Feb. 1, 1865. :

Ang. 31. Lafayette visited Salem the sec-
ond time.

1825.

Oct. 14. 26th anniversary of East India
Marine Society celebrated by public
dinner; President Adams present.

Nov. 3. William Gray died at Boston.

1826,

T.ead manufacture commenced in Salem.
by Salem Lead Company, on present
site of Naumkeag Mills; portion of
buildings burned June 14; loss $8000.

‘Stage line to Lowell.

Feb, 15, Essex Marine Railway incorpor-

ated. -
April 27. Cornerstone of new First
church laid.

) Mg.y.d Salem Mill Dam corporation organ-
1zed.

May 8. Mercantile Baunk incorporated.
National, Jan. 10, 1865.

June 8. Second Baptist church in St. Pe-
ter st. dedicated. .

July 4. Great celebration of 50th anmi-
versary of the day.

Aug, 10. Funeral honors to Presidents
Adams and Jefferson.

1827.

Anug. 11. First vessel to enter at Salem
Custom House from Zanzibar; three
masted sch. “Spy,”’ Andrew Ward,
master, to Nathaniel L. Rogers & Bros.

Sept. President John Q. Adams at Salem.

Sept 8. First volume of J. B. Felt's an-
nals of Salem issued.

Nov. Lecture befors the Essex Lodge.
The beginning of the present system of
Lyceum Lectures.

1328,
‘Stage line to Danvers.
Jan. 24. First lecture before the Salem
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Feb. 4. Opening of new theatre in Crom-
bie st. ; performances began at half past

six,

April. Second volume of Felt's Annals
of Salem issued.

May 1. New chapel in Herbert st. dedis
cated

May 24. First annual exhibition of the
English High School.

July 4. TFirst appearance of a Salem band
of musicians.

Aug. 13. Centennial Birthday of Dr. E.
A. Holyoke.

Sept. 18. Essex Historical Society cele-
brated the bi-centennial anniversary of
the landing of Endicott.

1829.

Jan. 29. Col. Timothy Pickering died.

March 31. Dr. E. A, Holyoke died, aged
100 years, T mos.

May 11. Post office removed to East In-
dia Marine building.

June 9. Menagerie exhibited cornmer of
Harbor st. for five days.

1830.

Citizens contributed $1,093.82 for suffer-
ers by fire at Gloucester.

Jan, 18 Salem Lyceum organized.

Feb. 22. First lecture before the Salem
Lyceum, by D. A. White.

April 6. Murder of Captain Joseph
White.

June 15. Suicide of R. Crowninshizld,
jr., one of the murderers of Captain
White.

Sept. 28. John F. Koapp hung in jail
yard; Joseph J. Knapp, jr. hung Dee.
31, at same place; for murder of Capt.
Joseph White.

Nov. 18. Attempt to rob the Salem Bank.

Nov. 24. Thomas Perkins, merchant,
died, aged T2.

1831.

J a.g. 15 and 16. Heavy snow storm;arches
uilt.

Jan. 19. Lyceum Hall opened.

March 11. Company recently organized
for whaling business sent out first Shh«jag'

March 17. Naumkeag Bank incorporated.
National, Dec. 1864,

May 25. Three young men drowned °
North river, by sinking of boat.

June 23. Police court established.

July 8. Town voted to remove tow.
scales from Broad st. to Bridge st.

1832.

Friends’ meeting-house on South Pine &
erected.

Ship “Tybee,” Capt. Charles Millett,
owned by N. L. Rogers & Bros.; first
American vessel to enter the ports of
Australia.

July 8. Burning of twine factory of
James Fisher on High st., with two
dwellings and a barn.

August. Ship “Eclipse,” William John-
son, master, consigned to Joseph Pea-
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body, last entry at Salem, direct from
Canton.

Sept. 20. Brig “Mexican’ overhanled by
a pirate and robbed of $20,000, etc. Pi-
rates afterward apprehanded and six of
them executed in Boston in 1835.

Nov. 22. Crombie st. church dedicated.
Formerly a theatre.

Present St. Peter’s church erected; cost

Loss of schooner “Mecha.mc“

on Cohasset rocks. All hands lost ex-
cept boy.
Feb. 13. House on Dalrymple Court

burned ; Mrs. Nichols, aged 88, perished
in the flames.

June 6. Twine factory of Thomas Gwinn
on March street burned.

June 26 and 27. Visit of President Jack-
son and Vice Pres. Van Buren.

Oct. 20. Visit of Henry Clay.

Dec. Completion of new road from foot
of Essex st. to Neck.

Dec. 23. Essex County Natural History
Society organizet;.

May. New artillery company formed.

June 25. St. Peter’s church dedicated.

July 24. Town voted to provide a distinct
school for colored children.

Aug. 7. Public dinner given to TU.
Senators Webster and Silsbee, in pawl—
ion on common.

Aug. 27. Arrival of British brig of war
“Savage,’”” with sixteen of the pirates
who robbed the “Mexican.”

Dec. 28. Fire at Salem Laboratory; loss
$6000.

1835.
Excitement over publication of a

Fab.
“quuire at

communication entitled
Amos Giles’ distillery.”

March 27. Town voted to have the streets
lighted.

Sept. 4. House of Joshua Loring on Marl-
boro st. burnad two others badly dam-

aged ; loss, $T

Sept. 2é Town authorized the number-
mg of houses and stores.

QOct. 1. Public celebration by the Salem
Charitable Machailégse Association.

3b. 15. The town voted to adopt a city
form of government.

.arch 22. Act to establish the City of
Salem passed the Legislature.

pril 4. City charter accepted; 617 yeas;
185 nays.

pril 14, Eastern Railroad incorporated.
rll 25. First city election.

y 9. City Government organized; Lev-
Brett. Saltonstall, Mayor; John G. King,
President of the Common Counecil.

June 22, North church, built of stone,
off Essex st., dedicated. Cost, $32,509.
Aug. 29. First trial of the new fire en-
ine “Constitution;”’ built in Salem, by
crease S. Hill.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

Sept. 24, Fire in Northey st. destroying
four dwellings.
Deec. 31. First issue o; Salem Directory.
83

1837.
Feb. 17. Rope walks of William Stickney
and Joshua Safford on Bridge st. en-

tirely burned. Cold intense; 3 below
zero. Loss $30,000.
March 7. Steamboat ‘Portsmouth”

launched sideways; said to be the first.
steamboat built in Mass. ; 145 feet long.

April 1. 8. R, Honaycombknlled 20 foxes
in the great pastures, since beginning
of the year.

May 3. City treasurer received $29,790.13-
from U. 8., surplus revenue; disbursed
as follows :—City debt $8000; repairs on
building for insane $600; city hall and
furnishings $21,190.13.

May 12. Banks of Salem and vicinity vote
to suspend specie payments.

June. t permanent military band or-
ganized.
Aug. 31. Brewery and malt house on

May street totally consumed,

Dec. 10. Brig *“Curlew’’ wrecked on
Baker’s Island.

Dec. 26. Burning of oil factory of Caleb
Smith, end of Harhosr st.; loss $12,000.

1838.

M%rch 16. Nathaniel Bowditch died at

08t0]

May 9. New bell placed on Tabernacle
church; 1793 pounds.

May 31. C:ty Hall first used for meetings
of the City Council. The hall cost
$22,878.69; paid from surplus revenue
of the U. 8.

July 4. Celebration of the day. First
balloon ascension in Salem. Firstap-
pearance of new Salem Brass Band.

Aug. 27. Eastern Railroad open for travel
to Boston.

Oct. 1. Visit of Ancient and Honorable
Artillery Co. of B{:ésstgm.

Railroad tunnel under Washington st.
completed ; 650 feet long.
Feb. 27. Salem Children’s Friend Society
organized.
Mareh 11. City seal adopted; designed
by George Peabody.
April 1. Kastern Railroad began to carry
mails.
April 6. Passage of Act incorporating
aumkeag Steam Cotton Co.
A%ril 17. Two men drowned in the har-
or.
May 27. Visit of First Corps Cadets, Bos-

ton.

July 20. Brass foundry of J. Waters &
Son, near North bridge, burned.

Nov. Mechanic Hall opened.

Dec. 10. Eastern Railroad Branch from
Salem to Marblehead opened.

Dee. 17. Great storm, 50 persons per-
ished by shipwreck at Gloucester.

Dec, }18. Eastern Railroad opened to Ips-
wich.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM,

1840.

Feb. 19. Harmony Grove Cemetery in-
corporated.

March 18. Change of bsundary between
Salem and Danvers.

June 14. Harmony Grove Cemetery con-
secrated.

June 17. Eastern Railroad opened to
Newburyport. X

July 4. Great celebration by the Whig

party.
Nov. 8. FEastern Railroad opened to the

New Hampshire line and Portsmouth;|.

terminating a route of 53 miles ; costing
$2,289,286.
1841,

City scales built near Howard st. burial
ground.

April 19. Funeral ceremonies on death
of President Harrison.

June 30. Violent tempest; many barns
blown down in surrounding fowns.

Sept. Howard st. cemetery enlarged.

Sept. 17. Parade of Second Brigade of

ilitia.
1842,

Feb. 14, Stephen C. Phillips donated
$2400 to the public schools; his salary
as mayor.

March 1. Festival to celebrate opening
of new school houses, with procession,
1900 scholars present. The Phillips
school-house was 50 ft. wide and 136 ft.
long and cost $17,500.

March 21. The stone Court House was
first opened; cost $80,000. The court
of Common Pleas commenced its ses-
sion,

Aug. Second edition of Felt's annals of
Salem issued.

Aug. 5. Visit of Maryland Cadets.

Dec. 8. E. A, Hanson’s tannery on Grove
st. burned.

1843.

$2534.58 contributed for sufferers by fire
at Fall River.

March 23. Act aunthorizing Jonathan F.
Carlton to erect bridge across North
river at foot of Dean st.

Aug. 16, Hon. Benjamin Pickman died,

aged 80.

Sept. 15. Firstexhibition of Tom Thumb
at Salem.

Oct. Sidewalk ordered around Market
House, and clock on same.

Qct. 5. Parade of General Sutton’s Bri-
gade of militia.

1844,
Jan, 5. Joseph Peabody died, aged 86.
Feb. 11. Two young women baptized
into the mormon faith in South Mill
Pond.
April 7. New organ at St. Peter's church.
June 3. Concert by Ole Bull.
June 7. Funeral of Capt. Jesse Smith,
one of Gen., Washington’s Life Guards.
Juve 14. Citizens of No. Salem pass res-
olutions concerning closing of road to
Liberty Hill, ete. 17th, citizens march
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to Cold Spring; some afterwards indict-
ed for riot.

Aug. death of Amos Choate; bequeathed
$5000 for support of insane poor.

Oct. 8. Citizens of No. Salem picnic at
Liberty Hill; having secured their
rights thereto.

Dec. 18. Great fire, destroying seven
buildings on Front st., four on Lafay-
ette st., nine on Eéi:ﬁh st.; loss, $100,000.

1845.
The public schools named for
distinguished citizens.

Jan. 20, Fire at Franklin Building; loss,
$10,000. Wm. Chase injured.

Jan. 31. Cooper shop of Nichols & Flor~
ence on Allen’s wharf, burned.

April 8. Second Baptist Church partially
burned ; damage, $18,000.

May 6. Naumkeag Steam Cotton Co. or-
ganized.

May 8. Hon. Leverett Saltonstall, first
Mayor of Salem, died, aged 62.

June 7. Morocco shop of E. B. Arnold
and currying shop of J. C. Pitman on
Boston st., burned.

Segt. 10. Joseph Story, Justice U. S.

upreme Court, di at Cambridge,

Jan. 20.

aged 66.
1846.

Jan. 1. East Church on Brown st. dedi-
cated; built of freestone and brick; cost
$27,000.

May 5. Hon. John Pickering died at Bos-
ton, aged 69,

July 4. Floral procession.

July 13. Greatfire at Nantucket; $1808.50
contributed for sufferers.

Aug. 17. Operations commenced on Es-
sex railroad at Carltonville.

Aug. 25. Earthquake.

Aug. 31. Salem Academy of Music or-
ganized.

Sept. 19. Great gale; 11 schooners lost
on Grand Banks.

Old Hospital at lower part of
Neck, burned.

Oect. 22. Ichabod Tucker died, aged 81.

Nov. Brig “Lucilla,” D. Marshall, master,
to Tucker Daland ; last entry at Salem
for Sumatra.

Nov. 4. Hon. Dudley L. Pickman died
aged 67.

Nov. 18. Fraternity Lodge of Odd Fel
lows instituted.

Dec. 5. Subscription commenced fo
widows and children of men lost o1
Grand Banks, Sept. 19; $1,718 collected.

Dec. 6. Antislavery meeting at Mechan-
ic hall to welcome Wm. Lloyd Gar-
rison and James N. Buffum home from
Eungland.

Dec. 20. Fire in brick block on Essex
opp. Central st.

1847, - ‘

Jan. 18. Essex railroad opened to So.
Danvers.

Feb. $3,438.97 contributed for the desti-
tute in Ireland.
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Feb, 8. Naumk Steam Cotton Com-
pany commenced weaving.

March 14, Dwelling of David A. Neal
Esq., on Washington st. partly burned.

May. Foundations laid for stone depot
of Eastern Railroad.

May 31. First parade of the City Guards
under Capt. R. H. Farrant.

May 31. New chapel in Harbor St. opened.

July 8. Floral procession.

July 5. President James K. Polk at Sa-

lem.

July 26. City Council authorized con-
struction of bridge from Derby 8t. to
Nanmkeag factory wharf.

July 30. Benjamin Merrill, a disfin-
guished lawyer, died, aged 63.

Aug. 6. A man and boy suffocated af
Naumkeag cotton mills by gas from
charcoal fires.

Aug. 23. Taking down of Eastern R. R.
depot begun.

Sept. 7. New brick school house in So.

Salem opened.

Dec. 17. Brig ‘“Falconer'’ of Belfast,
wrecked off Ipswich Bar; 17 persons
perished. .

Dee. 23. First telegraphic despatch sent

from Salem to Bostou by Mayor.
1848,

Jan. 1. New bridge from Union wharf
to South Salem opened.

Jan. 6. George H. Devereux appointed
Adjt. General of Mass.

Jan, 30. North church opened, after be-
ing remodelled. ’

Feb. 11. Essex Institute incorporated; a
union of the Historical and Natural
History Societies.

March 28. Salutes of artillery fired in
honor of French Revolution.

April 11. India Rubber Factory in South
Salem burned. Loss $12,000.

July 4. Splendid display of fireworks.

July 10. Gloucester Branch railroad

opened.

Aug. 15. First number of ‘‘The Free
World’’ newspaper issued. X
Sept. 3. Review of 4th Brigade Militia

under Col. Andrews.
Sept. 4. Essex Railroad opened to Law-
rence,

ept. 20. A steam dredger began straight-
ening and deepening channel of North
river.

Jet, 27. Brig “Mary and Ellen,” owned
by S. C. Phillips, Capt. J. H. Eagleston,
cleared for Sandwich Isles via Califor-
nia ; first vessel from Massachusetts
after the gold discovery. ‘ :

Nov. 2. Accident on Marblehead Branch
R. R.; 6 persons killed and 5 injured.
Nov. 7. Veneering mill of Prime, Kenney

& Co. burned.

1849.
Jan, 26. Members of the Naumkeag Mu-

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

Feb. 11. Second Advent Society began
meetings at Sewall st. church.

March 5. U. S. Revenue flag disglayed
for first time on Custom House, during
office hours.

March 17. Barque “La Grange” sailed for
California with 63 members of Salem
Trading and Mining Co.

June 12. First field meeting of Essex In-
stitute at Danvers.

June 21. Launching of yacht “Mystery;’?
}argest pleasure boat ever builtin Sa-

em.

July 7. Salem Building Association or-
ganized.

Aug. 1. Last number of Salem Advertis-
er published.

Sept. 16. Father Mathew in Salem.

Sept. 24. First exhibition of Salem Char-
itable Mechanic Association.

Sept. 25. Philharmonic Society organized.

Sept., 27. Exhibition of Essex Agricul-
tural Society.

QOct. 1. Visit of Ancient and Honorable
Artillery Co. of Boston.

Dec. 12. Essex railroad eommenced de-
pot on Bridge st.

1850.

March 4. Salem Gas Light Co. organized.

April 26. Barque “Argentine” launched.

May 27. City Council appropriated $7000
for building iron fence around the com-
mon.

June 17. The day celebrated at Cold
Spring, No. Salem.

June 20. Fire at Smith’s Oil Factory, So.
Salem, destroying several buildings.

July 4. Floral procession and fireworks.
Said to be the most beautiful display
ever seen in this part of the country.

July 14, Hon. Nathaniel Silsbee, U. 8.
Senator, died, aged 77 years.

July 17. Jewelry store of E. K. Lakeman
robbed ; loss, $3000,

July 18. Funeral ceremonies upon death
of President Taylor.

July 25. Brig ‘““M. Shepard” launched.

Aug. 1. Salem & Lowell Railroad opened
with public ceremonies.

Aug. 15. Thirteen residents of Lynn
drowned at Humphrey’'s pond, Lynn-

field.
Sept. South Reading Branch Railroad

opened.
Sept. 26. KExhibition of Essex Agricul-
tural Society.
Dec. 2, Mr. Ball's free school opened.
Dec. 2. New common fence completed.
Dec. 9. The stores lighted with gas for
the first time. Portion of street lamps
lighted Deec. 25.

1851.
Jan. 2. Free-will Baptist church organized.
Feb. 3. Benjamin W. Crowninshield, M.
C. and U. 8. Sec. Navy, died in Boston,
aged 79.
April 14, Great storm la.stinf three days;

tual Trading and Mining Co. sail from | destruction of Minot's Ledge Light
Boston for California. House.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM,

July 4. Floral procession.

Sept. 22, 23, Muster of Fourth Brigade
Militia. )
Sept. 25. Exhibition of Essex Agricul-

tural Societ i

Dec. 19. Nathaniel West, merchant, died,
aged 96 years; bequeathed the income
of $23,000 for support of school for in-
struction in navigation.

Dec. 26. Salem Harbor frozem to the
Haste.

1852,

Feb. 22. Joseph E. Sprague, for many

years sheriff of Essex, died, aged T70.

March 16, Crombie st. church vestry
opened.
April. Probate records removed from

pswich to Court House, Salem,

April 20. Ordinance passed for appoint-
ment of City Marshal and assistants.

May 6. Kossuth visited Salem.

May 12. Corner-stone of Lafayette st.
eth, church laid ; ded. Jan. 6, 1853.
May 24. Fowler st. school house dedi-

cated.

June. Choate block on Essex st. com-
menced.

June 21. Hotel on Lowell Island first
opened ;‘built by Salem Steamboat Co.

July 4. Great celebration.

Oct. Naumkeag Steam Cotton factory
lighted by gas of their own manufac-
tare.

Qct. 15. City Council voted to give land
on Broad st. for ?'S%Emal school.

Teb 2. Saugus Branch railroad opened.

March 8. Large mansion house near
Orne's Point, totally burned.

March 21. Street names changed and re-
numbered; Federal, Marlboro and
County streets called Federal; Charter,
Vine and part of Neptune, between Elm
and Water, called Charter; Forrester
-and Bridge, called Bridge; Warren and
Green, called Warren; Fish, Water, part
of Neptune and Derby, called Derby;
Mill and South, called Mill.

June 8. Fire destroyed enamelled leather
factory off Mason st. ; logs $6,000.

July 3. Hon. Samuel Putnam died at
Somerville, aged 85.

July 4. Great celebration and floral pro-
cession.

July 20. Fire destroyed friction match
factory of S. A. Carleton & Co. on
Grove street.

August 3. No. Danvers stage coach upset
on Waahingt.on street; several passen-
gers injured.

Aug. 24-26. First division muster of Mili-
tia at Winter Island.

Sept. 3. Demolition of old Registry of
Deéeds building on Broad st com-
menced.

Nov. 16. Nonantum Hall dedicated.

1854,
atie Bank building constructed.
). 2. Fire destroyed patent leather fac-
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tory of C. P. Gould, and currying shop
of James Sanborn in No. Salem.

April 26, Laying of corner-stone, Taber-
nacle churc{n; dedicated Dec, lst.

May 15. Death of Miss Caroline Plum-
mer, aged 74; bequeathed $30,000 to Sa-
lem Athensum for a building; $15,000
to Harvard College; $18,000 and residue
of estate for founding Reform school.

July 4. Oration by Hon. Anson Burlin-

game,

July 24. First number of the Salem Daily
Journal issned.

Aug. 23-25. Division muster of Militia at
Winter Island.

Sept. 14. Salem State Normal School ded-
cated. Address by Hon. G. 8. Bout-
well. R. Edwards, Principal.

Oct. 23. Danvers railroad opened; trains
started from Phillips’ wharf and pro-
ceeded over Essex, Salem and Lowell,
Danvers, and Boston & Maine railroads,
to depot in Haymarket sq., Boston.

Nov. 6. Sudden death of Jerome H.
Smith, leader of Salem Brass Band.

Dee. 21. *Young America No. 2, fire en-
gine received. -

Brick block on Washin‘gton st. near depot
built by J. E. Fisk.
. John Bertram’s brick residerec

Gas pipes laid to South Salem.

Jan. Fog bell erected on south end of
Baker’s Island.

Feb. 24, Post office removed to Asiatic
Bank building.

March 9. Salem Five Cent Savings Bank
incorporated; began business May 14.
April 18. New church of Second Advent

Society on Endicott st. opened.

April 24." Celebration of 50th anniversa
of Rev. Brown FEmerson of Sou
church.

May 14. Loss of ship Sooloo of Salem.

May 28. City Council authorized ceding
of Egg Rock near Lynn to the U. S.

Aug. 22-24, Division muster of Militia at

inter Island.

Oct. 27. Ship of 846 tons launched near
Phillips wharf; largest ship built since
“Frigate Essex.”

Nov. Bark “Witch” consigned to Edward
D. Kimball; last entry at Salem from
Batavia.

1856.

March 18. Salem Classical and High
school dedicated. Address by H. K.
Oliver. i

April 15. Oil works on Mason st. burned.

April 30. Aect establishing So. Danvers

oundary line.

June 25. Arrival of schooner ‘‘Mahlon
Betts:;"’ first sailing vessel built of iron
to visit this port.

July 7. New Court of Insolvency organ-
ized at Court House.

Aug. Webb street, from Essex to Bridge,
completed.
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Aug. 6. Dr. John G. Treadwell died,
aged 51; bequeathed $75,000 to Harvard
College; and a farm of 70 acres in Tops-
field to Essex Agricultural Society.

Aug. 20. Powder house in great pastures
suld and afterwards removed.

Sept. 3. Encampment of 4th Brigade
Militia at Winter Island.

Oct.  Toll for foot passengers on Beverly
bridge abolished.

Dec, 8. City divided into six Wards; it
had been divided into four Wards for
100-years previous.

1857.

Jan. Election of city government on first
Monday, and inauguration on fourth
Monday; under amendment to charter.

Jan. 2. Chapel of South church dedicated.

Feb. 26. Carleton’s tannery in Franklin
st. burned ; loss, $10,000.

March 15. Seccomb’s oil factory burned;
loss, $5,000.

June 26. Hon. Stephen C. Phillips, mem-
ber of Congress, second Mayor of Sa-
lem, died, a victim to a steamboat

gésaster on the St. Lawrence river, aged

July. Old North church, cor. North and
Lynde sts., demolished.

July 26. Hon. John Glen King died,|J

aged T0. .

Sept. 8, Burning of stable, bakehouse
and dwelling on Cedar st. '

Oct. 6. Plummer Hall dedicated, cost
$30,000. Address by Rev. J. M. Hoppin.

Nov. 24, New fire engine “Sutton No. 7"
received.

Dec. 8. Visit of General John C. Fre-
mont.

Dec. 15. Burglary at Archer, Downing
ﬁ Co.’s; $2,000 worth of silks, ete. ta-

n.

1858.

Jan, 6. 35th annual meeting of Salem &
Danvers Association for detection of
thieves and robbers, held.

Jan. 10. The Catholic churches of Im-
maculate Congeption and St. James,
consecrated with imposing ceremon-

es,

Jan. 28, Store of Stephen Osborne robbed
of valuable furs,

Jan. 29. Mrs. Dr. J. G. Treadwell died,
bequeathing $4,000 to Barton sq. church
and other legacies.

June 8. Loss of Prairie Flower; seven
Salem persons drowned.

July. Bark “Dragon,” Thomas C. Dunn,
master, entered from Manilla, consigned
to Benjamin A. West; last entry at Sa-
lem from Manilla,

Aug. 25-27. Division muster of militia at
Winter Island.

Oct. 12, Laying of corner stone, Grace
church ; consecrated June 2, 1859,

Nov. 8. Act accepted requiring School
committee to be elected by the people.
Nov. 21. Several buildings burned near

North bridge; loss, $3,000.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM,

Dec. 9. Explosion of boiler at tanyard of
James Lord; one man Kkilled.

859,

Jan. 4. Fire at Franklin building.

Jan. 11. Death of John Ball, city mis-
sionary.

Jan. 29, William H. Prescott, the histor-
ian, died at Boston, aged 62; a native of

alem,

June 8. Mansion House and 12 or 15
other buildings burned; loss $63,000.

July 14. Death of Rufus Choate.

July 20. TFlag staff raised at Willows.

Dec. 23. Full length portrait of Chief
Justice Shaw placed in Court House;
public ceremonialasél(l]ay 9, 1860,

Jan. West block completed

Jan. 1. New police station on Front st.
completed; cost with land, $8,500.

Jan. 10. Fall of Pemberton Mills at Law-

rence.
March 6. 1500 shoemakers (strilers) of
Lynn, march to Salem, So. Danvers and

return. ;

April 4, Old Ladies’ Home incorpor-
ated.

May 17. Steam fire engine ‘‘Wm. Chase’”

received and exhibited.

une. Iron fence erected in front of

Charter st. cemetery. )

July. New pier on easterly side of Bev-
erly bridge completed. .

July 4. Celebration and procession.

July 23-24. Visit of Ellsworth’s Chicago
Zouaves. :

Sept. Building of second mill of Naum-
keag factory commenced; machinery
started Aug. 1862, )

Sept. 4. Fair of Essex Institute opened
in Mechanic Hall.

Oct. 20. Prince of Wales in Salem.

Oct. 21. Franklin building fire;

20,000.

Na?v. ’91. Fire destroyed O. C. Smith’s -
machine shop at Naumkeag factory.

Nov. 21. City appropriated $9,000 for
new. engine house on Church st.

Dec. 6. Rope-walk of 8. Whitmore on
Bridge st. burne‘}ém

loss

New Court House built.

Jan. 9. Steam fire engine ‘‘Salem’” re-
ceived. i

March 29. Hon. Daniel A. White, first
president of Essex lustitute, died, aged

85. .

April. N. I Bowditch died at Brookline;
bequeathed $1,000 to Salem Athen®um;
$5,000 to Salem Normal School.

April 12, Fort Sumpter fired on.

April 18, Salem Light Infantry, Capt.
Arthur F. Devereux, left Salem for

Washington, |[Three days after Pres.
Lincolugs Proclamation. 8th Regi-
ment.

April 19. City Government of Saler "D~
propriated $15,000 for the benegj
families of Salem men enlistirgl
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

[Other appropriations snbse-
made.]
3alem Mechanic Light Infantry
0. H. Pierson, and Salem City
.8, Capt. Henry Danforth, left
dalem for Washington; joining the 5th
Regt. M. V. M.

May 10. Field Hospital Corps raised by
Rev. G. D. Wildes, D. D. This corps
was raised in Salem and vicinity, and
composed of sixty volunteers. It was
the first effort for an ambulance depart-
ment in the Army.

May 10. Fitzgerald Guards, Capt. Ed-
ward Fitzgerald left for camp with the
9th iment.

May 14. The Andrew Light Guard, Com-
pany C., 2nd Regt. Capt. William Cogs-
well, left Salem to join the Regt.

July 22. Essex Cadets (company raised
by A. Parker Brown), Capt. Seth S.
Buxton, left Salem.

July 31. Refurn of Mechanic Light In-
fantry and City Guards from war. Aug. 1,
Salem Light Infantry (Zouaves) arrived.

Sept. 2. New Bentley school house first
opened.

Sept. 3. First company of sharpshooters,
(Capt. Saunders) left Lynnfleld, for
Washington. This company was armed
with telescopic rifles. X

Sept. 4. Company A. 23d Mass. Vol
Capt. Ethan A. P. Brewster, left Salem
for camp in Lynnfield.

Sept. 7. Essex County Zouaves under
Capt. John F. Devereux left Salem for
camp.

Sept. 30. Salem TUnion Drill Club.
Capt. George M. Whipple voted to enlist
for the war. Oect. 18 the company
joined the 23d Regt. (Co. F.), in camp
at Lynnfield.

Qct. 8. Second company of sharpshooters,
Capt. E. Wentworth, attached to the
22d Regt., left for the front.

QOct. 31. 23d Regt., Col. John Kurtz,
marched from ecamp at Lynnfield to
Salem; were reviewed on the Common
by the City Government; collation
served; Regt. marched back to camp in
the afternoon; left Lynnfield for seat of
war, Nov. 11. '

Noylv. ((I}a.s works at Naumkeag Mills com-
pleted.

Nov. 15. Co. H. 19th Regt. Capt. C. U.
Devereux, commissioned (8. L. L.).

Nov. 20. Salem Artillery (ath Battery),
Clept. C. H. Manning, left the State.

’ 27. Fire destroyed Pickering school

18e, corner North and Dearborn sts.
3. Old Ladies’ Home opened.

9. Capt. John Daland’s and Capt.
o, F. Austin’s companies left the
te for the front; both were in the
h Regt., Col. Stevenson; Gilmore’s
1d accompanied the Regiment,

10. Salem Light Infantry, under
pt. Chas. U. Devereux, left for the
.t of war.
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1862,

Jan. 8. Capt. J. F. Devereux’s company
left: Salem to join 11th Mass. Regt.

March 8. Funeral of Gen. F. W. Lander,
who died March 2 from wounds received
in battle. Address by Rev. G. W.
Briggs in the South church.

March 21. Funeral of Lieut. Col. Henry
Merritt. 23d Regt. Mass. Vol.

March 27. Fire at C. H. -& J. Price’s
store; loss $20,000.

May 26. Second Company of Cadets, Maj.
John L. Marks, mustered for garrison
duty in the forts of Boston harbor,

June 18. Full length portrait of Wash-
ington presented to city by A. A. Low
of N. Y.

July 10. City appropriated $25.000 for
soldiers’ bounties; $20,000 more appro-
priated Aug. 25.

Aug. 22. Capt. 8. C. Oliver’s company in
35th Regt..-left the state.

Sept. 8. 40th Regt. Lieut. Col. J. A. Dal-
ton, left the state for Washington.

Sept. 8. Co. B. 40th Regt. Capt. D. H.
Johnson, left camp for Washington.

Sept. 8. Salem City Guards, 40th Regt.,
Capt. H. Danforth, left the state.

Sept. 8. Company under Capt. R. Skin-
ner, jr. (40th Regt.), left the state.

Sept. 22. President Lincoln’s proclama-
tion of emancipation; went into effect
Jan. 1st, 1863.

Sept. 27. Funeral of Capt. John Saun-
ders, 1st Massachusetts Sharpshooters.

Oct. 3. New brick Court house first

opened.

Oct. 4. Salem Light Infantry Veteran
Association organized.

Oct. 11. Second Corps of Cadets return
after five months’ service at F't. Warren.

Oct. 20. Address of Hon. Charles Sum-
ner on emancipation.

Oct. 22. b5th Regt., Col. George H. Pier-
son, left Boston for Newbern, N. C.
[nine months’ service].

Nov. 19. Co. A. 50th Regt. Capt. Geo. D.
Putnam, and Co. B. Capt. John L.
Ward, left the State for Department of
the Gulf. Went into camp, Sept. 12
(nine months’ service).

Dec. 15. New Pickering school house on
School st. first opened.

Dec. 19. Funeral of Capt. Charles A.
Dearborn. )

Dec. 21. Co. F. 11th Regt., Capt. John F.
Devereux, commissioned.

Dec. 27. Co. E. 48th Regt.. Capt. George
Wheatland jr., left the State for De-
partment of the Gulf,

1863.

Jan. 1. Return of Mechanic Light Infan-
try after five months’ service at Fort
Warren.

Jan. 20. Funeral of Maj. Seth S. Buxton,
14th Regt., Heavy Artillery.

Jan, 25. New Jerusalem Church formed
in Salem, Rev. T. W. Hayward, pastor.

Feb. 4. Visit of Gen. Geo. B. McClellan.
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March 19. Salem Union League formed,
Rev. Geo. W. Briggs, president.

March 31. David Pingree, sixth Mayor of
Salem, died.

June 19. Funeral of Lieut. Pickering
Dodge Allen.

July 8. Horse cars to So. Danvers.

July 10. Drafting commenced in Salem’

at Lyceum Hall, under direction of
Capt. D. H. Johnson, provost marshal.
A"Illg. I11. Return of Co. A, 50th Regt. (S.

Oct. 27. Gen. Thomas F, Meagher gave
an address at Mechanic Hall.

Oct. 28. Horse cars to Beverly.

Nov. Rebuilding of Fort Lee completed.

Nov. 16. 12th unattached company of
Heavy Artillery, Capt. J. M. Richard-
son, occupied :ﬂe forts on Salem Neck;
left for seat of war, April 29, 1864.

Dec. Work commenced on car factory in
Bridge st.

1864.

About six acres added to Orne st. ceme-

tery.

Jan. 21. Funeral of William P. Mudge,
Adjt. of 33d Mass. Regt.

Jan. 28, Grand demonstration to re-en-
listed veteran volunteers of 2d, 23d, 32d
Regts. and 1st Heavy Acrtillery.

Fab, 8. Arrival home of 19th Mass. Regt.
at Salem, and grand reception.

Feb. 23. The 2d and 23d Mass. Regts, (re-
enlisted) left this city for seat of war.
Feb. 23. Daring robbery at J. F. Almy &

Co.’s; loss, $2,000.

Feb. 28. Fire destroyed three story brick
house at corner of Bridge and Osgood
streets.

April 18, School Committee voted to es-
tablish classical department in High
school.

May 10. Horse cars to So. Salem.

May 12. Salem Light Infantry, Capt. R.

. Reeves, left Salem for one hundred
days’ garrison duty. .

May 18. Act passed authorizing the city
to take water from Wenham Lake.

May 13. Drafting again at Lyceum Hall.

May 19. Nathaniel Hawthorne died at
Plymouth, N. H., aged 60.

June 6. Four men drowned near Baker’'s
Island.
June 15. Return of Co. F. 9th Mass.

Regt., and reception.

June 23, Company of Heavy Acrtillery,
Capt. Joseph M. Parsons, left camp for
Washington.

July 4. Death of Col. Perley Putnam,
aged 85.

July 15. Several buaildings on Derby near
Central st. burned.

July 26. 8th Mass. Regt., Col. B. F.
Peach jr., left State for one hundred
days’ service.

July 28. 5:h Regt.,] Col. Geo. H. Peirson,,
left the State for one hundred days
duty; returned o Boston, Nov. 7, 1864,

July 30. John Hodges, jr., Lieut. Col.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

59th Mass. Regt., killed in
Petersburg.

Sept. 22. Salem Freedmen’s Ai¢
formed ; president, Alpheus C:

Oct. 5. Steam fire engine No. 3, «

Nov. Jute factory in Skerry st. buils.

Dec. 5. Act of Legislature on the water
question accepted by the people; yes,
1623 votes; no, 151.

865.

Feb. Letter boxes placed in various parts
of the city.

March 6. Death of Rev, Michael Carlton.

March 21, Funeral of Capt. George W..
Gardner, 24th Regt.

April 8. Capture of Richmond, Va.

April 9. Surrender of Gen. Lee and the:
rebel army ; great rejoicing on the 10th.

April 14, President Lincoln assassinated..

May 22. City Council authorized com-
missioners to commence operations on
the Water Works. ’

June 29. Garrison withdrawn from Salém
forts.

July 4. Greatcelebration and processions
in honor of returned soldiers.

Aug. 8. Fire destroyed tannery of J. Put-
nam & Co. on Goodhue st.

Sept. 23. Fire destroyed stables of D.

erritt in Barr st.

Dec. 4. Major Gen. J. A. Kilpatrick lec—

tured at Mechanic Hall.

1866,

May 14. Lynde Block and eight or nine
other buildings burned; loss, $70,000.

June 10. Dealh of Robert Brookhouse,
Esq., aged 86.

June 19, Great celebration by Salem Lf,
Infantry in honor of members who had
served in the war.

July 4. Greatfire at Portland, Me.; Salem
f_ltizsns contributed over $10,000 for re-

ief,

July 14. Gen. Sherman passed through
Salem.

Sept. 17. Jonathan Kimball elected first.
Superintendent of schools.

Oct. 11, Cadet Veteran
formed.

Oct. 24. Fire atstore of Wm. P. Good
hue; Wm. Gray suffocated.

Dec. Holyoke Building completed.

1867.

Company formed at Derby wharf, for
prosecution of the fisheries.

Jan. 1. New steam fire engine “Wm.
Chase’’ received.

Jan. 17. Great snow storm. =

Feb. 26. George Peabody donated $14
000 for the promotion of science, e -
to be used under auspices of Essex
stitute.

March 2. Peabody Academy of Sciel
organized,

April 2. Act annexing part of Salem
Swampscott. )

May 6. Board of Engineers voted to d
continue sail carriages and sails as p:
of fire department.

Association
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM,

Act passed for reorganizing fire
ent.

Howard st. church sold.

sreat aunction sale of lots on
astate. Second sale Sept. 16,

cept. 3. Second Brigade, Gen. Peirson,
march from Salem Common to Swamp-
scott and encamp five days.

Sept. 26. Fire in Naumkeag block, cor. of
Essex and Central sts., loss $13,000.

Oct. Jute factory on English st. com-
pleted. Building of Salem Lead Works
commenced.

Qct. 28. Gen, Phil. H. Sheridan passed
through Salem.

Qect. 31. Francis Peabody, third Presi-
dent of the Essex Institute, died, aged

66.

Nov. 15. Phil. H, Sheridan, Post 34, G.
A. R. chartered.

Dec. 21. Fire in Lemaster block opp. St.
Peter st.

Dec. 20. Two boys named Casey drowned
in Collins Cove.

1868.
Jan, 17. Funeral of Rey. Michael Hart-
ney; the bishop and 52 clergymen pres-

ent.
April 15. Commenced laying the distri-
ution pipes of Water Works,
May. New mill of Naumkeag Steam Cot-
ton Co. commenced.

May 30. First observance of Memorial
Day.
June 8. City Council appropriated $6,300

for new t"zr‘idge over South river, at
Lafayette st.

Aug. 10. City Council appropriated $23-
000 for new school houses in Ward 1
(Herbert st.) and Ward 2.

A%gé 18. City Council appropriated $45,-

for new Bowditch school house in
Dean st. ; school opened March 14, 1870.

Aug. 29. Death of J. Vincent Browne,
Esq., 65."

Qct. 4.
Beverly completed.

Qct. 80. John A, Andrews died.

Nov.c%'?. Salem Oratorio Society organ-
ized.

Dee. 14. Barque “Jersey’” (650 tomns)

launched ; lost June 18, 1869, at Mada-

gascar,
Deec. 156. School Committee voted to es-
tablish evening schools.

Dec. 25. Wenham water first let into the
' service Eqi_pes; and trial of hydrants.
De~ 29, New chapel of Tabernacle soci-

dedicated.

) 1869,

Velocipede mania,

13. Fire destroyed barn of Horace

‘Ware and forty head of cattle.

1. TFirst Public Performance of Sa-
1€)’rat0rio Society, ‘‘Haydn’s Crea-
B .

8. Gen. Joseph Andrews, ninth

aged
ﬁeservoir on Chipman Hill in}|
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March, 22. City Council appropriated
$8,000 for erection of Plummer Farm
school.

March 28, Act passed ceding to U. S. all
that portion of Winter Island acquired
by deed from city.

April 1. Fire department reorganized;

and engines dispensed with.

April 21. Salem Fraternity rooms opened
in Downing's block.

April 22, Act passed authorizing streets
over Collins Cove.

May 4. School Committee voied to estab-
lish Naumkeag school.

June 4. Horse cars to North Salem.

June 14 to 19. Gilmore’s “Peace Jubilee’”
at Boston.

June 18, Death of Nathaniel J. Lord,
Esq , aged 63.

June 18. City Council voted to widemn
North st. between Federal and School
streets.

Ang. 4 Arrival of steam collier ‘‘Rattle-
snake” with a cargo of coal; the first of
the kind at this port.

Aug.19. American Association for the
Advancement of Science commenced its
session in Salem. Museum of Peabody
Academy of Science dedicated.

Aug. 23. Arrival of new hose carriages.
for fire department.

Oct. 22. Slight earthquake.

Nov. 4. George Peabody died at London,

4 Tolls on Salem Turnpike and
Chelsea bridge abolished, henceforth a
free public highway.

Nov. 19. Water works transferred to city
council; cost up to date $1,060,000.

Dec. 1. Death of Col. Henry Whipple,
aged 80.

1870.

Feb. 8. Funeral of George Peabody at
Peabody ; his remaing deposited in Har-
mony Grove Cemetery.

April. Old Beadle tavern on Essex opp.
Pleasant st. demolished.

April 2, Barque *‘Taria Topan'’ launched.

April 18. First appearance in Salem of
Theodore Thomas’s orchestra.

May 1. Last entry from Zanzibar; bark
“Glide” to John Bertram.

Sept. 5, Ashael Huntington, eighth may--
or of Salem and second President of Es-

sex Institute, died, aged 70. .
Sept. 23. Plummer Farm School on Win-
ter Island opened.

Oct. 20. Earthquake.

Oct. 22. First lecture before the Salem
Fraternity, by H. K, Oliver.

Oct. 27. Fire destroyed Snow & Red-
mond’s currying shop on Franklin st.;
loss $20,000.

Oct. 81. Fair of the Essex Institute and
Salem Oratorio Society commenced in
Mechanic Hall; first occupancy since the
enlargement and alteration, except
opening concert by Germania Band, Oct.
27; organ first used Jan. 27, 1871.

yor of Salem, died.
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Dec. Alteration of Browne school house
completed at cost ng $6,000.
1871, E

Jan. 17. New light houses on Winter Is-
Jand and Derby wharf first lighted.

April 15. Railroad tracks in tunnel low-
ered 14 inches.
April 21. Semi-centennial anniversary of

the Essex Historical Society ; noticed by
the Essex Institute; addressed by A. C.
Goodell jr.

June 8. Salem Marine Society celebra-
ted its 100th anniversary.

June 8. Salem and New York frei%ht
steamboat line organized; steamers be-
gan running July 29.

July. Remodelling of Normal school
house completed.

July 20. Slight earthquake.

July 25. Essex Institute excursion fo
Provincetown; only part of the trip
made on account of storm.

Aug. 26.
at Revere.

QOct. 3. The American Board of Commis-
sioners for Foreign Missions commenced
its sessions in Salem.

Qct. 8. Great fire at Chicago; over $19,-
000 afterwards confributed for the suf-
ferers.

Qui. 17. Gen. Grant passed through Sa-
lem.

1872,
Soldiers’ lot set apart in Orne st. ceme-

tery.

Atlargtic Car Works built.

Feb. 7. Opening of new chapel of St.
Peter’s church. :

April18. New Jerusalem ch. dedicated.

May 27. Office of Constable at Peabody
Academy of BScience established, on
condition that the Museum be opened
free to the publie.

July 28, Fire at Z, Goodell’s building on
Lafayette st.

Aug. 9. Fire destroyed tannery of N.
Treadwell, on Franklin st. .

Sept. 24. ' U. S. steamer Kansas arrived.

Nov. 9-10. Great fire at Boston.

Nov. 11. City Council voted to extend
‘Washington st, to Mill st. .

Dec. 19. Henry M. Stanley, the African
explorer, visited 1fsx;'iend-a in Salem.

Pernsylvania pier built. -

Feb. lg. Corporators of the Salem Hos-
pital organized.

March 4. Elegant Bal masque of Cadets
at Mechanic Hall.

March 5. Twenty-fifth anniversary of the
Essex Institute noticed.

March 18. Arrival of new steam fire en-
gine ““City of Salem."” )

May 15. First postal cards issued from
Salem P. O.

June 11. Death of Rich’d S. Rogers, Esq.

July. Last entry from West Coast of
Africa, Brig Ann Elizabeth from Sierra
Leone, to Charles Hoffman.

Accident on Eastern railroad |

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

July. Lowell people transfer tl
mer residences from Marblehe
to Juniper Point.

Aug. 5. Lowell Island house &t
auction for $73,000.

Sept. Seamen’s Bethel on Herbert ..
sold to French Catholiecs.

Sept. 11. Washington st. extension open
to travel.

Oct. 1. Fire at Anderson & Reynolds’
shoe factory.

Nov. 17. Calvary Baptist ch. dedicated.

Dec. Hale's Block completed.

Dec. 16. One hundredth anniversary of
the destruction of the Tea in Boston
Harbor, commemorated by the Essex
Institute; address by Hon. James
Kimball,

1874.

N%w_ltga.s works mnear Beverly bridge

uilt,

Jan. 1. Ordinance establishing increased
water rates took effect.

Feb. 16. Lecture by Rev. Charles Kings-
ley, Canon of Westminster, Eng.

Feb. 19. Corporators of Salem Hospital
organized; deed of property ($9,000)
presented from John Bertram, with
notice of further subseription of $16,-

March 9. New Holly st. school house
opened.

Aprill. Act passed changing city elec-
tion to second -Tuesday of December,
and organization of city government to
first Monday in January.

April 17. Death of Prof. Alpheus Cros-
by, aged 63.

May 11. First District court established.

May 14. Rogers’ estate on Essex st. sold
at auction for $49,500.

June 2. Members of Mass. Senate visit
Dr. George B. Loring, their president;
second visit, May 5, 1875.

June 29. Hon. Joseph S. Cabot, fourth
Mayor of Salem, died, aged 78.

July 11. Tornado did considerable dam-

age.

Aug. 25. Atlantic ear works sold for
$35,650.

Oct. 1. First patient received in Salem
Hospital.

Oct. 5. Centennial anniversary of the
Meeting of the Provineial Legislature
in Salem, Oect. 5, 1774, noticed by the
Essex Institute; address by A. C.
Goodell, jr. Esq.

Nov. 24, Slight earé:’}aquake.

1

5 s
Jan, 14, Lecture by Charles Brad
of England.
Jan. 20. Fire destroyed currying st*2-
Driscoll & Looney on Mason st. 8-
Feb. 26. Centennial anniversary o, 7"
lie’s Retreat at North Bridge, ]eb"
noticed by the city authoritie (™
dresses by the Mayor, Hon. G. J 10!
ing and Rev. E. B. Willson, ~'eb.
March 11. First Art Exhibition byl®
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM,

Essex Institute opened at Plummer
Hall.

March 26. Pennsylvania pier completed;
steamer “‘Williamsport” arrived with
first cargo of coal.

March and April. Spelling matches.

Avoril 19. City Government and Cadets at-
tend centennial celebration at Concord
and Lexington.

May 6. Old pump on Washington street
near Asiatic Building removed.

May 21. Price block burned.

May 23. Remodelled First church opened
for services.

June 14. Hon. Charles W. Upham, sev-
‘enth Mayor of Salem, died, aged 73.

June 17. Great Centennial celebration at
Boston.

June 28. City Council appropriated $8500
for new school-house in Skerry street;
e-  pleted Feb. 12, 1876.

2. Revere Beach railroad opened.
26. City Council aﬁpropriatad $16-
1for extending City Hall.
. _Allen farm at the Neck, . sold to D.
Gardner.
20. New orphan asylum on Lafay-
s street dedicated,
ou. Exhibition of antique furniture,
etc., at Plummer Hall, by Ladies’ Cen-
tennial Committee.
Jec. 4, 6. Lectures by Prof. Richard A.
Proector, astronomer,

1876.

Feb. New Price Block completed.

Feb. 27. Florence’s cooper shop on Cedar
street burned.

April 10. City Couneil appropriated $9000
for extending water pipes to the Neck.
April 19. Centennial Ball at Mechanic

all given by Ladies’ Centennial Com-
mittee.

May 8. Dedication of the City Hall ex-
tension; cost about $24,000.

July 4. Centennial celebration and floral
procession.

Aug. Announcement made that Prof. A.
G. Bell of Salem had discovered a way
for transmitting the human voice over
telegraph wires.

Aug. 14. Death of Rev. William Cook;

aged 68,

Aug. 17. Marine excursion of Essex In-
stitute on ferry-boat “John Adams.”
1877.

Feb. Blue glass fever.

Feb. 12. Prof. A. G. Bell lectured on the
telephone before the Essex Institute at
Lyceunm Hall. The first practical test
ever made of the telephone was the
transmission of a report of this lecture
to the Boston Globe, which appeared in
its columns the next morning,

March 21. Last entry from Cayenne and
close of the foreign trade of Salem:; sch.
“Mattie F* to C E. & B. H. Fabens.

Mareh 28, City Cotl:‘ =1 wotad to build

b i

June. Contributions of $4335 for sufferers
by great fire at Marblehead on June 25;
also, $770 for sufferers by fire at St.
Johus, N. B.

June 9. Horse-cars to the Willows.

July. St. Mary’s Catholic church, cor.
Bridge and Mall streets torn down.

Aug. 20. Accident at Pennsylvania pier,
killing Joselph Swasey and three others
of his family,

Sept. 13. Salem 0ld Men’s Home opened
admitted first inmates; incorporst:ad
Dec. 12.

Oct. 31. Serious fire at First Baptist
church,

1878.

Jan. 1. Streets (Madison ave. eto.), laid
out over great pastures,

Salem Cadet Band organized.

March 30. Aect passed increasing Board
of Aldermen to seven members.

June 16. Fire at Anderson & Reynolds’
shoe factory. .

Aug. 8. Very severe thunder storms.

Aug. 19. Dedication of Catholic convent
on Federal street.

Sept. 18. Commemorative exercises at Me-
chanic Hall, by the Essex Institute, on
the 250th anniversary of the landing of
John Endicott at Salem. Address Ia}r

. Wm. C. Endicott; poems by William W
Story and Charles T. Brooks. )

Sept. $2500 contributed by citizens for
sufferers by yellow fever at the South

Sept. Hon. A. A, Low of Brooklyn -
nated $5000 to city for educational v
poses.

Oct. 23. Burning of John Powers’

tnr{_ at head of Essex street durin
lent storm.,

Oct. - 24. Dedication of new Or
Home on Carpenter street.
Oct. 24. Death of Gen. George H. Dev-
ereux, aged 69.
Oct. 29. Tannery of M. Arnold on Boston
street burned. i
9.

Jan. 1. Resumption of specie payments.

Jan. 1. John Bertram, Esq., donated
$10,000 to the city for charitable pur-
poses. ’ ;

Jan. 17. Fire destroyed residence of Dr.
A. Kemble.

March 19. David Roberts, 13th Mayor of
Salem, died, aged 74.

March 21, Act authorizing the taking of
Frye’s Mills.

March 28. Death of Ephraim Brown, reg-
ister of deeds.

May 16. Death of Henry J. Cross, city
treasurer, aged 55. .

June 8. Three young men, i~
ell, Fifield and Pinkham, .
the harbor.

June 24, Celebration of 100t]
sary of Essex Lodge, F. and A

‘July 16. Severe thunder sto:

sion of ““Wm,. Chase’ staem



s. L. LOUGEE," t6W PRices; 256 Essx' st SALGM.

. b8

Sept. 27. Henry L. Williams, 17th Mayer
of Salem, died, aged 64.
Sept. 2. Stephen P. Webb, 3d Mayor of
alem, died at Brookline, aged 75.
Dec. 10. Nathaniel Brown, 15th Mayor of
Salem, died, agezi 582{)

March 6. New school-house on Summit
ave. dedicated.

April 14, City Council appropriated

,000 for new brick hose house in
Ward 5; building dedicated Dec. 21.

May 12. Slight earthquake..

June 17. Pavilionat the Willows opened.

June 22. Commemorative exercises at
Juniper Point, Salem, by the Essex In-
stitute, on the 250th anniversary of the
arrival of John Winthrop; address by
Robert 8. Rantoul.

Qct. 4. . City Council appropriated $11,000
for purchasing Frye’s Mills.

Oct. 14. Celebration of 75th anniversary
of Salem Light Infantry.

QOct. 16. Firstissue of Salem Evening News.

Nov. 8 Names of streets around the
Common changed to ‘‘Washington sq.”

Dec. 21. Arrival of new steam fire en-
gine “Victor.”
1881.

Jz 1. 17. School committee abolished of-
{dce of Superintendent of Schools.

Jan, 29, Serious fire at W. C. Packard’s
store.

"eb. 1. Hacks and wagons first licensed.
b, %MDeath of Gen. George H. Peirson,

zed 64.
ch 14. Arrived from Calcutta barque
almette, Capt. B. W. Chadbourne,
h jute butts to Nevins Bagging Co.
s first arrival at this port from Cal-
a since Dec. 20, 1842,
. 15. City Council appropriated
w 100 for filling Frye's Mill Pond and
building canal.

April 21, Act authorizing city to take
flats in North River between North st.
an;ld Grove st., and south of Essex rail-
road.

May 20. Revised New Testament issued.

May 80. Severe thunder storm, causing
great alarm.

June 6. City Council ahppropriated $6,000
for new brick hose house in Ward 6;
dedicated March 23, 1882.

June 6. City Council appropriated $40,-
000 for filling Beckford st. basin in
North river, and for Bridge st. exten-
sion; fillng began July 17 and ended
Jan. 17, 1882; 130,000 tons gravel used.

June 13, City Council appropriated $100,-
000 for filling South Mill Pond; with-
drawn at end of year.

re ucstroyed tanmery of N.
well; loss $50,000.
.athaniel Silsbee, fifth mayor of
died at Milton, aged 76.
Death of President James A.
; funeral Sept. 26; business

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF SALEM.

Dee. 20. Thse electric lights were satis~
factorily lighted by the Salem Electric.
Light Co., for the first time, and burned
with great brilliancy.

1882,

Cate’s Dlock constructed.

Feb. 19. Charles A. Read of Newton died.
bequeathing $40,000 to City of Sale™
for various purposes.

March. New Perley Block completed.

March 13. City Council appropriated
$67,000 for filling Dean st. basin in North
river.

March 22. Death of John Bertram, Esq.,
aged 86. Bequeathed $5,000 each, to
Salem Hospital, Old Ladies’ Home, Sea-
men’s Widow and Orphan Association,
East India Marine Society, South Ch.
$108,000 to Old Men’s Home; $41,000 to
Seamen’s Orphan and Children’s Friend
Society; $36,000 to Plummer Farr sch.:
also, after widow’s deceasep™® -
$120,000 to Salem Hospital, argy?
to Old Ladies’ Home. g

April 7. Eastern Railroad depoth

April 23. Fire destroyed tgreat‘. quanti
of jute at Phillips wharf.

May 9. Fire destroyed Callahan’s ¢
ing shop and Poor’s tannery on N
st.

May 29. Visit of Zuni Indians with Mr
F. H. Cushing.

July 27. City Council appropriated $25,
000 for South Mill pond canal; and Aug
7, $27,000 for new Phillips schoolhouse.

Sept. 2. TUnusual display of sundogs. '

Sept. 8. Chester A. Arthur, President U.
S. visited Salem.

Sept. 30. Kinsman bloek completed ; 700,-
000 bricks used.

Oect. First volume of Naumkeag Direc-
tory issued.

1883.

Jan. 1. Death of Samuel Calley, 16th
mayor of Salem, aged 61.

Jan. 21. Post office in new building, 118
Washington st. opened to public.

March 28. Visit of Malagasy Embassy.

June 1. Dedication of new convent build-
ing on Walnut st.

June 26. City Council passed order tak-
ing flats in Mason st. basin, North river.

J uwl?y 9. Fire at Ingersoll's and Van

ranken’s stores. Loss $6,000.

July 9. First brick laid on Naumkeag
M&igll, No. 5; first loom started Jan. 12,
1884,

Aug. 22. TFireat planing mill on Front st.

Sept. 3. Dedication of new Phillips
school house.

Sept. 18. First horse cars to Harmony
Grove.

Sept. 256 and 26. Exhibition of Essex
Agricultural Society at Willows.

Nov. 18. New standard time.

Nov. 27 and 28. Beautiful sunsets.

1884,
Mareh 12 . Hon. Otia P. T 7

Thae "
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June 8. Burning of Wislow & Rogers’
shoe factory; %oss $100,000.

June 23. City Council voted to fake flats
in North river, east of North bridge.

June 25. First horse cars to Danvers.

Aug, 18. First horse cars to Marblehead.

Aug. 21. Work begun on new jail.

Aug. 22. First children’s picnic at Wil-
lows from Read fund.

1885.

March 3. City Council appropriated $125,-
000 for filling Mason st. basin and docks
east of bridge, il:l1 g; grth river.

March 20. Aldermen grant Boston &
Maine railroad location of track through
- great pastures.

Sept. 18. City Government of Salem ap-
propriated $4500 for sidewalk on Bever-
ly bridge.

Oct. 156. 100th anniversary of Salem Ga-

zette.
Nov. 1. Streets lighted by 126 electric
lights,
b . Gen. Wm. Cogswell first elected
ongress.

-« Dedication of Soldier's monu-
at erected by Sons of Veterans, at
senlawn cemetery.

. 9. Fires at Balcomb’s carpenter shop,
iberty street; and Heardon's currying
shop, Beach street; loss heavy.
ov. 23. Strike on Salem &
Street Railway.
ov. 25. Labor riot on Boston st.; horse
car attacked.
ov. 28. End of great strike at Salem and
Peabody tanneries. |
iov. 30. Enlargement of Greenlawn
Cemetery completed.
Jec. 5. Loss of schooners “Savannah,”
“Tiiza Ann,” and ‘‘Alta V. Cole,”’ near
Baker’s Island. i

‘an. 20. Two boysdrowned off Central

wharf.
Jan. 22. Electric fire alarm completed
and accepted.
Feb. 10. Publication of ‘A half century
in Salem,” by M. C. D. Silsbee.
**  Salem electric fire alarm put in

Danvers

T Sal~m Fvening

currying shop, loss
Danvers Oil Works, .
June 20. Opening of new L
-- sex Institute. )
July 7. Leak in water main
bridge.
J uéy 9. Balloon ascension;
ewbury

July 29. Severe thunder storn
TP M.

July 30. Opening of new hotel «

Island.

Sept. 8. Boston & Maine R. R. gr:
permission to fill river at Forest .
bridge.

Sept. 12. Fire at R. Muhlig’s fann
loss $4,000.

Sept. 15. Brilliant meteor.

Oct. 1. Beverly discontinued use of Saler
water works.

Oct. 10. Dedication of Father Mathew
monument, and a great parade of tem-
perance societies.

Oct. 11. Boston & Lowell R. R, passed
into the hands of B. & M. R. R.

Oct. 25. Dedication of
ment’’ at North bridge. -

Dec. 5. Bertram estate donated to City
of Salem for Public Library.

1888

Jan. 22 to 80. Severe cold weather; 1L
and 12 degrees below zero ; iarbor frozen
to Naugus head.

Jan. 25, Fire at Market House. )

Jan. 26. Severe storm. Heavy blockades-
of snow North and West.

Jan, 28. Total eclipse of the moon.

Jan. 30. Reception to Sir Thomas Grat-
ton Esmonde and Hon, John Stuart at.
Mechanic Hall.

Feb. 2. Visit of Gen,Phil H. Sheridan.

Fatl_). 6. Salem Times suspended publica-

10,
March 4. Fire in Newcomb b’
M;l‘(}h 11. Death of William 1
LB(.

Mal'(gl 12, Severe snow stc
mails blockaded for sev-

April 2, First issue of
Telegram.

April 16. First issv-

May: Deathof T

. b& "8.

“Leslie monu-
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF BEVER.

of new court house;

i
«d or [rade formed.
sem Flambeaux and 8th Regu.
depart for Washington.
Five prisoners escaped from

Fire destroyed Carleton curry-

Wesley church dedicated.
0 May 1. Celebration at New
f Gen. Washington’s inangura-
.  Salem Cadets present.

13. Flats in South river between
afayette and Washington streets taken
v vote of Oiig Council.

127, City Council appropriated $5000

ta - steam road roller.
June 28, New flag staff erected on com-
mon.
July 5. Explosion of mortar on common;
two children killed and four injured.
July 8. Public Library first opened for
delivery of books. ]

Aug. 9. Severe fire corner of Lafayette
and Dodge sts.

Sept. 2. Collection of ashes commenced.

Sept. 23. Meeting of National Council, O.
U. A. M. at Salem.

Oct. 4. Fire destroyed P. Sims & Son’s
factory; loss $100,000.

Oct. 17. Aldermen grant location to Es-
sex Eleciric St. Ry. Co.

Oct. 18, First test of steam road roller.

Oct, 30. City Council appropriated $210,-
000 for new water main via Danvers;
$36,000 additional appropriated Nov. 27.

Nov. 5.- First election under Australian
system.

Nov. 18, Arrival of five-masted schooner
“Gov. Ames;’ largest in the world.

Nov. 30. Mechanic Light Infantry dis-
banded.

T™~~ 17 Dedication of new Universalist

st $18,500.

alem Building Association or-

ganized : work pegun on two new shoe
factories at Castle hill.
Tec. Epidemic of ““La Grippe.”
Dec, 25. Christmas Day; very warm;
glass at 66 deg. *
1890

Jan, 6, First late train from Boston to
Peabody, Danvers, etc.; first late ex-
press to Salem.

Jan. 25. First issue of “‘Salem Witch.”

Jan. 29. Fire at Hamilton Hall.

Feb. 13. Opening of Essex Riding Acad-
emy. [hail.

Feb. 18, Thunder storm with snow and

Feb. 22, New issue of postage Btamﬁm.

Feb. 27. Act passed authorizing highway
from Peabody to Salem by Harmony
Grove. ;

April 15, Second Corps of Cadets pur-
chase Peabody mansion.

April 16. Work commenced on new wa-
ter main.

April 18. Draw. of Lafayette st. brid
discontinued. Tnated.

May 22. New factories at Castle h

May 29. First issue of ““Salem Visi.

June 6. Severe thunder shower. «
store house on Union st. strud
lightning; loss $16,000.

June 9. Naumkeag St. Ry. Co. sold
syndicate.

June 9. City Council appropriated $6
000 for Canal st.

June 20. Fire at store house of Naumket
mills; loss $16,000.

June 26. .Fire on Burnside st., destro;
ing ice houses, etc.

July 13. Dedication of new Marine Beth
on Turner st.

July 28. Filling of mill pond commence
by B. & M. R. R. e

Aug 4. 'Work begun on Canal street. -

Aug. 11. Reception to Gen. Alger.

Aug. 21. Electric cars to the Willows.

(See also interesting events of past tw
years.)

-~

BEVERLY.
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Prices Low; Goods Warranted as Represented.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF BEVERLY.

Great excitement pro;iuced by claim of
heirs of John Mason to all the land be-
tween Merrimac and Naumkeag rivers.

1682

First parish meeting house which was
erected in 1656, sold and new house
erected.

1683.

Beverly became a port of entry.

1684

Town. voted topurcha'se land to enlarge
common.

1687.
Town voted to impose fine of ten shillings
on all future absentees from town meet-

ings.
1690.
Expedition against Quebec; a company
_ was raised in Beverly, and sent under
command of Capt. Wm. Rayment.
Fort built for defence.
April 11. Andrew Elliot elected first town
clerk,
1695,

toad from first parish meeting house to
Manchester laid out.

1698.
Jan. 5. Ferry landing laid out.
1700

A grammar school was established.

May 2. Severe sform of rain and hail,
lasting three days.

May 15. Death of Rev. John Hale.

1705.
March 13. Training field or common
deeded to the town.
1706.
Standard weights and measures provided
by the town.

1713.
Land granted to erect school house at
Farms.
Oct. Second parish incorporated, and
meeting house erected.

First burial place insecond parish opened.
Dec. 28, ‘Second ch:llr_(z:h organized.
1727,
Oct. 29. Severe earthquake.
17338,
Bartlett street laid out.
1745,

Dr. Robert Hale jr., commissioned as
Colonel and commanded a regiment in
the expedition against Louisburg; in-
cluding a company from Beverly under
command of Capltigenj. Ives.

“Browne Hall” a costl-y mansion, erected
on Browne's hill.

1752,
Rial Side united to Beverly.
1754

The number of slaves in town was 28.

Measures taken for destruction of wolves.

June 6. Act passed to prevent mischief
being done by unruly dogs in Beverly.

61

1755,
Nov. 18, Severe earthquake.

1767.
Death of Col. Robert Hale.
Powder house built on the common.

1769,
Feb. 11. . Harbor frozen to Baker’s Island.

1770.

June 27. First parish meeting house tak-
en down, and the third building erected;
cost $4,333.

1774.

Oct. 4. A Beverly privateer chased into
harbor by British ship-of-war; the lat-
ter running aground was cannonaded
from the Beverly and Salem shores for
two or three hours, but finally escaped.

Nov. 17. Town voted to excuse from jury
duty, etc., men who would organize a
fire company.

1775.

Feb, 27. Town voted to establish a watch
and to raise fifty-four minute men.

April 19. One citizen killed and threr
wounded at Battle of Lexington.

Sept. 3. The “Hannah” of Beverly o
missioned as the first privateer of
Revolution.

Oct. Breastworks erected at Woodbur, .
Point and Paul’s Head.

1777, )

July 7. Col. Ebenezer Francis of Beverly
_I{rillad in engagement near Whitehall, N,

Nov. About sixty women marched in reg-
ular order to the wharves and seized a
quantity of sugar, which merchants had
refused fo sell at staple prices, by rea-
son of depreciateigqgaper currency.

Forty men from Bevea:ly lost at sea this

year.
1780.
May 19. Dark day.

1781,

Rev. Joseph Willard elected President of
Harvard College, and continued until
his death in 1804.

1783.

French troops passed the night in second

parish on their way to Portsmouth.
1788.

First cotton mill in U. 8. erected in this
t?wn, at junction of Cabot and Dodge
sts.

Land near the common purchased for
burial purposes.

Sept. 24, Beverly bridge opened for
travel ; cost $16,000. ’

1780,

Washington visited Beverly and inspected

the cotton factory.
1790,

Feb. 22. Barn of Richard Derby and 36

head of cattle, burned. :
1796.
First town clock.

STAINING OF WOODWORK
A SPECIALTY, BY

E. N. BASSETT,

1 BENTLEY
STREET.
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1797.

Town voted to build a new grammar sch.
house on Watch hill; completed in 1798
and used also for a town hall.

1798

First health officer chosen.
1

T99.
Jan, 18. Schooner *‘ Alert” of Beverly,
captured by French privateers.
Death of Miss Emma Leach, 69 years old,
and only 22 inchaias {l)lligh.

Smallpox Hospital erected on Paul’s head ;
‘cost s

March 25. First Baptist church constitu-
ted, and house erected same year.

June 2. Light Infantry Co. organized.

1802.

Jan. 20. The Social Library formed.

July 23. Beverly Bank incorporated;
made National Bank in 1865.

Nov. 9. Dane st. church organized and
house erected same year at cost of $6000
to $7,000.

1803.

Almshouse erected.

Second burial ground in second parish
laid out.

Washington street laid out.

05.
May. 16. Town voted to raise $1,000 for
purchase of newlfel’a_? engine.

July 4. Parade and celebration of the day.

1808.
New powder house built.

Beverly Marine Insurance Co. chartered.
1810

First Sunday school in America estab-
lished by Misses Hill and Prince.
Fisher Charitable S%ci;ty organized.
1812,

Manufacture of Britannia ware begun.
181

An attack being feared from the British,
several families moved fo the interior.
June 9. A barge pursued by a British

ship-of-war, was run ashore on Mingo's

beach; set on fire by the British, but

fire extinguished by the inhabitants.
QOct. 14. Beverly Light Infantry organ-

ized.
1815.

Feb. 22. Celebration of peace; end of
war with Great Britain.

1820,
June 15. Death of Moses Brown.
1824,

Liberty Lodge of Free Masons established.
Aug. 31. Gen. Lafa.grgestta visited Beverly.
1828,

Cotton mill destroyed by fire.

Town voted to procure another fire en-
gine. [burned.

Jan. 4, Anna‘bla’sltézlgﬁnet. maker’s shop

Farms church organized, and new house
dedicated in Jan. 1830; cost about $1600.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF BEVERLY.

May. Hon. Nathan Dane donated $10,000
to Harvard College about this time.

May 29. Four houses and one store
burned; fire commenced in house of
Mr. Curry.

Oct. 6. Parade of Second Brigade of mili-
tia at upper Bev?ggyl.

Coal began to be used. ’

1832.

April 19. Fire destroyed Mr. Harris’ barn
with five cows, four oxen, hay, ete.

Nov. Whaling Company organized.

Deﬂc. 8. Dane street church destroyed by

re.
1833.

New Dane street church erected; cost
about $10,000,

March 15. Death of Hon. Joshua Fisher;
bequeathed $20,000 to Harvard College.
He founded Fisher Charitable Society
in 1810.

June 17. Beverly academy opened.

1834,

July 10. House at Chapman’s corner
completely shattered by lightning.

Sept. 1. Fourth Cong. church organized ;
meeting house dedicated Dec. 29,

1835.

Feb. 5. Death of Hon. Nathan Dane.

July 4. Celebration of the day by pro-
cession, etc. Oration by Edward Ev-
erett.

Dec. 3. First Parish meeting house re-
opened after being remodelled at cost of
$10,000. o

1836.
Female Charitable Society incorporated.

1837.
Baptist church reconstructed at cost of
over $7,000, and dedicated Nov. 23.
Feb. 8. Washington st. church society
formed and meeting house erected at
cost of $9,387; ﬂfgggated March 29.

Agns’la%use remodelled at expense of

2,500,

Public streets, courts, ete. (43) named by
order of the town.

Feb. 1. Remodelled Second Cong. church
dedicated.

May. Many trees set out in streets and
public grounds.

. . 1839.
Woolen carpet factory established.
Erection of Bell’s hall.
Dec. 18. Eastern R. R. opened from
Salem to Ipswich,

1840,
Burial ground at Farms laid out.
Feb. 17. First Universalist Society or-
ganized.
1841.

Feb. 10. Brick residence of Israel Thorn-
dike purchased for $6.500 and altered
into town ball; opened for public pur-
poses, Oct. 26.

May 20. Foster & Lovett’s store on Fos-

ter’s wharf burned.

E.N.BASSETT sells Paints, Oils and Glass,

1 BENTILEY
S TREET.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF BEVERLY.

Dec. 18. Mrs. Martha Appleton reached
100 years of age; the Erat erson to
reach that age since the settlement of
the town.

842

)k .
A school house was erected in Bass river
district.
July 4. TUnion celebration by Sunday
school children.

1843
Jan. Town history published by Rev. E.
M. Stone.
Dec. Branch railroad to Wenham pond
built.
1844

June 4. Fire destroyed cabinet maker’s
shop, house of Dr. Kittredge, barn, ete.
Loss $12,300.

Nov. 21. New Baptist meeting house at
Farms dedicated.

Universalist church erected.

June 7. First divine service of the
Protestant Episcopal church.

Oct. 21, India rubber factory destroyed
by fire; loss $3,000.

1847.

May 12. Essex County Health Insurance

Co. organized in Beverly.
1849,

March 28. Seaside residence of Franklin
Haven destroyed by fire.

June 12. Old Hospital building, on Paul’s
Point, at the cove, burned.

1850.

QOct. 18, Large barn and slaughter house
of Col. Jesse Sheldon burned, at No.
Beverly.

1851.

Public Library established.

Beverly Citizen first issued.

Jan. 23, Atlantic House totally burned,
;8 lggoge three story brick block; loss

Feb.'21. Bass River Lodge, I. 0. O. F.
organized.

May 15. Act incorporating proprietors of
the Commons or Sheep pasture.

May 15, Act for protection of the harbor.

May 26. Robert Rantoul jr. elected to
Congress.

1852,

Aug. 7. Sudden death of Robert Rantoul

jr. at Washington.
1858.

Dec. 9. New Cove school-house dedicated.

Dee. 10. Schooner * East Wind '’ launched
at Tuck’s Point; 130 tons.

1854.

Jan. Monument in memory of Robert
Rantoul jr. erected in family burial lot;
expense mainly defrayed by $1.00 con-
tributions from friends.

March 13. By-law against smoking in the
streets repealed.

Oct. 24. Schooner of 140 tons launched
from wharf of R. & J. Pickett.

Dec. 18, New railroad depot opened.

63

. 1855.

April 18. Act to protect fisheries in Dan-

vers and Beverly.
856.

Jan. 20. Stores of Foster & Lovett, D.
Crowell and R. & J. Pickett, on Water
st. burned.

Jan, 31, Eastern R. R. train thrown from
track at No. Beverly.

June 17. Death of Dr. Ingalls Kittredge;
aged 86.

1857.
Feb. 15. Fire at Eagle India Rubber fac-
tory; loss $15,000.
April 27. Part of Beverly annexed to
Danvers. _
. 0.
June 14. Death of Albert Thorndike.
Oct. 24. Death of Robert Rantoul; aged
80.

1859.
“ Beverly Citizen ” reestablished.
Beverly Gas Light Co. incorporated.
1860.
Apr. 27. Fire at Kerosene Works.
May. Town indicted a second time for
not sustaining a high school
Sept. 5. Great celebration of 50th anni-
versary of the establishment of Sunday
flchoo]s; procession contained 1500 chil-
rem.

1861.
March. Town voted to establish high
school; opened May 2, in Odd Fellows
hall

April 16. Beverly Light Infantry left for
war; arrived home Aug. 1.

July 18. Two barns, nine cows, etc.,
burned at Rial Side, owned by Henry
Collins.

Oct, 15, “Rantoul Guard,” Capt. John W.
Raymond, leave for camp at Lynnfield.

Nov. 13. Fire at Kerosene Works.

1862.

Jan, 26. Fire at buildings of R. & J,
Pickett and J. S. Cushing.

March 5. Rubber factory totally destroyed ;
loss $70,000.

July 10. Town voted to pay $100 bounty
to soldiers.

Aug. Capt. C. L.'Giddings’ company left
for camp at Lynnfield; left for seat of
war Sept. 8.

Nov. 15, Fire destroyed J. & J. Wilson’s
ropewalk on Lathrop st.; loss $4,000.
Nov. 25. Co. E, 8th Regt. Capt. F. E.
Porter, left camp at Wenham for New-
bern having re-enlisted Sept. 19; re-

turned July 29, 1863.

3.
Oct. 28. First horse cars from Salem.
1864.
Jan. 18 and 20. Great demonstrations
upon return of &)art of Co. G. 23d Regt.,
Capt. Raymond.

1865.
June. Completion of new Gothic church
(St. Peter’s); consecrated Sept. 4.

E N. BASSETT, House and Sign Painter,

1 BENTLEY
STREET,




UPHOLSTERY WORK IN ALL ITS BRANCHES
DONE AT 259 & 261 ESSEX ST., SALEM.

J. L. LOUGEE'S.

Aug. 4. Grand reception to returned
heroes of the war.

Dec. 19. Fire at cabinet works of Wm.
H. Allen; loss $6, %%%

Jan. 19. Fire destroyed three buildings
of Allen, Cheney, Bartlett & Co. at foot
of Congress st.; ioss $10,000.

March 12. Town voted to abolish dis-
trict system of schools and to establish
a uniform graded system ; also, appro-

riated $7,000 for purchase of steam
engine.

Sept. 10, Dwellings of Messrs. Lee and

abot at Farms robbed of silver plate
valued at $4,000; recovered and three
robbers arrested at Chelsea; one being
shot dead. -~

1
Beverly Savings Bank chartered.
‘Walnut hill purchased for cemetery.
April. First Meth. church organized.
A‘ﬁﬁi l8 Laying of corner stone of Masonic

Oct. 2. 200th anniversary of the First
Parish observed.
1868.
March. Banks moved tonew Masonic blk.
Sept. 20. Death of Miss Joanna Quiner,

sculptor.
Oct. 9. Reservoir on Chipman hill com-
pleted.
1869,
First Meth, church erected on Railroad
ave.
June 15. Post 89, G. A. R. organized.
Sept. g: New first Baptist church dedi-
cated.

Nov. 2. Fire destroyed Brown house on
hill near the bridge.
Nov. 6. Tolls on Essex bridge abolished.

Jan. 1.

ipes.

Jar:.’l. 14. Death of Charles Davis, Esq.;
aged 63; he bequeathed $5,000 to Essex
Institute, and $8,500 to various local
societies.

July 23. Dedication of new Catholic ch.

Nov. 29. Cabinet shop of Weed & Cole
and two other buildings on May street
burned.

1870.
Wenham water let into service

1871.
March 30. Stable of John Pickett on
Union st. and six horses burned.
Lighthouse at Hospital point

July ‘8 Three new hose carriages re-
ceived by fire depagtg:ent
187

Jan. 28. Death of Capt. Samuel Endi-
cott.

Feb. New almshouse completed; cost
with adjoining land $25,000.

1873.

Jan. 28, Fire at 8. Norwood & Co.’s fac-
tory; several persons jumped from third
story and badly injured.

Feb. 11. Fire destroyed Odd Fellows hall.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF BEVERLY.

Aug. New depot completed at No. Bev-
erly.

1874.
April 15. Act authorizing town to issue
onds for funding debt.
1875

Jan, Remodelled town hall first occupied
by town officers.

Jau. New Briscoe school house dedica-
ted; costabout $75,000.

J uﬁ%e 20. Death of Seth Norwood; aged

July 6. Bakery of Wm. A. Cottrell struck
by lightning and burned.

Sept. 8. New Odd Fellows’ Hall dedi-
cated; cost about s&) 000.

New England Iudush ial School for Deaf
Mutes organized.

May 28. Ober’s saw mill near the bridge
burned,

1879.

Death of Dr. Wyatt C. Boyden; aged 87.

March 24. Death of James Hill, Esq.,
town clerk; aged 62.

April 1. Accident to Pullman train at
No. Beverly; train wrecked; no one in-

jured.
July. Depot at Pride’'s Crossing built.
Oct. Arrival home of the Andrews Bros.
after trip across the Atlantic in the boat
(lNautﬂuB-”
1880,

Feb. 3. Fire destroyed sammer residence
of W. D. Pickman at Cove; two persons
killed and several injured.

Feb. 26. Morocco factory of Wm. F.
Murphy burned.

Nov. 1. Death of Dr. Augustus Torrey;
aged 6.

Nov. 20. New school house at Dodge’s
Row opened.

1881,

April 30, Act authorizing town to refund
its indebtedness; accepted, July 6.
Sept. Arrival of steam fire engine ‘“‘En-
terprise.”
882.

1
Oct. 4. First issue of Beverly Times.
Oct. 13. Dedication of Soldiers’ monu-
ment; cost $4,800. Gov. Long and many
distinguished people present.

1883.

Jan. 1. Death of Miss Elizabeth Man-
ning Hawthorne.

Feb. 24, Opening of Lefavour's opera
house.

May 10. Several burglaries.

May 14. Fire destroyed Lynch & Welch’s
morocco factory, and Lawrence's pot-
tery; loss $50,000

Aug. 8. Narrow esca.pe from colliding
trains at depot.

Sept. 15. Commercial block commenced.

Sept. 21. First horse cars to northern
junction of Cabot and Rantoul sts.

1 .
Jan, 9. Death of Lt. Col. Henry P. Wood-

bury; aged 48,

Fine Decorative Painting, E. N. BASSET

1 BENTLEY
STREET.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF BEVERLY,

March 12. Porter’s shoe factory burned,

Oct. 10. Parade of Essex Co. Catholic
Temperance Societies.

Dec. 23. South schs%%l house burned.

1885,

Jan. 27. Barn and slaughter house of C.
F. Porter, No. Beverly burned.

May 1. Atlantic block commenced.

May 27. Lock out in shoe factories.

Ju.qg 4. Burning of rubber factory; Rial
side.
June 16.

toul st.

Aug. 26, Opening of new Bank building;
cost $25,000.

Sept. 8. Town vofed for independent
‘water supply. Afterwards appropriated
$150,000 for new works. The contract
was $127,000 with $11,000 additional for
new main.

Nov. 20. Dedication of new brick engine
house ; cost about $20,000.

Nov. 30. Town voted for electric fire
alarm. )

First horse cars through Ran-

1886.
Old Ladies’ Home Society organized.
Feb. 23. New South school house opened ;
cost $25,000.
March 3. Legislature voted against divis-
ion of town.
April 1. End of seven weeks’ labor
trouble.
July 8. First horse cars to Cove.
July 24, Electric lights.
887

1587.

Jan. 17. Opening of Post Office in Odd
Fellows’ building.

March 2. Cabot st. illuminated by elec-
tric lights.

March 23. House of Representatives voted
(181 to 87) in favor of dividing Beverly.

April 6. Mass. Senate voted 19 to 11 for
division of Beverly.

April 9. Indignation meeting at Beverly
against division,

May 19. Death of Richard P. Waters at
Cherry Hill farm.

May 23. Gov. Ames vetoed the Beverly
division bill.

May 24. Town celebrated veto of divis-
ion bi!l.

July 10. Opening of new Catholic church
at Beverly Farms.

Sept. 5. Odilon Menard and child of Sa-
em killed by cars.

65

Sept. 21. 25th anniversary of musterin(f
in of Beverly Light Infantry celebrated.

Oct, 1, Beverly discontinued use of Sa-
lem water works.

Oct. 9. Dedication of St. Margaret’s Cath-
olie church, Beverly Farms.

Deec. 8. Death of John Pickett; aged 80.

1888,

March 15. Legislature voted 109 to 124
against division of Beverly.

April 2. Town accepted water works and
voted to establish Water Board.

April 238. Beverly appropriated $3500 for
new school house at Rial side.

May 21. Renumbering of streets com-
menced.

Oct. 10. Burning of steamer *‘‘Admiral.”

Nov. 1. Free letter delivery.
1389,
Jan. 10. New school house at Rial side
opened.
Jan. 21. Assault on non-union lasters at

Lefavour’s factory. .

May 27. Beverly & Danvers Street Rail-
way incorporated.

June. *‘Fair Play” fire engine sold.

June 27. Opening of new hotel ‘““The
Queen.”

June 27. New bell placed in tower of Av-
enue church.

July 8. Work begun on Beverly & Danvers
street railway.

Aug. 21. Contracts made by Beverly Bldg.
Asso. for three new factories on Ran-
toul st.

Sept. 3. Town divided into five voting
precinets,

Sept. 24-25. Cattle show.

Oct. 10. Death of Dr. Charles Haddock.

Oct. 31. Opening of Beverly & Danvers
street railway.

Dec. 13. Flags placed on all the school
houses.

1890

April 7. Town appropriated $8,000 for
new armory, and $2,500 for surveying
system of sewerage.

April 21. Town appropriated $4,000 for
steam road roller.

May 26. Widening of Cabot st. at the
bridge ordered by County Commission-
ers.

(See also interesting events of past two
years.)

DANVERS.
1752 TO 1890.

(Copyrighted, 1802, by Henry M. Meek. Allrights reserved against publication by any other person.)

1752,
Jan. 25. Danvers set ¢if from Salem, and
incorporated; it included the Village
and middle parishes of Salem.

1757.
June 9. Act passed conferring full powers
of a town.

E. N. BASSETT, BAINIER, “*“¥ilist ™
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1759.
Sealer of Weights and Measures first
chosen.

1765,
Town voted to build school house on land
belonging to Mlddle Parish,
1770.
May 28, People voted not to drink tea,
and to endeavor to prevent its use.
1771,
April. Lightning killed a large number
of horses and cafttle.
1772,
July 14, Act regulating town meetings

lHassed.

July 14, Act passed subjecting inhabi-
tants of Danvers Neck to the charge of
maintaining certain bridges and high-
ways.

1774,

Steeple built on west end of South Parish
meeting house.

June 5. Thomas Gage, Royal Governor
of Mass. removed from Boston to the
Collins House.

July 21. Two companies of 64th Regi-
ment Royal troops arrived and remained
until Sept. 5th, when they returned to
Boston.

1775.

Feb., 26. Col Leslie at North Bridge, Sa-
lem; Capt. Samuel Eppes and company
marched at once to the place.

April 19. News of Battle at Concord and
Lexington received. Five companies at
once left Danvers. from which seven
men were killed, two taken prisoners,
and many wounded.

Sept. 14. Col. Benedict Arnold on his
way from Cambridge to Quebec, en-
camped at Danvers.

1785.

April 11. North parish vote to build new

meeting house of vggod

July 25. Death of Eliza Wharton.
1795.

Feb. 18. George Peabody born.
1797.
March9. Salem & Danvers Aqueduct Co.
incorporated.
1800,

Aug. 25. Fire department commenced by
purchase of two engines; one placed at
Bell tavern and the other at new milils.
Two more added in 1821.

Sept. North 1Emmsh meeting house
bumad a new house of brick was im-
medmtely built at cost of $11,300.

1811.

Feb. 2. Great snow storm, lasting three

days; drifts 15 feet high.
1814,

New bell Eumhased for South parish
meeting-house.

Feb. Danvers Moral Society (first tem-
perance society) organized.

1816.
Jan 2. Death of Samuel Holten; aged 77.
1823

Oct. 7. Review of Gen. Appleton’s bri-
gade of cavalry, artillery and infantry,
near Tapley's brook.

Oct. 23. Gen. Foster's bark, chocolate
and grist mills, bl:sl;iled.

1824,

July 5. Liberty pole erected in memory
of seven citizens slain at Battle of Lex-
ington.

Nov. 12. Fire near gouth meeting house.

25.

Danvers Bank incorporated.

April. Moon and stars visible at noon for
several days.

Oct. 6. Gen. Appleton’s brigade of mili-
tia reviewed near Tapley’s brook.

1826.
Jan. 18. Death of Rev. Benj. Wadsworth.
July 26. Unitarian church dedicated.
Oect. 12. Catfle show.
1828.
July 18, Meefing house raised at New
Mills, “without the use of ardent
spirits.” .

1829,
Danvers Mutual Fire Insurance Co. insti-
tuted.
June 3. New Baptist church dedicated.

1830.
March 12. Act authorizing the Fire De-
partment, which was scon after organ-

ized.
1831,

Warren Bank incorporated.

1832.

First Board of Health chosen.

Feb, Post office established in South
Danvers.

March 22. Fire destroyed planing mill
ete., of Mathew Hooper.

Sept. A steam mill for grinding bark,
beating hides, and smoothing leather
put into operation at K. Osborn’s tan-
nery.

1833.
Mongmontal cemetery, So. Danvers, laid
out.
Jan. 10. New church of Second Univer-
salist Society dedicated.
June 28, Dedication of church of First
Universalist Society.
Oct. 29. Visit of Henry Clay.
1835.
April 20. Laying of corver stone of Lex-
ington monument in So. Danvers.
Sept. 30. Cattle show at So. Danvers.
18336.
0Old South meeting house taken down and
new one er ect.ed at costof $12,000; dedi-
cated Feb. 1, 1837.
Post office estabhshed in No. Danvers.
Village Bank incorporated.
Sept. 28. Cattle show at So. Danvers.
Oct. 18. Lexington monument completed ;
cost about $300.

Fine Decorative Painting, E. N. BASSET

1 BENTLEY
STREET.
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1839.
July 4. Celebration of the day by pro-
cession, ete.
Nov. 21. New meeting-house of First Re-
ligious Society dedicated.

1840.

March 18. Salem boundary changed.
1841.

Danvers Mechanic Institute incorporated.
1842

March 5. Peter Putnam’s barn struck by
lightning and burned with five cows,
oxen, hay, ete.

1843.

Daniel P. King elected representative to
U. S. Congress.

Sept. 22. Fire destroyed Second Cong.
church, the Essex Coffee House, and 12
stores and houses in South Parish ; loss
$75,000.

Qet. 17. Walnut Grove Cemetery corpo-
ration inf.:m:]:ccu-s;\t-ie{gd:4

‘Small pox prevailed.

Almshouse completed at cost of $12,750.

March 11. Aet authorizing town to put
down and maintain channel poles in
Porter’s, Water’s and Crane rivers.

April 7. Buildings of John Marsh on
Lynnfield road burned.

May 26. Barn and slaughter house nf Dan-
jiel Berry, No. Danvers, burned; loss
4,500,

June 23.
crated.

Aug, 7. New South parish meeting-house
dedicated ; cost $13,000.

Aug. 28, Danvers Eagle published from
this date to April 16, 1845.

1845,

Jan, Post office established at New Mills.

Jan. 22. Dedication of new church of
Third Cong Society.

Jan. 24, Planing mill of Woodbury &
Phelps on Grove st. destroyed by fire.
March 15. Danvers Courier established.
June 10. Fire at Danvers Plains destroyed

12 houses. shons. ete.. loss $80,000.

June 18. Fire destroyed peg factory, box
factory, and carpet factory at Tapley-
ville; the latter was 120 feet long and
three stories high.

Walnut Grove Cemetery conse-

Nov.1. Death of Gen. Gideon Foster;
aged 96.
1847.
Jan. 13. Spirited meeting of citizens

friendly to chartering railroad from
Danvers through Lynn to Malden.

Jan, 18. Essex railroad opened from Sa-
lem to So. Danvers.

July 8. Death of Hon. Elias Putnam,
aged 58.

Sept. 6. Fire at New Mills destroyed Bap-
tist echurch, vestry and dwelling.

Nov. Very warm weather until Dec. 16th.
Trees budded as ;gigprinp:.

Sept. 5. Essex railroad opened to Law-
rence.
Nov. 1. Fire destroyed shop of A. Wiley
in South Danvers.
1

April 9. Fire destroyed slaughter-house,
arn, &c,, of Samuel Crane of So. Dan-
Vers.

June 12, TFirst field meeting of Essex In-
stitute was held at Danvers.

July 25. Grammar school house at Port

edicated.

Aug. 8. Tannery of Henry Poor at So.
Danvers burned.

Aug. 30, 81. Brigade muster of Militia
at No. Danvers. .
Dec. 24. Morocco shop and 150 cords of
bark on Foster st. burned ; loss $7000.
1850.

Jan, 22. Severe storm; much damage at

So. Danvers.

March 16. Fire destroyed shoe factory
of Boardman & Gould on Locust st.;
loss, $7000.

March 25. Town voted to establish two
High schools, one in South and one in
North parish.

May 22. Savings bank organized,

July 10. Meeting-house at Danvers Plains
burned.

July 18. Steam Mill at Tapley’s brook
burned.

July 25. Hon. Daniel P, King, member of
Congress, died.

Aug. 1. Salem & Lowell railroad opened.

Sept. South Reading Branch railroad
opened.

Oct. 30. Attempt to enter Village Bank,
supposed to be made by several persons}
watchman fired through the door, kill-
ing one man,

1851.

Feb. 20. Fire destroved two shoe factories
and barn at So. Danvers, owned by A.
Lunt of Boston.

March 27. Planing and bark mill of J. &
A, Taylor burned at So. Danvers; loss
$7000.

June 2. Fire destroyed morocco shop of
Pierce & Perley at So. Danvers; loss
$7000.

1852,

Jan, “New Mills"” changed to Danversport.

Feb. 12. Morocco factory of Pender &
Goodrich in So. Danvers, burned; loss
$10.000.

May 6. Kossuth visited So. Danvers.

June 16. Grand centennial celebration of
separation of Danvers from Salem.

George Peahodv donated $20,000 for Pea-
body Institute, So. Danvers. Donated
$10,000 more for site and building in
Feb. 1853.

1853.

Jan. 4. George Peabody offered $200 a
year, during his life, to be bestowed in
prizes for merit to school children.

March 15. 'Wild cat killed in vicinity of | Mareh 30, Dr. Andrew Nichols died,
Hog Hill. aged 67.
PAINTFR AND PAPER HANGER,

E. N. BASSETT,
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April 10. Death of Dr. Joseph Shedd;
town clerk for 18 years. athan H.
Poor chosen town clerk, April 25.

June 3. Store of Geo. P. Daniels at So.
Danvers, robbed of goods valued at
$1500,

Aug. 20. Corner stone of Peabody In-
stitute laid; dedicated Sept. 29, 1854,
cost $15,000.

Aug. 24. Fire in patent-leather factory
at So. Danvers; loss $8000.

1854,

‘Warren Bank building erected.

April 10. Town appropriated $7,000 in
addition to $12,000 previously appro-
priated to build two high school houses.

July 17. Accident to the Misses Howes
at railroad crossing in No. Danvers.

Oct. 23, Danvers ;a;l;oad opened.

April 18. Act to protect fisheries in Dan-
vers and Beverly.
April 21. New town and high school
ouse at So. Danvers dedicated.
MaytgEi New Chapel at Rock Village dedi-
ca

May 18. So. Danvers (Peabody) set off

and incorporated.
1856,

Feb. 20, Emerson’s store burned at
Plains; loss $6,000. )

May 31. Boundary between Danvers and
So. Danvers established.

Oct. 9. George Peabody given a public
reception, after f;r;fnty years' absence.

Jan. George Peabody donated $10,000
for a branch library in No. Danvers.

Jan. 1. Largenew school house dedicated
at Plains.

April 27. Part of Beverly annexed.

Sept. 29, 80. Exhibition of Essex Agri-
cultural Society.
859

1859,
May 11. Corner stone of Calvary (Epis.)
church laid; consecrated May 25, 1860.
Aug. 17. New Universalist church dedi-

cated.
Sept. 28, 20. Exhibition of Essex Agri-
cultural Society.

1860.
April 24. First market day held near
Berry's tavern.
Oct. 2. Engineers voted to disband fire
department, and reorganize same.
Nov. 6. Town lighted by gas for the
first time.

1821,

March. Town voted $10,000 for relief of
soldiers’ families.

Aug. 30. Company C. 17th Mass. Regt.
Capt. N. P. Fuller, left Lynnfield for
Washington.

1862.

June 4. Burglary at store of Geo. C.
Cook, tailor; loss $1,200.

July 29. Thirty-five volunteers left for
camp at Lynnfield.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF DANVERS.

Sept. 16. Co. K. 8th Regt. Capt. A.G.
Allen, went into camp; left for New-
bern, Nov. 25.

1863.

March 15. Fire destroyed currying shop
of Jos. Merrill at the Port; loss $4,000.

July 29. Return of Capt. Allen’s com-
pany from war.

Dec. 1. Funeral of Lieut. James Hill of
33rd Mass. Regt.

1864.

July 30. Demonstration at Walnut Grove
in honor of return of Putnam Guards.
and Light Infantry.

Nov. 16. Brig ““Lubra,” 350 tons, launched
at the Port.

1865.

Aug. 27. Reception to returned soldiers.
Deec. 15. Shoe factory of Elbridge Trask
destroyed by ﬁre.8

1866.

July. George Peabody donated $40,000 to
the Institute.

Nov. 8. Exciting demonstration and wel-
come upon return from Lawrence jail,
of seven young men who had been sen-
tenced for alleget} é‘ﬁigtons agsault.

April 18. Reception to George Peabody,
y the school ohil%lgén.
1

Nov. New EasternR. R. depot completed.

1869.

July 14. Peabody Institute dedicated in
presence of Mr. Peabody, who donated
$45,000 more, making $100,000 in all.

Nov. 4. Death of George Peabody, at
London, Eng., ageéi? 4.

|

0. )
March 11. Fire destroyed shoe factory of
Joseph H. Rice and other buildings on
the square. _
Nov. 30. Soldiers’ monument in front of
town hall dedicated; cost $6,300.
Dec. 3. New schoolhouse at Tapleyville
dedicated.
1871.

Danvers Mirror established.

May 1. Catholic church of the Annun-
ciation dedicated.

1872,

Oct. 8. Celebration of 200th anniversary

of the Congragati%&}:;l church.
1873.

Jan. 30, Arrival of new fire engine “Gen.
Putnam,” -

Feb. 6. Maple st. church re-dedicated.

March 27. Methodist Episcopal church,
Taplevville, dedicated.

Nov. Trotting park on Conant st. com-
pleted.

Nov. 7. Fire destroyed shoe factory of J.
M. Sawyer, and other buildings; loss
$40,000,

1874.

March. Work commenced on new Insan®
Asylum, on Hathorne's hill; the hill was
purchased for $39,200.

June 3. Arrival of new steam fire engine.

Graining by £, N. BASSETT and Glazing,

1 BENTLEY
STREET.
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Sept. 29, 30. Fair of Essex Agrmu‘lt.ural
boclety

‘Qct. 17. Store house of Danvers Carpet
Co., at Taplayvil]ltgqgumed.

March 22. Town voted %o build new
;ihn()c(’)l house in District No. 1, at costof

April Danvers Advance issued.

Sept. 13. Town voted 346 to 74 to estab-
lish water works.

Sept. 28, 29, Fair of Essex Agricultural
Soomt Y.

Nov. 2. Death of Rufus Putnam, Esq.,
it 1876,

May 13. Town voted to establish water
works, in connection with State.

July 25. Town voted to issue bonds
($150,000), the amount of contract for
construeting water works.

Sept. 15. Fire destroyed saw and grist
mill, and ice houses of Otis Putnam.

Sept. 26, 27. Fair of Essex Agricultural
Society.

Nov. 18. Death of Jonas Warren, aged 90.

Datg ?1d New water works completed and

ste

1877.

March 20. Town voted to sell all engines
and steamers and buy three hose car-
riages.

1878.

Feb. 12. Fire at Ropes’ block.
Ma{ 13. Danvers Lunatic Hospital com-
eted and opened for rece})t.wn of pa-
tients; cost to this date including land,
$1,509,287.49.
Oct.’3. Death of Cg_lngllbert Tapley.

July 24, Firemen’s muster,
Sept. 25. Parade of Essex County G. A.
R. Posts.
1880,

June 19. Town voted to increase salaries
of lady teachers.

1881.
March 1. Tannery of Robert Bates, at
Port, burned.

1882.
Sept. 12. Danvers Chorus Society formed.
1883,

Jan. 5. Iron rolling mills burned.

Jan. 28, Fire destroyed shoe factory of
Martin, Clapp & French, and three
dwellings at Tapleyville. [hall.

Oct. 1. Dedication of remodelled town

1884,

May 3. Roller skating rink opened.

June 25. First horse cars from Salem.

JU.;E. 23. Fire at Sellars & Co.’s shoe fac-

ory.

Nov. 14. Mrs. Elizabeth Putnam celebra-
ted her 100th birthday.

1885.
June 4. Mudge & Co.’s shoe factory
burned ; loss $100,000.
July 9. First horse cars to Peabody.
July 25. Water main struck by 11p;hming'.
July 80. Dedication of Rebecca Nurse
monument.

1886.
Feb. 2. Death of Hon. J. D. Philbrick.
July 24 Occupation of new police sta-
tion.
Aug. 5. Two workmen killed at Maple
street school house.

1887.
Jan. 4. Death of Dr. Preston M. Chase.
April 16. New England brick works
burned; loss, $25,000.
April 16. Danvers Street Railway sold to
Naumkeag St. Railway Co.

June 1. edication of new Baptist
chapel. )
Sept. 7. First opening of Willard Home

School for girls.

Sept. 20. Death of Mrs. Elizabeth Put-
nam, aged 102 yrs., 10 mos., 7 dys.

Dec. 17. Eightieth ﬁirthday of John G.
Whittier celebrated.

1888,

April 2. Danvers voted in favor of elec-
tric lighting; 212 to 6.

April 16, Town appropriated $15,000 for
electric light plant..

June 2. First horse cars to Danvers Asy-

lum.
1889,

Jan, 2. First electric lights in streets.

Jan. 14, Burglary at F. Peabody’s.

Feb. 1. Death of Wm. L. Weston.

March. New depot at Danversport com-
pleted.

June 6. Re-dedication of First church.

June 30. Several burglaries.

July 22. Board of Trade organized.

J uly 23. First Cong. church struck by

ihtmn%

Sep eath of Dr. D. A. Grosvenor.

Oct. 31. Opening of Beverly and Danvers
Street Railway.

1890. ;

Jan. 1. Library of Danvers Historical
Society dedicated.

Jan, 6. First late train from Boston.

Jan. 28. Fire destroyed First church.

April 25. Celebration of Danvers Im-

rovement Society. Governor and

iwut Gov. present.

July 2. Fire destroyed Peabody Institute.

(See also interesting events of past two
years.)

E. N. BASSETT, PAINTER,
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MARBLEHEAD.
1648 TO 1.820.

(Copyright, 1892, by Henry M. Meek. All rights reserved against publicatioa by any other person.

1648-9.

May 2. Marblehead set off from Salem
and incorporated. Original name Mar-
ble harbor.

1660.

Highway to Salem laid out.

1664,

Fort built.

Company organized so that the fishermen
might be drilled aud disciplined in mili-
tary tactics.

1668. . [ary.

Death of Wm.ﬁ _}Valton, the mission-

1675,

Watch house built.

First school in town.

1684,
First organization of a church.
1692-;

Oct.

June 27. Naval office established at Sa-
lem for this town.

1698.
June 27. Marblehead (with Salem) ad-
judged to be a lawful port.
Nov. School opened by Mr. Josiah Cot-
ton.
1714.
Episcopal church erected; frame and ma-
terials brought frlom England.

Second Cong. church erected.
17z
Town house arecteili

28.
Nov. 22, Visit of Gov. Burnett.
1729,

Dec. 9. Act passed for securing and re-
pairing the harbor, and to prohibit per-
sons carrying off sand, seaweed, etc.,
from the beach.

1730.

Fence and gate built across the road near
entrance to town, to restrain strangers
from Boston from entering the town on
account of small-pox in Buston. Guard
kept on duty two months, night and
day, but the disease finally obtained a
foot-hold, and nearly every family was
afflicted. Quarantine was declared
against Marblehead by all neighboring
towns. Pestilence continued a year
and many deaths occurred.

3T,

May 30. Rev. Edward Holyoke chosen

President of Harvard College.
1742,

Fort Sewall built; general court appropri-

ated 716 pounds therefor,

1744.
Visit of Whiteficld and great religious
excitement.
July 17. Elbridge Gerry born.

1747,

May. School for poor children established.

by Robert Hooper, jr.
1751,

March 19. First engine presented to-
town by Robert Hooper, Ksq., and fire
department organized.

1752,

Epidemic of small-pox.

March., By-law adopted, imposing fine
of ten shillings t(ir;‘ g:;itching pennies.

Act of General Court imposing excise
duties opposed by the inhabitants.
1765.
French and Indian war; powder house
erected.
1756.

Dec. Sch. “Swallow’ captured by French
cruisers.
759

1759.

Thirty-three persons enlisted in naval
service, and sailed for Halifax, taking
part in siege of Quebec,

1761,

Work house erected on Back St. .

Jan. 30. Aect passed to prevent damag
from fire, by prohibiting sailmakers
and riggers from carrying on business,
except where licensed.

1762.

Streets ordered to be named.

1763.
Aug. Market first opened in lower part
of town house. .

1764.
Small-pox hospital erected in pasture,
near almshouse.

1765,
Nov. 1. Stamp act went into effect; bells
tolled, minute guns fired, ete.
1768

Nine fishing vessels and crews lost during
the year.
Lee mansion built, costing over ten thous-
and pounds.
1769,

Fourteen fishing vessels and crews lost.

1778.
Many deaths from small-pox.
June 20, Act incorporating Marine So-

ciety passed.

IF YOUR HOUSE
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF MARBLEHEAD,

1774, -

Jan. 26. Hospital erected on Cat (Lowell)
island the previous year, for treatment
of small-pox patients by inoculation,
burned by a mob. Two of the impli-
cated parties afterwards taken and con-
fined in Salem jail, were rescued by a
large number of men who marched to
Salem and broke open the jail doors.

July 26. Town voted to disapprove the
vending or use of Indja tea.

1775.

Feb. 26. British transport entered har-
bor and landed a regiment of British
soldiers under command of Col. Leslie,
who marched to North Bridge, Salem;
and then returned and re-embarked.

June 16. John Glover appointed Colonel
of 21st Regt.
June 21. Col. Glover and his regiment of

ten companies, all of this town, ordered
to Cambridge.

Oct. 21. Schooners “Lynch’’ and “‘Frank-
lin"" under command of two Marblehead
men, sailed from Beverly harbor on the
Jirst naval expedit.iq?rxa of the war.

1776.

Jan 1. Marblehead regiment re-organ-
ized as the 14th Continental.

Jan, 1. John Manly appointed Commo-
dore in U. S.'navy.

May 19. James Mugford, commander of
Continental Cruiser ‘‘Franklin,” killed

- in engagement in Boston harbor.

Sept. 4. Col. John Glover placed in com-
mand of brigadei

Samuel Tucker appointed Commodore in
U. 8. navy.

Jan. 1. Major Wm. R. Lee appointed
Colonel of the Marblehead regiment.
Feb. 23. Col. Glover appointed brigadier
general by Coagre;'_?.

1779

Elbridge Gerry first elected to Congress.
Sept. 15. Joseph Story born.
Sept. 30. Armed brig ““ Freemason" took
re, and blew up, doing great damage
to houses and vesg{ghs.

1730.
May 19. Dark day ; great alarm.
) 1783
_A%i‘ll 22. Seventeen buildings destroyed
fire

y fire.
April 20. Great celebration in honor of
restoration of pea._;:e.

1784,
Nov. 2. Visit of Gen. Lafayette.
1789,

Academy established about this time.

Richard Harris appointed first U. 8. col-
lector of this port.

Oct. 29, Visit of Gen. Washington.

1790.

Lottery held under authority of General
Court to raise money for preservation of
the town, and to provide employment
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1792.
April 11. Serious fire near one of the
wharves.
Nov. 17. Marblehead Academy incor-
porated.

1793.
March 20. First post office established,
with Thomas Lewis as postmaster.

Salt works established at upper end of
Neck.
1798.

Company of Light Infantry organized;
first parade in September.

1799,
Hon. Samuel Sewall elected member of
Congress.
June 6. Col. Azor Orne died at Boston.
1800

Jan. 2. Impressive ceremonies on death
of Gen. Washington, which ocecurred
Dec, 14, 1799,

Epidemic of small-pox in the fall; 64
deaths; aid received from neighboring
towns; $5600 contributed by Salem.

1802,
Feb. 22. Actaunthorizing Board of Health.
1

804.
March 7. 3/.1'a.rblelleszrol:}3 Bank incorporated.

1808.

March 17. Town voted that a certain
‘“lying pamphlet’’ addressed to the in-
habitants be burned by the chimney
sweeper. Many copies collected and
burned in a boisterous manner by the
citizens.

1808.

Sept. 26. Town ceded to U. S. part of
land on work house lot for erection of
gun house.

Nov. Skipper Ireson’s ride.

1809." [ized.

June. Marbleheacisll.(i) ght Infantry organ-

Feb. First Baptist church organized.
1811,
El]l:}ridge Gerry elected Vice President of
K]

Town voted to erect suitable building for
occupation of the poor.

1812.

June 18. War declared with Great Britain.

July 4. Great celebration of the day.

July 20. Ship “Orient” captured by
British sloop of war.

Aug. 19. Naval battle between ** Consti-
tution ” and ** Guerriere.”’

1813.

Many fortifications erected.

June 1. Naval battle in bay back of Mar-
blehead Neck, between ** Chesapeake ”’
and * Shannon.”

Aung. Six coasting vessels captured by
British cruisers off Neck.

1814,

Feb. Number of British prisoners brought

here and confined at Fort Sewall.

and support for the poor. April 3. “ Constitution” chased into
Methodist church organized. arbor by two British frigates.
E. N. BASSETT sells_Paints, @ils and Glass, * JENTLEY
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Nov. 238. Death of Elbridge Gerry at
Washington. T8k

Feb. Peace declared; at close of the war
700 citizens of Marblehead were in con-
finement in British prisons; 500 of them
in Dartmoor.

1817.
July 8. Visit of President Monroe.

1818.
Sabbath schools first organized.

1824,
¢ Columbian Society ”’ incorporated.
Public streets named by vote of town.
Aug. Second visit of Gen. Lafayette;
and first parade of Lafayette Guards.

1825.
July 21. New stone church on Washing-
ton st. dedicated.

1829.
June 11. Act establishing Fire Depart-
ment.,

1830.
March 13. ‘ Marblehead Register,” the
first local newsp?ggr issued.
1

Lighthouse erected on Point Neck.

March 18, Grand Bank incorporated;
stone building erected on Hooper st.
and business begun Nov. 18, in new
building.

1832,
“The Gazette” first published.

1833,
Methodist Episcopal church erected.
Jan. 2. Dedication of new Second Cong.
church.
Feb. 13. New Baptist church on Pleasant
st, dedicated.
June 28. Visit of President Jackson.

1834,
July 4. Two rival celebrations, owing to
hostility between the Democratic and
Whig parties. :

Fire department re-organized, and two
new engine houses erected.

March 3L Act ceding to U. S. site for
lighthouse on Neck.

1836.

Universalist Society organized; new
church erected, and dedicated March 1,
1837.

837

183T7.

High school established.

Town received $13,000 from U. S. surplus
revenue.

March 21, Carpenter shop of J. & J.
Chapman consumed; first building
burned for 26 years.

May. Hon. Wm. Reed -died, and be-
queathed $68,000 for benevolent pur-
poses.

1839,
March 20. Town farm sold for $11,300.
Dec. 10. Eastern railroad opened to Salem.
1844

Lyceum Hall erected. )

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF MARBLEHEAD.

1845.
**Gerry”’ engine added to fire department.
April 11. Town voted to demolish old
almshouse and to build another.
Nov. 2. Fire destroyed large grist mill of
John Roundy.
1846.

Sept. 19. Severe storm on Grand Banks;
11 vessels belonging in Marblehead lost,
containing 65 men and boys.

8

1848,

The ‘‘Mercury’’ first published.

“The Essex County Times' first pub-
lished.

May 25. Marblehead Seamen’s Charita-
ble Society dedicated a monument on
“0ld Burying Hill”’ in memory of 64 de-
ceased members, 14 of whom were lost
in Sept. 1846, .

Nov. 2. Accident on Marblehead Branch
railroad at Salem, six persons killed and
five seriously wc;unded.

849,
“The People’s Advocate first published.
Oct. 31. Ship Robert Hooper, 760 tons
launched at ‘‘Red Stone” cove; observed
as a holiday.
1850.

Hook and Ladder carriage purchased for
fire department.

Dec. 5. Fine ship owned by E. Kimball,
launched.

1851,

Present almshouse erected.

Feb. 2. Fire destroyed house and two
barns of John Chapman on State st.

July 4. Floral procession.

1852,

Glover Light Guards organized.

July 4. Procession with oration by Hon.
Anson Burlingame.

1853.

March 31. Moses A. Pickett died; be-
queathed about $13,400, to the widow
and fatherless.

June 28. Parade of Sutton Light Infan-
try; Gov. Clifford and many distin-
guished guests present.

Sept. 29. Grand parade of Glover Light
Guards.

Oct. 19. Great parade of Lafayette
Guards.

1854.

Marblehead Gas Co. organized; town first
lighted with gas Dec. 2.

Feb. 27. Fire partially destroyed Bes-
som’s twine factory.

Dec. 5. Ship ‘““Mary’’ 1200 tons, launched.

Dec. 14, Death of John Hooi’)er, Hsq.

Dec. 18. Barque ‘‘Chusan’ of Salem,
wrecked at entrance to harbor.

1856.

Jan. 22. New ship of 1200 tons launched.
July 4. Greatest celebration of the day
ever known in town.
1858.

Third Cong. church society organized.

IF YOUR HOUSE
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BARGAINSIN PARLOR and CHAMBER
SETS, at 259 & 261 Essex St., SALEM.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF MARBLEHEAD,

1859. :

Catholic church *‘Star of the Sea” erected.

‘“The Ledger" first published.

Jan. 1. New engine ‘‘Mugford” added to
fire department. Gen. Glover engine
purchased same year. laid.

July 19 Corner-stone of new Cong. church

Oct. 16. Waterside cemetery consecra-

ted.

Qet. 26. Destructive fire on State st. de-
stroying two buildings and injuring
others.

1860.

Jan, 20. Bassett's hall destroyed by fire,
and Gen. Glover engine house.

March. Great strike of shoemakers in
Marblehead and Lynn, lasting 6 weeks.

Qct. 9. South church dedicated.

Nov. 2. Train thrown from track at For-
est River Mills.

1861.
Agril 12. Fort Sumpter fired on, and war
egun.

April 16. Departure of Sufton Light In-
fantry, Lafayette Guards and Glover
Light Guards for war; the first troops
to reach Boston under call of Pres.
Lincoln for 75,000 militia.

April 20. Town appropriated $5000, for
relief of soldiers’ families.

Avpril 22. Soldiers’ Aid Society organized
by ladies.

June24. Departure of ‘“Mugford Guards”
for seat of war.

Aug. 1. Arrival home of three Marble-
head companies from war.

Nov. New company, recruited by K. V.
Martin for 23d Regts., left for seat of

War.

1862.

April 21. Funeral services over remains
of Gamaliel H. Morse and John Good-
win jr., the first Marblehead soldiers
slain in battle. Gov. Andrew and other
dignitaries present.

July 31. Town treasurer anthorized to
hire $14,400 for bounties.

Aug. 5. Sutton Light Infantry, Capt.
Graves, voted to enlist for the war.

Nov. 25. Sutton Light Infantry, Capt.
Graves and Lafayette Guards, Capt.
Phillips, left with 8th Regt., for New-
bern. N. C.

Dee. 16. Fuperal of Capt. Thomas Rus-
sell, Co. I, 23rd M%%%. Regt.

1863.

Feb. 22. Schooner Mary E. Hiltz,
;vrt'a;ckali on the Neck; one of the crew
ost,

July 10. 180 citizens of Marblehead draft-
ed for the war, at Lyceum hall, Salem.

July 29. Return of Sutton Light Infan-
try and Lafayette Guards.

April 15. Town appropriated $4000 for
repair of Fort Sewall.

1864,

July 24, 8th Regt. including Sutton Lt.
Infantry left for 100 days’ service.
Lafayette Guards went soon after.

J. L. LOUGEESS.
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Nov. 2. Co. C, 8th Regt., arrived home
from 100 days’ service in Maryland.
Dec. 15. National Grand Bank chartered.
1865.
April 8. Surrender of Gen. Lee.
June 20. Reception to members of 10th
Mass. Battery.
Dec. 4. Visit of Gen. Kilpatrick.
1866.

May. New engine ‘M. A. Pickett” add-
ed to fire department.

June 27. Cordage factory of J. L. Baum-
gartoer and other huildings on Prospect
st., burned ; loss $25,000.

June 20. Old gun house sold; erected in
1808 by U. S. Gmlrggl_lment..

[

Feb. 5. Fire destroyed Harris & Sons’

shoe factory, Baptist church and one
dwelling on Pleasant st.; loss $135,000.

Oct. 14, Eight men at work on new Bap-
ﬁmﬁ; (g:urch, thrown to the ground; two

illed.

1868.

Town authorized the lighting of streets
at night.

Land purchased for Catholic cemetery.

Jan. 14. Franklin hall burned.

June 13. Graves of soldiers decorated
with flowers for the first time.

Dec. 27. Remodelled Universalist church
dedicated.

Dec. 28. New Baptist church dedicated.

1869.

Feb. 4. Death of Glover Broughton,
town clerk for many years; aged 72.

March 6. Act authorizing town to con-
struct sea wall and build road over River
head beach and Neck.

June 19. Town appropriated $8,000 for
building road across the beach to the
Neck.

Nov. 22. Dedication of new lodge room
of Atlantic Lodg?ls%o 0. 0. F.

Atlantic avenue built from Swampscott,
terminating at the Neck line, town ap-
propriated $12,000; finished, June, 1871.

May 31. Smith farm sold at auction for
$42,000. [Club.

July 12. First regatta of Eastern Yacht

Dec. New depot completed.

Dec. 16. New school house on Orne st.
dedicated.

1871,

Jan. Hinkley building on Pleasant st.
removed.

April 20. Remodelled Universalist church
dedicated.

May 14.- Shawmut building burned.

June 15. Marblehead Savings Bank com-
menced business.

July 21. Town appropriated $4000 for
building reservoir on Common.

Aug. 31; Arrival of new Hook and Ladder
truck.-.

Aug. 7. Town voted to loan $75,000, in
aid of Marblehead & Lynn railroad;
yeas, 536; nays, 241.

E. N. BASSETT,
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Aug. 22, Encampment of Second Bri-
gade Mass, Militia at Swampscott.
Sept. 8. Arrival of new steam fire en-

gine.
Nov. 25. Allerton Hall opened by ball of
Sutton Light Infantry.

Dec. 21. ‘“Marblehead Messenger'’ is-
sued.
1872,
Jan. 11, Land on Neck belonging to

Brown estate sold at aucfion, for

$255,000; afterwards reverted to same

estate,

. Catholic church on Gregory st.

urned.

Sept. Benjamin Abbot died at Boston,

equeathing residue of his property
($103,000) to the town.
1873.

$15,000 expended <in building new roads
on the Neck.

Sept. 11. Fire on Darling st. ; destroyed
a stable, hotel, dwelling, and bank
building; loss, $20,000,

QOct. 19. New steam railroad to Lynn
opened.

? 1874.

April 25. 0Old “Columbian Building"
burned.

May 27. J.J. H, Gregory donated $2000
to the town.

Oct. 2. First annual parade of fire de-
partment.

1875.
May 21. Town voted to erect Abbot Hall
on the common.
1876.
Great temperance revival.
April 25, Town voted $4000 to build an
engine house.
M;f 17. Procession and dedication of
ugford monument.

June 18, Catholic church dedicated.
July 4. Procession and dedication of
soldiers’ monument. i
July 25. Cornervstios'n?g of Abbot Hall laid.

Jan, 2. Wreck of schooner ““May Queen’’
on Coney Island ledge.

Feb. 19. Fire destroyed Roberts’ saw mill
and box factory.

March 19. Town appropriated $20,000 for
Abbot Library.

May 15. Town appropriated $10,000 to
make a reservoir of Red’s pond and to
lay water pipes therefrom. Water let
into pipes, May 28, 1878.

June 25. Great conflagration, destroyin
the business part of the town, 76 build-
ings, and nearly all their contents. Loss,
over $500,000. 90 families made home-
less, and 1500 people thrown out of em-
ployment. Aid received amounting to
$23,4908.30.

July 17. Town appropriated $4500 for
building brick engine house and ar-

mory.
Sept. 7. Fire destroyed saw mill of Bow-
den & Son.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF MARELEHEAD.

Dec. 12. Dedication of Abbot Hall.
‘ 1878.

Jan. New fire engine house completed
and occupied.

March 7. Foreclosure sale of Neck lands ;
price, $101,000.

March 23. Act authorizing town to raise
$1000 for obtaining portrait of Benja-
min Abbot.

July 29. Town appropriated $5000 for
aid of poor and indigent soldiers and
sailors.

Aug. 10. Denis Kearney lectured at Ab-
bot Hall. [Hall.

Aug. 28. Dedication of new Rechabite

Seg{t.n Signal station established at Abbot

all.

Dee. 21. Wreck of schooner ‘““Ancona’ on
fort rocks.

1879.

Sept. Old Academy building torn down.

Sept. 3. Fire at Monroe’s shoe factory.

Sept. 22. Town appropriated $14,000 for
new school house on Elm st.

1880.

March 12. Town voted:to purchase new
steam fire engine and to disband two
fire companies. .

March 24. Fire destroyed Litchman Bros.”
shoe factory on Front st.

April, Steam ferry to the Neck licensed.

April. Town history issued by S. Roads,

jr.
AuE. 12. Fire destroyed Universalist
church; corner-stone of mew church
laid Nov. 25, 1880.
Sept. 16. Visit of company 9th, N. Y.
gt., Capt. Geo.l gl Homan.

Jan. 6. ‘“‘Essex Statesman’’ first issued.

March 30. Act authorizing town to lay
out a public park; accepted May 17.

May 8. Body of William F. Hathaway
found on Green st.

May 10. Marblehead Improvement So-
eiety organized.

June 11. New Eastern yacht club house
opened.

June 13. Town elected Park Commis-
sioners; voted to print a valuation book
and to burn street lamps all night.

Sept. 26. Ceremonies incident to funeral
of President Garfield.

Oct. 17. New brick grammar school house
opened; cost with land about $26,000.
Nov. 23. New Universalist church dedi-

eaced,

Dec. Fire alarm constructed at Farms.

1882,
Jan, 24, Death of Hon. Fred. Robinson,
d

aged 83. -

July 15. Nanepashemet Hotel first
opened.

July. Post-office established at Neck. -

Sept. 8. President Arthur arrived at
Marblehead.

1883,
General lock-out in shoe factories, lasting
several weeks.

Fine Decorative Painting, E. N. BASSETT,
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HISTORICAL EVENTS

Marblehead Water Co. organized.
Mar. 11. Death of Hon. William Fabens.
Sept. 12. Parade of Essex County G. A.
R. Posts.
1384

June 25. First horse cars to Lynn.

July 4. Grand celebration and proces-
sion. . g

Aug. 18,

Attempt
Mar. 25'
burned.
May 20. Burning of J. B. Woodfin's
grain store.
Aug. 4, Horse-cars to Franklin st.
Aug. 8. Memorial services on death of
Gen. U. 8. Grant.
1886.
Jan. 5. F. A. Osgood elected Colonel of
8th Regt., M. V. M.
April 17. 25th anniversary of departure
of Marblehead companies to war.
Aug. 25. Work begun on Atlantic ave.
extension.
Nov. 2. Dedication of remodelled North
‘church.
1887.

M:irch 5. Grand temperance demonstra-

on,

March 7. Benjamin Brown, chief of
police shot.

April 20. Town appropriated $42,000 for

' water supply. ater Commissioners
elected 21st.

June 20. Town seal adopted.

Water let into pipes at Marble-
head Neck.

July 29. Water works completed and
water let on.

1888.
Aprals. St. Michael's church re-dedica-
te

First horse cars from Salem.

1885.
at town division; another in 1386.
Dwelling of George S. Harris

Nov.. Gas main extended to Devereux
station.

OF MARBLEHEAD. 75

Dec. 25. Great fire destroying many fac-
tories and dwellings ; loss, $600,000; total
contributions received, $25,066.99.

1889.
Jan, 10. D. T. Winter’'s cottage, Clifton,
burned. |limits.
Jan. 28. Town voted to establish fire
Jan. 31, Allerton building company or-
ganized.
Jan. 31. Survey of town by C. A. Putnam
completed.
Mch. 19. Townappropriated $12,000, for
extending water pipes.
Mch. 30. Fire at Devereux mansion.
June 2. Burglary at W. J. Goldthwait’s.
June 13. Town appropriated $33,000 for
water works.

Aug. 25. Re-dedication of TUnitarian

church. [hall.
Oct. 31. Dedication of new Rechabite
Oct. 31. Town appropriated $7500 for

new fire engine house.

Nov. 21. Two deaths from hydrophobia.

Dec. 10. Marblehead Building Assoc. or-
ganized.

Deec. 15. Cottage of H. C. Little at Neck
burned.

Dec. 23. House of P. Cortee burned.

1890.

Feb. 12, Marblehead Building Assoc. in-
corporated.

April 11.  Supt. of schools elected.

April 14. Firewards voted to re-organize
fire department.

May 1. Town voted to purchase Bessom
pasture for cemetery; also, authorized
issue of $50,000 water bonds.

May 15. Death of Francis A. Osgood, Col.
8th Regt. M. V. M.; funeral May 18th.

June 16. New brick depot opened.

July 21. Town appropriated $5,000 for
an armory; also, accepted custody of
Fort Sewall.

(See also interesting evenls
years.)

of past two

PEABODY.
1855 TO 1890.

(Copyrighted, 1892, by Henry M. Meek. Allrights reserved against publication by any other person.)

: 1855.

May 18. Peabody sef off from Danvers
and incorporated under name of South
Danvers. First election of town officers
June T.

856.

Jan, George Peabody donated $15,000 to
Peabody Institute, making $45,000.

April 80. Act establishing boundary with
Salem. _

May 81. Act establishing boundary with
Danvers.

June 30. Spire of Baptist church blown
down by tornado.

Oct. 9. " Reception to George Peabody, af-
ter twenty years {;Sl;)%ence.

Jan. 24, Fire at aimsﬁouse;,two of the
inmates suffocated.
Al}g. 13. Great picnic of citizens at
bisg’s grove in honor of George Pea-
ody.
Nov. 19. Dedication of Baptist church.

Work Guaranteed..
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1858.
Jan. 4. New school house, District No. 3,
dedicated with inf;ﬁrgsting ceremonies.
1859.
“The Wizard,” a weekly newspaper, es-
tablished.
May 3. First Market-day for County of
Essex held.

1860.

Jan. Sutton Hall completed.

Feb. 2. Methodist Epis. church re-dedi-
cated.

March 25. Death of Elijah Upton.

May 17. Planing-mill and box factory of
J. Taylor burned; loss, $7,000.

Sept. 25, 26. Exhibition of Essex Agri-
cultural Society.

1861,

May 21. Town appropriated $2,000 for
aiding families ot soldiers.

June 29. Foster Guards, Capt. 8. C. Ban-
croft, go into camp near Tapley's
Brook,

July 4. Flag raised on new flag staff in
square with interesting ceremonies,

Aug. 30. Company B, 17th Mass. Regt.,
Capt. S. C. Bancroft, left Lynnfield for
Washington.

Sept. 24, 25. Exhibition of Essex County
Agricultural Society.

Oct. 5. Town appropriated $5000 for aid-
ing families of soldiers.

1862.

Aug. 25.- Town appropriated $10,000 for
soldiers’ bounties.

Sept. 10. Capt. R. 8. Daniels’ jr. com-
pany march to Salem depot under escort
and go into camp at Wenham; left for
Newbern, Oct. 22.

Dec. Series of mb})aries by one Cate.

June 26. Return of Co. C, 5th Regt.,
Capt. Daniels.

July 8. First horse cars from Salem.

July 10. Draftof 109 citizens for the war.

Oct. 28. Great war meeting to promote
enlistments.

Dec. 22. One man killed and two after-

~wards died from boiler explosion at
factory of W. M. Jacobs & Son.

1864,

April. New dye works at bleachery com-
menced work.

May 4. Bark mill of J. Jacobs on Foster
st. burned.

July 16. Co. C, 5th Regt., Capt. George
F. Barnes, left for 100 days’ service.
Arrived home, Nov. 8th.

Oct. 20. Visit of Maj. Gen. Granville M.
Dodge, and grand parade and reception.

Nov. New and large morocco factory of
W. M. Jacobs & Son, completed.

Deec. 11. Sudden death of Eben Sutton,
Esq., aged 61. _

Jan. 2. Town appropriated $8,000 for
soldiers’ bounties.

April 22. Steam fire engine ‘““Gen. Sut-
ton’ arrived; cost, $3500.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF PEABODY.

July. Dam of Salem & Danvers Aque-
duet Co. built at Tapley’s brook.

Nov. 8. Arrival home of 4th Mass, Bat-
tery. Capt. George W, Taylor.

Dec. 17. Private visit of Brig. Gen. Steele
of the U. S. reu_:;ulls?;‘-i grmy.

Feb. 13. Dam near Essex depot gave
way, doing considerable damage.

July 5. George Peabody donated $100,000
for Peabody Institute.

Oct. 15. Mrs. Eliza Sutton donated $20,-
000 for the Eben Dale Sutton Reference
Library.

Dec. 18. Fire at currying shop of Patrick
Eagan on Grove st.

1867.

Aug. 20. Balloon ascension by Mr. Wells.

Oct. 6. George Peabody donated $30,000
additional to Peabody Institute.

1867-68.
Peabody Institute enlarged at cost of $45,-
000.
1868

March 4, Remodelled Universalist church
dedicated ; expense, $ X

April. Portrait of Queen Victoria, pre-
sented to George Peabody, received.

April. 13. Act passed authorizing change
of town name to ‘““Peabody.” April 30,
the town voted to accept the same; 379
yeas; 246 nays; celebrated May 13,

Oct. 20. Three children of Byron Good-
ell burned to death at fire in barn on
old Boston road.

1869

“The Wizard’’ changed its name to ““The
Peabody Press.”

March 1. Town appropriated $4400 for
purchase of land on Lynn st. for burial
ground.

April 20. Town appropriated $123,000 to
build four new school houses and for
mj]:a.irs; school district system abol-
ished.

July. Eben Dale Sutton Reference Li-
brary opened.

Sept. 8. Great gale; Proctor’s tannery

lown down.

Nov. 4. George Peabody died at London,
Eng., aged T4.

1870.

Jan. 25. Remains of (George Peabody ar-
rived at Portland, on British man-of-
war “‘Monarch,” accompanied by U. S.
man-of-war ‘“‘Plymouth.”

Feb. 1. Arrival here of remains of George
Peabody; funeral Feb. 8th; the proces-
sion was composed of four companies
of 5th U. 8. Artillery, Salem Cadets, five
companies of the Sth Regt. M. V. M.,
Sutton Guard, Prince Arthur of Eng-
Jand and suite, Edward Thornton, Brit-
ish Minister, Admiral Farragut's staff,
Gov. Claflin of Mass. and Boston Cadets,
Gov. Chamberlain of Maine and staff,
and many other distinguished people; a
heavy snow storm prevailed. Mr. Pea-
body, within a few years preceding his

E. N. BASSETT, PAINTER,
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HISTORICAL EVENTS OF FEABODY,

death, donated various sums as follows:
His kindred, $1,500,000; Poor of London,
$2,500,000; Grinnell Arctic expedition,
$19,000; Peabody Institute, Baltimore,
$1.500,000; Phillips Academy, Andover,
$25,000; Mass. Historieal Society, $20,-
000; Harvard College, $150,000; Yale
College, $150,000; Peabody Academy of
Science, Salem, $140.000; Newburyport
Institute, $15,000; Washington College,
Vt., $60,000; Institute at Danvers, $50,-
000; Institute at Peabody, $200,000;
Church and library at Georgetown,
$105,000; Kenyon College. $25,000; Mary-
land Historical Society, $20,000; South-
ern Educational Fund, $3,000,000.

April 15. Dedication of new Wallis school
house ; cost, $45,000.

Aug. 26. Arrival of new hook and ladder
car,

Oct. Anmnexation to Salem proposed;
March 6, 1871, town voted 226 to 19

against it.
1871.

Aug. 20. Laying of corner-stone of St.
John’s chureb.

Dec. 2. Residence of George Upton on
Chestnut st. burned.

1872.

First Unitarian church remodelled at cost
of $12,000.

Aug. 15. Fire at Nutter's shoe factory,
Dane block.

Sept. 23. Town voted, yeas, 177, nays
271; not to take Wenham water from
Salem.

1873.

March 24. Town authorized selectmen
to purchase Salem & Danvers aqueduct
for $125,000. Purchase ratified April
28, by vote of 289 to 150.

July 1. Fire destroyed slaughter-house,
barn and six horses of Thomas & Sawyer.

Aug. 19. Death of Fitch Poole, Esq.,
aged 70.

Oct. 22. Firemen's tournament.

N(Eiv.ld Ropewalk erected in Northend's

eld.

1874,
Mar. 23. Town voted to fit up old engine
house on Foster St. for police station.
~April 13. Brick engine house on Lowell
st. completed.
July 17. Trial of new steam fire engine
‘‘Excelsior.”
Nov. 26. Death of John W. Proctor Esq.,
aged 83.
Dec. 3. Woolen mill at West Peabody
burned.
1875.

Mar. 28. Fire at Nelson & Merrill’s.
June 17. Fire destroyed factory of E. W.
Jacobs.
1876.

Feb. 27. First service in new St. Paul's
Episeopal church.

April 3. Town appropriated $4650 for
hand engine to be located near Tapley’s

77

Aug. 18. Winona woolen mills totally de-
stroyed by fire.

Nov. Peabody Reporter issued.

Dee. 8. Fire destroyed tannery of Tim-
othy O’Shea on Grove st.

1877.

Jan. 9. Town voted to establish police
force of one day and six night men; ap-
propriated, $5000 therefor.

May. Streets lighted by gas.

June 2. Fire destroyed Hutchinson &
Poor’s morocco shop and Lynn's grease
factory.

1878.

J a_’r;). 19. Death of Henry Poor Esq., aged

Oct. 14. Denis Kaiag_:;?y in town.

Feb. 5. Fire at Sutton block.

Feb. 20. Fire destroyed bakery of George
Davis on Lowell street. )
Nov. 30. Dedication of St. John’s church;

cost about $100,000.
1880.

Mar. 26. Act authorizing town to make al-
terations and improvements in Goldth-
wait's brook ; accepted May 3.

April 14, Fire destroyed extensive curry-
ing shop of T. E. Proctor on Webster st.

Aug. 24. Town appropriated $83000 for
soldiers’ monument.

1881.

April 6. Act authorizing town to improve
water works and to take water from
Humphrey’s Pond. Act accepted Apr.
18, and $30.000 appropriated for secur-
ing water at high service.

July 6. Rockville Cong. Society, So.
Peabody, formed.

Oct. 6. Death of Elijah W. Upton.

Nov, 10. Dedication of soldiers’
ment.

monu-

1882.

Organization of fire department changed.

Jan. 2. Fire destmdyed large leathes fac-
tory of J. A, Lord & Son.

April 18, Death of Gen. William Sutton,
aged 81.

May8. Town appropriated $75,000 for
new town hall.

May ltgd Pumps of new water works

started.
Sept. 21. Death of Dr. George Osborn.

1883,

Jan. 2. Death of Stephen Upton, Deputy
Sheriff, aged 88, 4

May 16. First horse-cars from Lynn.

Oct. 10. Parade of Essex Co. Cath. Tem.
Societies.

Nov. 22. Dedication of new town hall
building; cost mi)é%é(iﬂo.

March 20. Break in dam at Bancroft's
Pond.

May 5. Roller skating rink opened.

May 22. Dedication of Rockville Cong.
church ; cost about $7100.

June 10. Burning of Pinder & Winches-

brook. ter's tannery ; loss $100,000.
orroons Nstp PAINTING call on E. N. BASSETT.
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Aug. 21. Death of Joseph Poor, aged 79.

Oct. 27. Death of Hom. A. A. Abbott;
aged 64.

Nov. 14, Burning of Upton’s glue fac-
tory ; loss $100,000.

‘1885,
April 7. Fire at Clerk’s morocco factory;
oss $6000.

June 28. Burning of barn and milk house
of Brown Bros., W. Peabody.

July 2. First horse cars on Lowell st.

July 9. First horse cars from Danvers.

July 19. Bursting of water wipe at pump-
-ing station.

Sept. 7. Opening of new Endicott school

ouse.
Dec. 11. Dedication of new chapel, West
Peabody.

1886.
Land purchased for Oak Grove ceme-

Jan. 18. Endicott school house burned.
Feb. 12. Streets and cellars overflowed;

great freshet. |alarm.
Mar. 21. Town voted for electric fire
Aug. 7. Labor riot. . |aged 92.
Nov. 15. Death of Major Lewis Allen;
Nov.28. End of great strike at tanneries.
Dec. 7. Re-dedication of Methodist

church.

887

1887.
Ju%y 9. Accident on Salem and Lowell
R

Sept. 27, 28. Exhibition of Essex Agri-
cultural Society.

Oct. 4. Arrival of new engine ‘“La France.”

Oct. 16. Two children of James O’Con-
nell suffocated at fire on Walnut st.

HISTORICAL EVENTS OF PEABODY,

1888,
Jan. 25. Peabody Press began publish-
ing semi-weekly.
Jan. 28. Fire at J. A. Lord's tannery;
loss $15,000.

Feb. 16. Re-dedication of remodelled Bap-

tist church.

April 17. Town accepted new water act.

Sept. 25. First electric lights.

Sept. 25, 26. Exhibition of Essex Agri-
cultural society.

Oct. 2. Firemen's muster.

Nov. 18. Two boys injured by cars at Cal-
ler st. crossing. Wi

1889.
July 16. Fire at W. E. Reed’s, So. Pea-
body.
Aug. 10. Death of Mrs. Eliza Sutton.
Aug. 27. Suspension of work at Robin-
sen-Foster factory.
Aug. 29. Selectmen granted location to
Essex Electric St. Ry. Co.
QOct. 12. House of Samuel Meek, W. Pea-
body, burned.
1890

Jan. 11. New building of Peabody Re-
porter Co. opened. 627; no, 574,

March 10. Town voted for license; yes,

March 24. Town appropriated $3000 for
paving Main st. (Poole’s hollow.)

May 15. Ground broken for Essex Elec-
tric St. Ry.

May 15. Peabody Press sold.

Aug. 1. Fire at Peabody Press office.

Aug. 8. Town appropriated $30,000 for
electric light plant.

(8ee also interesting events of past two
years.)

EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST
FOR PAST TWO YEARS.

1890.

Sept. 15. Beverly & Danvers Street Rail-
way Co. began regular trips to Danvers
Plains.

Sept. 17. Installation of Rev. J. W. Buck-
ham, at Crombie St. church, Salem.

Sept. 20. TFirst issue of Beverly Chronicle.

Sept. 23. Mass. Naval Battalion land at
Willows and make sham attack on Fort
Lee.

Sept. 23, 24. Cattle show at Beverly.

Sept. 25. Arrival of new Hook and Ladder
truck, at Marblehead.

Sept. 27. Accident on B. & O. R. R. near
Zanesville, O. 8§ killed.

Sept..29. Formal opening of Naumkeag

t. Ry. electric system to Peabody.

Sept. 20. Removal of Salem Cadets tn
new armory.

Sept. 80. Death of Hon. Edwin Mudge,
Danvers.

Oct. 1. Adjournment of Congress.

Oct. 8. Visit of Porfland Commandery
K. T. to Salem.

Oct 5. Consecration of Church of the Im-
maculate Conception, Salem.

ch. 6. New tariff law went into opera-

on,

Oct. 7. First trip of new steamboat line
from Beverly and Salem to Boston.

Oct. 7. Explosion at Dupont powder
works, Wilmington, Del. ; 12 killed.

Oct. 8. Laying of corner stone of new
0Odd Fellows Home at Worcester.

Oct. 8. First issue of Marblehead Enter-
prise.

Oct. 8. Arrival of two new hose wagons
for Beverly Fire Dept.

Oct. 10. Parade of 8th Regt. at Beverly.

Qct. 10. First issue of Salem Daily Call.

Oct. 13, Death of Samuel F. Miller, Jus-
tice U. S. Supreme Ct. at Washington.

Graining by £, N. BASSETT and Glazing,
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EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST.

Oct. 13 to 16. Session of Ministers Insti-

. tute (Unitarian) at Salem.

Oct. 16. Fire destroyed Leland Hotel,
Syracuse, N. Y.; many lives lost.

QOct. 20. Barn of F. Haven, at Beverly
Farms, destroyed by fire.

Oct. 2. Great fire at Mobile, Ala.; loss
$600,000.
Oct. 27. Jersey St., Marblehead, ac-

gepted; and $7500 appropriated there-

or.

Oct. 27. Excessive high tides.

Oct. 28. Peabody Post Office moved iuto
new office in Allen’s Block.

Oct. 30. Collision off Barnegat between
Schr. C. Hargraves and Stmr. Viscaya;
both vessels sunl; 68 lives lost.

Nov. 2. Powder explosion in China, kill-
ing 300 persons. )

Nov. 3. Regular running of cars on Es-
sex Elec. 5t. Ry. Co. by horses.

Nov. Announcement of Dr. Koch’s rem-
edy for consumption.

Nclllv. dRe—numbering of houseg in Marble-

ead.

Nov. 19. Explosion of boiler at Legg's
Hill, Salem; 2 killed and 4 injured.

Nov. 22. Death of Richard F. Tobin (G.
A. R.), Boston.

Nov. 23. Death of William III, King of
Holland.

Nov. 25. Opening of Home for Aged
Women at Peabody.

Nov. 25. Death ol Benj. P. Shillaber
(Mrs. Partington) at Chelsea; 76 yrs,
Nov. 26. Boiler Explosion at Sout Bay,

N. 8.; 6 killed.

Golden wedding of E. F. Obear
and wife, Beverly.

Nov. 27. Thanksgiving Day.

Nov. 29. Beverly refused Naumkeag St.
Ry. Co. permit to erect poles and wires.

Dec. 1. Schr. Daniel C. Marcy of Beverly
lost with all hands.

Dec. 3. First snow storm.

Dec. 4. Rev. Geo. C. Cressey installed
pastor of First Church, Salem.

Dec. 6. Parnell deposed.

Dec. 8. Opening of Cadet Fair; first use
of new drill hall.

Dec. 13. Murder of James W. Lane at
Salem.

Dec. 15, Sitting Bull, chief of the Sioux,
killed.

Deec. 16. Death of Jona. H. Orne of Mar-
blehead ; 65 yrs.

Dec. 16. Burglary at B. & M. R. R. depot
(East. div.), Danvers.

Dec. 17. Fire at Kimball blk.; Salem;
also two dwellings of P. Collier near gas
works.

Dec. 19, Fire at Hamilton & Balcomb’s
planing mill, Salem.

Dec. 19. Fire destroved currying shop of
J. 8. Crehore, Peabody; loss $15,000.

Dec. 21. Barglaryat G. H. Jacobs’ store,
Danvers.
Dec. 25. Masonic Temple, Baltimore,

Md., destroyed by fire; loss $500,000.
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Dec. 26. Death of Dr. Heinrich Schlie-
mann, archaeologist, at Berlin, Gy.

Dee. 26. Greatsnow storm.

Dec. 27, Essex Elec. St. Ry. Co. granted
location to Willows.

Dee. 20. Fight in South Dakota between
Indian hostiles and U. S. troops; 6 sol-
diers killed, and many Indians.

Dec. 29, Death of Octave Fenillet, French
novelist and dramatist, at Paris.

Dec. 20. Powder explosion at Socobon
mines, Mexico: 15 men killed.

Dec. 30. Great fire in London, Eng, ; loss
$2,000,000.

Dec. 30. Beverly accepted Australian
ballot law for election of town officers.

Dec. 31. Fire destroyed A. W. Dodd’s
oil factory at Gloucester; loss $75,000.

Deec. 31. Death of Gen. Francis E. Spin-
ner, ex-treasurer of the U. S. at Jack-
sonville, Fla.

1891.

Jan, 2, Fire destroyed Fifth Ave. and
Hermann’s theatres, New York City.
Jan. 2. Death of Alexander William
Kinglake, historian, at London, Eng.
Jan. 2. Death of Alphonse Peyrat,
French Author and Senator, at Paris.
Jan. 3. Sixty persons killed by explosion
in Trinity coal pit, Austria.

Jan, 5. Death of Emma Abbott, prima
donna, at Salt Lake City.

Jan. 7. Death of Charles Devens, Justice
of the Sup. Jud. Court, at Boston.

Jan. 7. Dedication of new Advent
Church, No. Salem.

Jan. 8. Fire destroyed barn and farm
stock of S. E. Glines, N. Baverg.

Jan. 8. Fire at Naumkeag Clothing
store, Salem.

Jan. 11, 12. Severe rain storm; barome-
ter 28.8; lowest record for years.

Jan. 17. Death of Geo. Bancroft, histo-
rian, at Washington, D. C. ; 90 yrs.

Jan. 17. Severe storm covering trees and
wires with sleet and doing much dam-

age.-

Jan, 20. Death at San Francisco of Kala-
kaua, king of the Hawaian Islands.

Jan. 24, Explosion at colliery in Gelsen
Kirehen, killing 52 persons.

Jan. 27. Explosion at collery in Mt, Pleas-
ant, Pa.; killing 150 miners.

Jan. 27, 81. D. L. Moody the revivalist,
at Baptist Church, Beverly.

Jan. 20. Sudden death of William Win-
dom, Secretary of the U. 8. Treasury,
at New York City.

Jan, 30. Death of Chas. Bradlaugh, mem-
l]lner of Parliament, at Northampton,

ng.

Jan. 30. Fire at Merritt Cook’s tannery,
Foster St., Peabody; loss $2000.

Feb. 1. Death of J. L. E. Meisonier, great
military painter of France; aged 5.

Feb. 7. Death of John A. Appleton, ex-
Chief Justice of Sup. Jud. Court of
Maine; at Bangor.

STAINING OF WOODWORK
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Feb. 9. Defalcation of H. E. Spaulding,
cashier of First National Bank, Ayer,
M:

ass.

Feb. 10. Death of Marcus Morton, late
chief Jus. Mass. Sup. Jud. Court, at
Andover; T1 yrs.

Feb. 10. Death of James Redpath at
New York.

Feb. 12. Boiler explosion at Hare Point,
Quebec, killing 20 persons.

Feb. 13. Death of Admiral David D. Por-
ter at Washington; 77 yrs.

Feb. 14. Death of Gen. Wm. T. Sherman,
at New York city: 71 yrs.

Feb. 14. Fire at P. Marrin's factory,
Varney st., Salem.

Feb. 16. Fire destroyed J. R. McNeal's
house, Bev, Farms,

Feb. 17. Fire at Hathaway block, Mhd.

Feb. 20. Accident in 4th ave. tunnel, N.
Y. city; six killed.

Feb. 21. Hon. Chas. Foster of Ohio, ap-
%oinbad Sec. of U. 8. Treasury.

Feb. 21. Six lives lost at tenement house
fire, Brooklyn, N. Y.

Feb. 21. Explosion at Spring Hill Mine,
N. 8.3 120 lives lost.

Feb. 21, Ship Elizabeth of New Yorlk lost
off San Francisco, with 18 lives.

Feb. 24. American House, Marblehead,
damaged by fire. -

Feb. 256. Hon. A. A. Low of Brooklyn
donated $10,000, additional to city of
Salem, for educationa! fund.

Feb. 27. Fire destroyed building of W.
J. Goldthwait on Lafayette St., Salem.

Feb. 28. Severe thunder storm in south
eastern Massachusetts; many buildings
damaged.

March 2. Reception of Second Corps Ca-
dets to Gov. Russell and officers of
Mass. militia.

March 4. Heaviest snow storm of the
winter; street railway travel, in Salem
and vicinity interrupted for several days.

March 4. Congress passed appropriation
to settle French spoliation claims.

March 5. Death of Robert C. Pitman,
Justice of Superior Court, at Newton.

March 7. Enlargement of Danvers Mirror.

March 8. Fire in bldg. occupied by
Northwest Deef Co., Salem.

March 9. Death of Benj. H. Paddock,
Epis. Bishop, at Boston; 62 yrs.

March 9. Death of Capt. George W. Ken-
ney, postmaster of Danvers.

March 13. Burning of insane asylum near
Nashville, Tenn. ; 9 lives lost.

March 13. U. 8. steamer Galena and tug
Nina wrecked near Gay Head; no loss
of life.

March 14. Mob at New Orleans killed 11
Ttaliaus,

March 14. Fire at Syracuse, N. Y.; loss
$1,000,000.

March 17. Death of Prince Jerome Na-
poleon at Rome.

March 17. Loss of Anchor Line Steamer
Utopia and 600 lives, near Gibraltar.

E. N. BASSETT, House ﬁiii_gn Painter,

EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST.

March 18, Organization of Beverly His-
torical Society.

March 20. Death of Lawrence Barrett,
actor, at N. York.

March 21, Death of Gen. Jos. Johnston,
ex-coufederate, at Washington, D. C. g
March 24. First naturalization of a

woman at Salem.

March 25. Co. K. 8th Regt. mustered in
at Danvers.
March 81. City couneil of Salem abolish

old and elect new water board.

March 31. Baron Fava, [talian Minister,
recalled from Wash., D. C.

April 1. Four alarms of fire at Danvers.

April 3. Severe storm; new hotel at
Bradford, Mass., destroyed.

April 6. Beverly voted for ten years con-
tract for 80 electric lights for streets,
April 7. Death of P. T. Barnum, the
great showman, at Bridgeport, Conn.
April 7. Resignation of U. S. Senator

Edmunds of Vermont.

April 12.  Dr. Eben Tourjee of New Eng.
Con. of Music, died at Boston.

April 23. Powder magazine exploded at
Rome, Italy; killing 7 and injuring 48
persons,

April 23. Body of C. M, Robes found in
pasture at No. Beverly.

April 24. Death of Field Marshal Count
Von Moltke at Berlin.

April 30. Rev. Phillips Broo’ss elected
Epis. bishop for Mass.

May 4. M. J. Callahan of Peabody sen-
tenced to 10 years imprisonment for
murder of J. W. Lane at Salem.

May 12. City council of Salem authorized
removal of old wing of almshouse.

May 12, City conncil of Salem appropri-
ated $4000 for street watering.

May 13. Samuel B, Nobbs installed pas-
tor of Central Bap., Ch., Salem

May 14. Naumkeag Bank, Salem, re-
moved to First church bldg.

May 156. Death of Chas. King at Middle-
ton ; reported 110 years old.

May 18. W. 8. Mowry elected Supt. of
Schools, Salem.

May 19. Explosion of dynamite near
Tarrytown, N. Y.; 20 Italians killed.

May 21. Formation of “People’s Party of
the United States’’ at Cincinnati.

May 31. N. Y. Museum of Fine Arts
opened for first time on Sunday.

June 1. Brooklyn bridge made free for
foot passengers.

June 1. New flag staff erected in depot
square, Beverly.

June 3. Death of Benson J. Lossing, his-
torian, at Poughkeepsie, N. Y.; 78 yrs.
June 6. Death of Sir John Macdonald,

premier, at Ottawa, Can.

June 7. Harold Marshall installed pastor
of Univ. ch. Beverly.

June 9. Blessing of new bell of Immacu-
lat Conception ch., Salem.

June 11. Removal of bell from Ave. M.
E. church, Beverly.

1 BENTLEY
STREET.




A FINE STOCK at

)L LOUGE ,FI{.%N\#TIPEI:‘I%EDS?%EP ESSIIX ST, SA LEM.

EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST.

June 11. Legislature prorogued.

June 14. Water spout near city of Mex-
ico killing 23 persons.

June 14. Tannery of John O’Callahan
burned, at Peabody ; loss heavy.

June 18, Resignation of H. W. Rogers,
Supt. of Salem Water Works.

June 18. Peabody voted intfavor of elec-
tric lighting; 614 yeas, 87 nays.

June 20. Large fire at Hamilton in bldg.
occupied by D. C. Smith and Geo. G.
Creamer.

June 22, Captains W. A, Andrews and J.
W. Lawlor sail from Crescent Beach
for a trip across the Atlautic in their
boats “Mermaid’’ and *“‘Sea Serpent.”

June 22, Suicide of W. . C. Shaw and
attempted murder ot three persons at
Beverly.

June 22. Col. J. W, Raymond of Beverly
appointed probation officer.

June 24, Work commenced on new brick
block of S. E. Peabody on Washington
st. next Post office, Salem.

June 25. Golden wedding of J, S. Need-
ham and wife of Peabody.

June 26, Barnum’s circus at Salem

July 1. Opening of Pike’s Peak railway;
terminus 14,147 feet above sea level.

July 3. Railroad accident at Ravena, O.;
19 killed, 38 injured.

July 3. Buarning of enal pockets at
Beaver Broeok, Dan.

July 4. Celebration at Danvers.

July 4. Railroad accident near Charles-
town, W. Va.; 15 killed, 50 injured.

July 4. Sudden death of Hannibal Ham-
lin, ex-Vice-Pres. ; 82 years.

July 4. Arrival of white squadron of TU.
5. navy at Boston.

July 6. Cyclone at Baton Rouge, La., de-
stroying penitentiary; 10 killed.

July 6. John W. Hart elected Lt. Col. of
Second Corps Cadets.

July 7. Four murderers executed by
electricity at Sing Sing prison, N. Y.
July 7. Suspension of Salem Ddily Call.
July 11. Sisters of Notre Damie leave St.
Mary’s parochial school, Salem, after

service of 36 years,

July 11. Railroad nccident 'at Aspen
june., Colorado; 8 killed.

July 12. Death of Edward Burgess,
yacht designer, at Bostun.

July 14, Fire at house of Mrs. Jobn Pike,
Danvers.
July 17. Fire destroyed Blake & Strout

blocks at Lynn; loss $200,000.

July 20. Fire destroyed bain of Mrs. S.
W. Webber, No. Bev,

July 25. R. R. accident near Middletown,
0. ; 3 killed and 40 injured.

July 26. R. R. accident at St. Maude,
France; 43 killed, 100 injured.

July 27. Wagon containing 7 persons
struck by cars near Elmira, N. Y.; 6
killed.

Aug. 2. Death of H. B. Staples, Judge
of Superior ct., at Worcester.
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Aug. 4. G. A. R. encampment at Detroit,

Aug. 5. Capt. Lawlor arrived in England
with the boat *‘Sea Serpent.”

Aug. 5. R. R. accident near Champlain,
N. Y.; 4 killed, 15 injured. e

Aug. ti. R.R. accident near Port Byron,
N. Y.; 11 killed; several injored.

Aug. 7. Fire at old Stimpson factory on
Boston St., Salem. Vietor Riviere
burned to death.

Aug. 10. Epcampment of Second Corps
Cadets at Essex.

Aug. 11. Fire at Aulson & Mobhan’s
moroceco factory, Caller place, Peabody.

Aug. 11. Marblehead selectmen grant
Naunmkeag 8. R. Co. permit to erect
poles and wires.

Aug. 12. Death of James Russell Lowell,
at Cambridge.

Aug. 14, Death of Mrs. James K. Polk,
widow of 10th Pres. of U.S. at Nash-
ville, Tenn.

Aug. 19. Dedication of battle monument
at Bennington, Vt.

Aug. 19. Arrest of Frank C. Almy, mur-
‘Itfcr?:{ of Christie Warden, at Hanover,

Aug. 20. TPeabody voted 451 to 22 in favor
of electric lighting.

Aug. 20. Sale of Spring estate, Danvers,
to Xaverien Bros.

Outing of Beverly Board of

Trade.

Aug. 22. Collapse of building in Park pl.,
N. Y.; 61 lives lost.

Aug. 22. Mrs. Esther Duncan of Danvers
burned to death from explosion of oil
stove.

Aug. 26. Ded. of Armory of Co. K, 8th
Regt at Danvers.

Aug. 27. Arrival at Antwerp of Capt.
Andrews; trip of boat **Mermaid” aban-
doned.

Aug. 28. Triplets born to Mrs. Jesse
Stickney. Bev.

Aug. 20. Loss of Br., Steamer Dunmurry
and 8 of the crew near Halifax. -
Aug. 30. Laying of corner stone new St.

James church, Salem.

Aug. 31. Property of Union Elec. Car Co.
shipped from Beverly.

Aug. 31. Several small incendiary fires in
Beverly during previous week.

Sept. 2. Dedication of new First church,
Tap eyville.

Sept. 4. Announcement of loss of Wm.
O. Tucker and Wm. T. Goodwin of
Marblehead, while on a dory trip.

Sept. 4. Gov. Russell at Peabody; (5th)
at Marblehead.

Sept. ¥. Death of M. F. Jules P. Grevy
ex-president of French Republic; in
France,

Sept. 13. Death of Hon. George B. Lor-
ing at Salem.

Sept. 18. Trial of Hopkins-Searles will
case began.

Sept. 20. Suicide of Ex- Pres. Balmaceda
of Chili, at Santiago.
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EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST.

Salllat. 25. Explosion of mortar during ex-

ibition of fireworks at Newark, N. J.;
11 killed.

Sept. 25. Death of Rev. Samuel D. Bur-
chard at Saratoga, N. Y.

Sept. 29. Parade of 8th Regt. at Danvers;
several soldiers injured.

Sept. 20. Peabody appropriated $50,000,
for electric light plant.

Sept. 30. Suicide of Gen. Boulanger of
France, at Brussells.

‘Oct. 1. Three men killed by cars at Shir-
ley, Mass.

Oct. 3. Fire at M. B. Paige’s pottery,
Peabody.

Oct. 4. Electric cars to Marblehead.

‘Oct. 4. Tug boiler exploded at Chicago,
killing 7 persons.

Oct. 5. Opening of new Columbia theatre,
Boston.
QOct, 5. Burning of Squire & Co.’s pork
factory at Somerville; loss, $200,000.
Oct. 6. Fire at Newcomb’s machine
shop, Salem.

Oct. 6. Death of Charles Stuart Parnell
at Brighton, Eng.

Oct. 7. Bronze statue of Gen. Grant un-
veiled at Chicago.

-Oct, 7. Enlargement of Beverly Times.

Oct. 9. Loss of U. S. steamer Despatch,
off Maryland; crew saved.

Oct. 14. Consecration of Phillips Brooks
as bisho}g.

Oct. 17. Death of James Parton, author,
at Newburyport.

Oct. 23. First snow.

Qct. 28. Earthquake in Japan; several
thousand lives lost.

Oct. 29. Burning of steamer Oliver Bi-
erne on the Mississippi; 20 lives lost.

Nov. 1. Fire at Beverly, destroying
Allen’s box factory, Woodbury Bros.
shoe factory, B. & M. R. R. freight
house, and several other buildings; loss
$150,000

Nov. 2. Maverick Bank, Boston, closed.

Nov. 3. State election. Wm. E. Russell
elected Governor.

Nov. 8. Explosion in coal mine at Nanti-
coke, Pa.; 10 lives lost.

‘Nov. 10. Appointment of W. H. Merrill,
as postmaster of Salem.

Nov. 15. Total eclipse of moon.

Nov. 18. Fire destroys Saunders estate,
Buffum st. Salem.

Nov. 19. Death of Wm. J. Florence, com-
edian, at Philadelphia, Pa.

Nov. 20.- Dedication of armory of Beyerl

Light Infantry. .
Nov. 28. Death of Col. Gardiner Tufts of
Lynn.
Nov. 23. Beverly appropriated $10,000

for 12 inch water main.

Nov. 24. Queen Hotel, Beverly, destroyed
by fire; loss $75,000.

Nov. 24, Death of Lord Lytton, ““Owen
Meredith,” at Paris.

Nov. 25. Land slide on Northern Pac. R.
R., killing 25 persons.

Nov. 26. Thanksgiving Day.

Nov. 28. Selectmen of Beverly vote for
trolley wires on Rantoul st.

Nov. 28, Railroad accident near Toledo,
0.; several killed.

Nov. 80. Essex St. Ry. Co. sold to Naum-
keag St. Ry. Co.

Dec. 2. Dynamite factory at Haverstraw,
N. Y. blown up, and 5 men killed.

Dec. 8. Collision of two electric cars on
Boston st. Salem.

Dec. 4. Russell Sage’s office, New York
City, partly destroyed by dynamite
bomb in hands of madman.

Dec. 4. Two freight and two passenger
trains wrecked and burned at E. Thomp-
son, Ct.

Dec. 4. Death of Dom Pedro, ex-emperor
of Brazil, at Paris.

Dec.4. Seven men killed at St. Paul, by
falling walls.

Deec. 4. Severe storm.

Dec. 6. Explosion in coal mine at St.
Etienne, France; 73 miners killed.

Dec. 8. Fire at C. J. Baker's grain store,
Beverly.

Dec. 9. Two large fires at Louisville, Ky.
11 persons killed.

Dec. 10. Fire destroyed cottage of T. P.
Gooding, Marblehead.

Dec. 10. Fire in Stopford bldg., Pond
cor. Rantoul st. Beverly,

Dec. 14, Death of N, A. Horton, editor
Salem Gazette.

Dec. 16. Will of Edward Burley of Bev-
erly filed; homestead given to Histori-
cal Society.

Dec. 19. Carriage accident to family of
Geo. C. Stickney, Beverly.

Dee. 22. Fire at Peabody Press office.
Dec. 23. Explosion of cargo of dynamite
at Antwerp; 18 persons killed. -
Dec. 24. Railroad accident at Hastings,

N. Y.; 12 killed.

Dec. 26. Panic in theatre at Gateshead,
Eng. ; 9 children killed.

Dec. 30. W. D. T. Trefry of Marblehead
appointed Sa.vin;.'.:is8 gl;a.n Commissioner,

Jan. Prevalence of ‘““La Grippe.”

Jan. 2. Death of Gen. Montgomery C.
Meigs, at Washington, D. C.

Jan. 8. Death of Col. George Peabody,
Salem.

Jan. 3. Resignation of Rev. Sherrod
Soule, Dane st. church, Beverly.

Jan. 6. Snow storm and loss of U. S. rev-
enue cutter Gallatin at Manchester.

Jan. 7. Death of Tewfik, Khedive of
Egypt, at Cairo.

Jan. 7. Explosion in coal mine at Krebs,
L. T.; nearly 100 miners killed.

Jan, 11. Dr. Graves sentenced at Denver,
Col. to be hung for murder of Mrs,
Barnaby, of Providence.

Jan. 11, R. R. accident near Crawfords-
ville, Ind.; 4 killed, 40 injured.

Jan. 14, Death of Cardinal Manning and
Prince Albert Victor, in England.

E. N. BASSETT sells_Paints, Bils and Glass, * BENILEY




Visit J. L. LOUGEE’S FU™“iESdik SRS = 20

EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST.

Jan. 14, T.oss reported of Steamer ‘‘Nam-
- chow,” off China and 400 lives lost.

Jan. 14. Death of Dr. Henry I. Bowditch
of Boston; aged 84.

Jan. 15. Postmaster Jackman of Peabody
re-appointed.

Jan. 16. Death of Charles D. Howard,
former editor of Peabody Press and Sa-
lem Post, at Natick.

Jan. 18. Explosion of powder mill at Cen-
tral City, W. Va.; 5 killed.

Jan. Salem Marine Railway on East
Gardner st. torn down; probably first to
be erected in the country.

Jan. 22. Fiire at National Surgical Insti-
tute, Indianapolis; 18 killed.

Jan, 25. President’s message concerning
Chili sent to Congress.

Jan. 27. Death of James T. Furber, man-
ager of B. & M. R. R. at Lawrence.

Jan, 27. Barn of George B. Courtis, Mar-
blehead, destroyed by fire.

Jan. 28, Organization of Peabody Board
of Trade.

Jan, 28, First church society, Salem,
voted to consolidate with Barton Square
society.

Jan. 29. Fire at J. J. Kenny’s, 13 Carlton
st., Salem.

Jan, 30. Fire destroyed Hinman’s plan-
ing mill, Beverly.

Jan. 31. Death of Charles H. Spurgeon,
noted preacher, at Mentone, Eng.; 57
years.

Jan. 31. Loss of steamship ‘“Eider” near
Isle of Wight; all hands saved. )

Feb. 3. Riot of prisoners at Deer Island.

Feb. 3. Death of Sir Morell Mackenzie,
dEistinguished. physician, at London,

ng. y
Feb. 8. Farwell’s shoe factory at Dan-
vers destroyed by fire; loss $60,000.
Feb. 5. Electric car at Merrimac precip-
ited into river.
Feb. 12. Birth of Indian papoose at Bev-

erly.
Feb. 12. Attempt to change Common
Egm{nicil representation on Salem water

ard.
Feb. 13. Finest display of aurora borealis
in many years.

Feb. 15. pening of new Bowdoin sq.
theatre, Boston.
Feb. 17. Commemorative meeting of

Danvers Hist. Soc. on witchecraft delu-
sion of 1692,

Feb. 23, 24. Severe snowstorm.

Feb. 24. Fire destroyed barn of T. T.
Paine, Marblehead.

Feb. 26. Steamer ‘‘Forest Queen” sunk
]in gol]ision off Yorkshire, Eng. ;14 lives
ost.

Feb. 27. Mob in Berlin, Ger.

Feb. 27. Riot at Indianapolis, Ind.

March 1. Dedication of new quarters of
Post 89, G. A. R of Beverly.

March 2. Death of Stephen G. Wheat-
land, ex-Mayor of Salem,

March 3. Newburyport depot burned.
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March 8. Settlement of Searles’ will case.

March 11, 150 miners killed near Brus-
sels, Ger.

M?:l‘-iclh 14. Governor signed anti-free pass

il

March 16. Office of city electrician estab-
lished at Salem.

March 17. Death of Max Strakosch, at
New York. )

March 22. Death of Dr. D. Hayes Agnew
at Philadelphia.

March 25. Institute of Essex Agricultural
Society held at Marblehead.

March 25. Burning of new hotel ‘“Mas-
sasoit’’ at Wenham lake.

March 26. Death of Walt Whitman, poet,
at Camden, N, J

March 28. Announcement of bequest of
Isaac Munroe of Peabody of his estate
for an orphan’s home after decease of
his wife.

March 28. Salem Evening News issued
from Peabody building.

March 29. Danvers adopted town seal,

Mareh 29, Announcement of bequests of
Miss Augusta Proctor to town of Pea-
body; $10;000 for old ladies’ home, and
$10,000 for public park. .

March 80, Great fire at Mandalay, Bur-
mah ; portion of city 24 miles long de-
stroyed.

March 30. Collision of vessels off Isle of
Wight; 14 lives lost.

March 81. Town of Peabody appropriated
$2800 for new house for Hose Co. No. 2,
and $3000 for drain on Lynn st.

Marech 81, Terrible tornado in Kansas.

April 3. Great fire at New Orleans: 11
squares burned.

April4, Body of unknown man found in
Marblehead pastures near Salem.

April 5. Rev. F. B. Sleeper installed pas-
tor of Baptist church, Marblehead.

April 7. Fast day. .

April 9. Fire destroyed W. F. Sinclair's
stable, Marblehead.

April 10. Instructor of Boston. Farm
school and 9 boys drowned in Boston
harbor.

April 10. Great fire at Tokio, Japan; 6000
houses burned. .

April 13. Explosion of powder mill at
Wilkesbarre, Pa.; 7 men killed.

April 18. Explosion of *powder mill in
New Jersey;7 men killed.

April 19. Earthquake in California; sever-
est since 1868.

April 26. Removal of Lowell depot at
Salem commenced. :
April 27. Laying of corner-stone of Gen.

Grant monument at New York.

April 27. Fire destroyed Grand Cential
theatre and other buildings, Phil,; sev-
eral lives lost.

April 28. Fire destroyed factory of M.
Murphy & Son, Robertson’s ct., Salem.

April 28. T. Jefferson Coolidge of Bos-
ton appointed U. S. Minister to France.

April 30. Arbor day.

IF YOUR HOUSE
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May 4. Ball of Cath Tem. societies at
Cadet hall; Gov. Russell present.

May 7. Railroad accident near Fort Mad-
ison, Iowa; 7 killed.

May 7. Gas first supplied at Clifton, by
Marblehead Gas Co.

May 10. Concert by P. S. Gilmore’s band
at Cadet hall.

May 10. Explosion in mine at Roslyn,
Wash. ; 46 lives lost.

May 11. Lumber raft destroyed at Brody,
Galicia; 60 lives lost. E

May 13. Bursting of water-spout in Hun-
gary, drowning 100 miners.

May 18. Fifty lives lost by overflow of
river at Sioux city, Ia.

May 19. Information of hurricane at
Mauritius; 1200 lives lost.

May 20. Dynamite factory in Spain de-
siroyed ; ten persons killed.

May 20. Snow in western Massachusetts.

May 22. Information of loss of Brazilian
warship and 120 lives.

May 27. Tornado at Wellington, Kan.;
50 killed.

May 27. Dedication of new armory of Co.
'C. 8th Regt.; at Marblehead.

June 4. Resignation of Secretary Blaine.

June 4. Severe disaster by flood and

. burning oil at Titusville and Oil City,
Pa.

June 6. Great fire at Balange, Philippine
islands; 1500 buildings burned.

Juune 14, Explosion at Mare Island, Cal.:
several killed.

June 14, Severe storms and tornadoes
in New England and Canada.

June 15. Fall of bridge at Covington,
Ky. ; 30 killed.

June 16. Wm. B. Geoghegan installed
pastor of Dane St. church, Beverly.

June 17. Severe thunder storms.

June 18. Death of Emmons Blaine at
Chicago. |Peabody.
June 20, Fire at A. J. Torr’s factory,

June 25. R. R. accident at Harrisburg,
Pa.; 13 killed.

June 26. Use of Lowell depot at Salem
discontinued.
June 20. John W. Foster of Indiana ap-
pointed Sec'y of State at Washington.
June. 3200 buildings destroyed by fire
at Marong, Philippine islds.

July 4. Loss of Prof. Geo. A. Rogers and
companion in baloon at Boston.

July 6. Labor trouble at Homestead, Pa.;
15 killed.

July 8 Nine men escaped from Charles-
town prison.

July 8. Fire at St. Johns, N. F.; 15,000
people homeless; loss $15,000,000.

July 10. Barn of W.W. Caldwell at No.
Beverly, burned.

July 11. Descent of glacier i Savoy;
many lives lost.

July 12. Death of Cyrus W, Field at Dobbs
Ferry, N. Y.

July 12. Excursion boat capsized on Lake
Peoria, Ill. ; 12 drowned.

EVENTS OF LOCAL AND GENERAL INTEREST.

July 17. Death of Gen. James A: Cun-
ningham, supt. of soldiers home, Chel-
sea.

July 24, Loss of Vanderbilt yacht Alva.

July 24. Fire in Thomas’ block, Peabody.

July 28. Three children smothered in
closet at Medford.

Aug. 2. Fire destroyed Daniel Goodhue
house, Danvers.

Aug. 4. Murder of A. J. Borden and wife
at Fall River.

Aug. 5. Heavy thunder storm; one man
killed in Salem and one in Peabody.

Alﬁg;lg' New York yacht club at Marble-

ead.

Aug. 10. Wm. H. Glover, conductor N.
S. R. Co. killed at Marblehead.

Aug. 11, Town of Beverly vote to build
sewer in Rantoul St

Aug. 11. Launch of U. S. cruiser Marble-
head at So. Boston,

Aug. 12. Severe thunder storm.

Aug. 13. Bev. & Dan. 8t. Ry. sold to
Naumkeag St. Ry. Co.

Aug. 17. R. R. accident at Paradise
crossing, Beverly; 1 killed, 8 injured.
Aug. 17. Fire in lodging house, London,

Eng.; 11 killed.

Aug. 18, Celebration of introduction of
water at Manchester.

Aug. 23. Receiver for Iron Hall appointed
at I dianapolis, Ind.

Aug. 25. Great parade at Gloucester;
250th anniversary.

Aug. 27. Fire destroyed Metropolitan
Opera House, N. Y.

Aung. 28. Resignation of Rev. A. G. Rog-
ers, Univ. ch., Salem.

Aug. 30. Steamer ‘‘Western Reserve’
lost on lake Michigan and 26 lives.

Aug. 31. Arrival at New York of Steam-
er Moravia; 22 deaths from cholera on
voyage.

Ang. 31. President orders quarantine of
20 days to prevent contagion from
cholera.

Aug. 31. Death of Geo. Wm. Curtis at
West Brighton, S. L.

Sept. 5. Death of Daniel Dougherty or-
ator at Phil.

Sept. 7. Death of John G. Whittier, poet,
at Hampton Falls. |South Salem.

Sept. 7. Four girls accidently shot in

Sept. 7. Corbett defeated Sullivan in prize

ght at New Orleans.

Sept. 10. Accident on Fitechburg R. R. at
W. Cambridge; 9 killed.

Sept. 11. Arrival of Peary Arctic expedi-
tion at St. John’s, N. F.

Sept. 20. Natl. encampment of G. A. R.
at Washington, and great parade.

Sept. 20. Greaf fire at Rockaway Beach,
L. I.; several hotels burned.

Sept. 21. R. R. accident near Shreve, O.;
13 killed.
Sept. 21. R. R. accident near Osage city,

Kansas; 4 killed.
Sept. 24. Death of P.S. Gilmore, band-
master, at St. Louis: aged 63 yrs.

Graining by F, N. BASSETT 2nd Glazing,
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FIRE ALARM AND FIRE LIMITS,

Salem Fire Alarm.—Location of Boxes.

Ocean View House, Juniper.
Almshouse.

Salemn Willows.
Pennsylvania Pier.

Essex near English st.
Phillips wharf.

Derby cor. Bentley st.

Allen cor, Webb st.

Derby cor. Becket st.

Police Station.

Charter cor. Elm st.

Derby cor. Central st.
Derby cor. Union st.

Essex st. opp. No. 67.
Spring cor. Webb. st.
Briggs cor. Washington Sq.
.Bridge cor. March st.
Bridge near Beacon st.
Salem Jail.

Salem Hospital.

Bridge cor. Northey st.
West yard.

St. Peter opp €hurch st.
Bridge opp. Ash st.
Frankliu Building.

Essex cor. Central st.
Washington near Federal st.
Mill opp. High st.

City Hall. "
Chestnut cor. Pickering st.
Prescott cor. Summer st.

Flint cor. Broad st.

Highkland Ave. opp. Jackson st.
Essex st. opp. Public Library.
Broad cor. Pickering st.
Broad cor. Summer st.

‘Essex cor. North st.

One stroke will be given daily at 11.45
A, M., and 6.15 p. M. to test the alarm.

Two strokes signify that the fire is out.

Four sfrokes, second alarm; calls
steamer only.

General alarm, same number of box re-
peated once.

Five strokes repeated four times, signify
call for fire out of the city.

Ten strokes repeated three times, indi-
cate police call.

Essex cor. Boston st.
Federal cor. Flint st.
Bridge cor. North st.
Boston cor. Beaver st.
Bridge near Carpenter st.
Bridge cor. Goodhue st.
Nichols cor. Prospect st.
Federal cor, Beckford st.
Boston near Prospect ave.
Rawlins near Prospect.
Washington cor. Lafayette st.
Poor’s tannery, Ocean ave.
Salem cor. Harbor st.
Naumkeag Mills

Lafayette opp. Gardner st.
Lafayette cor. Ocean ave.
Lafayette cor. Laurel st.
Leach cor. Summit ave.
Roslyn cor. Cabot st.

Barr cor. Harmony st.
Mason cor. Friend st.
Cabot Farm.

Mason cor. Grove st.
Mason cor. Myrtle st.
Tremont cor. School st.
Dearborn near Walter st.
Hose House on North st.
North cor. Franklin st.
Kernwood.

North cor. Nursery st.
Lafayette cor. Loring ave.
Castle Hill district.
Electric light station.
Washington cor. Dodge st.
Palmer cor. Pingree st.

127 Salem and Everett sts.

Three strokes at 11.15 A. . indicafe
double session in primary schools.

Three strokes at ten minutes before
time for closing, double session in gram-
mar schools.

Three strokes at 8.15 A, M. indicate ‘“‘no
school” for all the schools.

Three strokes at 1.30 p.'M. indicate that
ﬁol:ftamoon session of the schools will be
eld.

Fire Limits of Salem.

(Chap. 22nd. of the Revised Ordinances.)

The fire limits include all that part of the city lying and being within the following
described boundaries, to wit: beginning at the corner of Kssex and North streets,
thence running northerly t.hroufh the center of North street to Lynde street, thence
easterly through the center of Lynde, Church and Brown streets to Newbury street,
thence southerly through the center of Newbury and Elm streets to Derby street,
thence westerly through the center of Derby street to an angle in said street near
the estate of Fabens, thence continuing westerly across land of Fabens and the dock
to the Lafayette street bridge, thence westerly by the channel of South river to Wash-
ingion street, thence northerly through the center of Washington street to Norman
street, thence westerly through the center of Norman street to Summer street, thence
northerly through the center of Summer street to the point begun at.

E. N, BASSETT, TADHS,ANR SAREE, HANGER
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PASTORS OF BALEM CHURCHES,

PASTORS OF THE SALEM CHURCHES.
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FIRST CHURCH.
George W. Briggs......ov vvnen ones 1853-1467
James T, Hewes. . .. 1868-1875
Fielder Israel... 1877-1888
George C. Cressey........ co.vvvens 1840
EAST CHURCH.
DexterClapp ... .covrervevneninensss 1851-1864
Samuel C. Beane.... ........ce..00 1864-1878
George H. HOSmer....cccouvn vuanes 1879-1885
William H. Ramsey......cc.coveanees 1887-1889
NORTH CHURCH.
Edmund B. Willson........ ... .... 1850
TABERNACLE CHURCH.
Samuel M. Worcester....... ....... 1834-1860
Charles Ray Palmer........cuoc0veuas 1860-1872
Hiram B. Putnam .. c.ceeveeenaenes 1873-1876
DeWitt 8. Clark...... «ev covvrenen 1879
SOUTH CHURCH.
Brown Emerson... ...eovesseses ... .1805-1872
Israel E. Dwinell .......... ... 1849-1863
Edward 8. Atwood..... . 1864-1888
James F. Brodie....... .1889
HOWARD STREET CHURCH.
Charles C. Beaman . .......... e 1857-1864
CROMEIE STREET CHURCH,
Joseph H. Thayer............... ... 1859-1864
Clarendon Wait...... April, 1866 to Dec. 1866
Hugh Elder.......covcviissasanses .1868-1884
Louis B. Voorhees........... vesss o 1885-1889
John W. Buckham......... vvveueus 1590
INDEPENDENT CONG. CHURCH.
Augustus M. Haskell..........c.. ... 1862-1866
George Batchelor............ Fawie va 1866-1882
Benjamin F. McDaniel.............. 1383-1886
Frederick B. Motb. cvserveorcirananss 1887-1841
8T. PETER'S CHURCH,
George Leeds........coovviiiniinnnn 18531860

William R. Pickman,
James V. Scripture.

Edward M. Gushee..,...coocvvuenann 1872-1875
Charles Arey.!..... e 1876-1890
Henry Bedinger..... T 1891
GRACE CHURCH.
George D. Wildes.... ...c..u.......1859-1867
Joseph Kidder ......covevnninnannnn 1867-1870
James P ranEe o viie in-einwvsawiom 1870
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH.
Robert C. Mills, ......... Y 1848-1876
George E. Merrill ........ovivvennnnn 1877-1885
Galusha Anderson..... SRy .. . 1885-1887
Edwin P. Farnham........cc... ... 1888
SECOND OR CENTRAL BAPTIST CHURCH.
Panlel I, Witk ccssiiasnssesnisssna 1855-1866
8. Hartwell Pratt........c. vvov00.. 1867-1870
David Weston..... ....Feb. 1872 to Oct. 1872
W.H. H.Marsh....cvoeeers  -oors 1873-188¢
Charles A. Towne....c..coen vvnen.. 1881-1890
Samuel B. Nobbs... ..ceevienas T e 1891

CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH.

S. Hartwell Pratt..............,. ...« 187T0-1873
D. Henry Taylor.....coouvun.. .....1874-1877
William A. Keese.......... .. .. 1877-1883
Samuel H. Emery............. .. 1884-1887
Gideon Cole. .vvevseerisesrenrnnnnnes 1888-1892.
UNIVERSALIST CHURCH.
Willard Spaulding 1860-1869
Edwin C. Bolles... ....... .. 1871-1887
ArthurG. Rogers............ .+ 1888-1892
LAFAYETTE STREET METHODIST CHURCH.
A.F.Herrick......ovcevisuivsaniass 1857-1859
John H. Mansfie!d ......... ... ... 1854-1861
T AL MANTANE o e v maiey s amsnameigs 1861-1842
Gemshom F. CoX..oovvrn-vuirernnnnans 1862-1864
L Crowell ciisss viscivenvassivvsnas 1864-1867
8. Freeman Chase.,.....cou. vovaian 1PGT-1869
Daniel Dorchester........coevvveen oo 18609-1872
J. 8. Whedon....cooncevrcnssnrsnses 1872-1875
G L COllYRr. vovnvnrnsnnevrsnonmensn 1875-1878
Daniel Steele.....oovviveiianeniannns 1878-1881
George W. Mansfield... ............ 1881-1882
C. L. Eastman. ..covvoianoimmuneiss 1852-1883
William P. Bay...ccovesuncsss sanns 1883-1886:
Samuel L. Gracey. .....coeo.cvvun ous 1886-1889
George A. Phinney.... .c.c.cuv.ene 1889-1892
George F. Baton. cevevsuraenaransenas 1802
WESLEY CHURCH.
Joshua Gill...vovy vevivieencienanias 1872-1874
William J. Hambleton........ou0u.. 1874-1877
William H. Meredith..........c00000 1877-1880
Charles F. Rice.....coivuvnvaaniaenns 1880-1883
WHHE P, Odall .:c.cenavsmisnnnmsnes § b
Thomas W. Bishop
Joel M, Leonard........
Raymond F. Holway....... ........ 1892

NEW JERUSALEM CHURCH.

Leonard G. Jordan......eveenevneras
Albino 8. Frost..... i
William B. Hayden.

Joseph 8. David., ..
D, V. Bowen........
Michael J. Callan ....c.vvvuuenrnesens
John A. Hayes....oceviennnnnas vee . 1892
CHURCH OF THE IMMACULATE CONCEPTION,
Thomus H. Shehan......... ...vc0u. 1858-1862
Michael Hartney.......cvvvviinnnnes 1862-1868
William HalleY cee voverneenennsnns 1868-1887
Patrick . HalY . covvavisnsvmssninias 1888
8T, JAMES' CHURCH.

Thomas H. Shehan. .........coovunnns 1850-1864
William J. Daley....coen vue v wenvas 1865-1868
JOIN J. GTAY. ez vrrnsseasarsnnsns san 1868

ST. JOSEPH'S CHURCH.
Francois X. L. Vezina.............. 1873-1885
Joseph 0. Gadoury........ouuen. el 1885

E. N. BASSETT, House and Sign Pa,ilcntei'= 1 BENTLEY



PARLOR DINING and CHAMBER
FURNITURE, at 259 Essex St , Salem,

Next to Burlon
8¢, Church.
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HACKNEY CARRIAGE REGULATIONS.
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REGULATIONS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGES

IN

THE CITY OF SALEM

iAdopted January 31, 1881, by Board or Aldermen.

OrDERED. That, until otherwise or-
dered, the price or rates of fare, to be
taken by, or paid to, the owner, driver, or
other person having charge of any licensed
hackney carriage, except omnibuses and
barges, shall be as follows:

SectrioN 1. For the conveyance, from
one place to another within the limiis of
that part of the city. lying and being
within the following described bounda-
ries, viz: Commencing at the junction of
Essex and Webb streets, thence running
southerly through Webb street to Salem
Harbor, thence westerly by said harbor to
TUnion street bridge, thence easterly and
southerly by said harbor to Ocean Ave-
nue, thence by Ocean Avenue to the track
of the Eastern Railroad Co., thence north-
erly by said track to Margin street, thence
southerly and westerly by Margin street
and the Mill Pond to the southern end of
Hathorne street; thence westerly by the
eastern line of the (ireat Pastures to
Highland Avenue, thence, by Essex, Bos-
ton, Grove. Mason, Barr, School and Orne
streets to Walter street; thence through
Walter street to the eastern end thereof,
and continuing on the same course to
North river, thence westerly by said river
to the bridge om North street; thence
easterly by the southern line of North
River to the northern end of March street;
thence by March, Bridge and Osgood
streets- to Collins Cove; thence westerly
by Collins Cove to Webb street; thence
southerly through Webb street to the
point begun at; of one or more adult pas-
sengers, twenty-five cents each.

SEct. 2. For one or more adulf pas-
sangers from any place in the city within
said limits to any place in the city beyond
said lim**~ hutwithin/Block-house square,

the jr fayette street and Lynn
Ro- tks on Highland Ave-
n ey, Rawlins, Watson,

‘ tle, Sehool and Nor-
- Hill Road, Appleton
Beverly Bridge, or

ents each.

more adult pas-
une to another ex-
‘ribed in the sec-
<ch.

eton street, the
he city east of
atween North
lows, Juniper
arsa, for one

3 cents; or
‘ts each; for

three or more adult passengers, thirty-
five cents each.

From any place in the city beyond the
limits hereinbefore stated in this section,
but within Ocean Avenue, Boston, Grove,
Mason, School and Orne streets, to the
Willows, Juniper or Winter Island, or
vice versa, for one adult passenger, one
dollar; for two or more adult passengers,
fifty cents each,

Secr. 5. From any place within the
limits mentioned in Section One, to Har-
mony Grove, for one adult passenger,
seventy-five cents; for two adult passen-
gers, fifty cents each; for three or  aore
adult passengers, thirty-five cents cach.
For returning therefrom with same pas-
sengers and without delay, fifty cents;
whether for one or more passengers.

Secr. 6. For the conveyance of persons
to any place mnot hereinbefore specified,
and for funerals, special reasonable rates
may be charged.

Secr. 7. The charge for hackpey car-
riages drawn by two horses, when hired
by the hour, shall be one dollar and one-
half a dollar for each hour, and when
drawn by one horse, one dollar for each
hour; and for parts of hours after the first
hour, a proportional part of the rate for
one hour shall be charged.

Secr. 8. For children under six years
of age, with an adult, no charge will be
made. For children between six and
twelve years of age when accompanied
by an adult, the fare shall be half the
price charged for an adult, and when not
accompanied by an adult, full fare may
be charged.

Secr. 9. Between the hours of ten
o’clock at night and half past six o’clock
in the morning, double the above estab-
lished rates may be charged.

Secr. 10. No charge shall be made
for one trunk, and the valise, carget-bags,
portmanteaus, bundles and baskets, of
each passenger, but for each additional
trunk, more than one, fifteen cents may
be charged; and the owner or driver of
any hackney carriage, shall not be re-
quired to take or deposit the baggage of
any passenger, except from or in the hall
or vestibule, of any residence or building
in the city.

Sect. 11. "When any street is men-
tioned in this order as the boundary of
any limit, both sides of the street shall be

ing, E. N. BASSETT,

deemed to be, and is included, within
such limit.
1 BENTLEY
STREET.



88 SALEM ADVERTISING DEPARTMENT.

R.H_ROBSOINT

——i MANUFACTURER OF j—

“The Witch Cycles.”

.....

““Salem Witch,” weight 20 to 35 pounds.

D

All kinds of Repairing, Nickeling,
Enameling and General Machine
Work done in the best manner.

K

Engines, Boilers and Steam Punr
supplied to order and set up.

AOIKK

Hangers, Shafting,
Steam Pipe and F

39 BOSTON STREET, 27
et S AT EIM



